ADDITION OF ANNUAL BUILDING ENERGY ANALYSIS CAPABILITY TO A DESIGN LOAD CALCULATION PROGRAM

By

XIN CHEN Bachelor of Engineering China Textile University Shanghai, P. R. China 1986

Submitted to the Faculty of the Graduate College of the Oklahoma State University in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the Degree of MASTER OF SCIENCE December, 1996

ADDITION OF ANNUAL BUILDING ENERGY ANALYSIS CAPABILITY TO A DESIGN LOAD CALCULATION PROGRAM

Thesis Approved :

Thesis Adviser 111 10 ns

Dean of the Graduate College

PREFACE

A comprehensive technical computer software, the HVAC program, for the professional purpose of building load calculation, was previously developed by Castelino, a former graduate student in Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering Department, Oklahoma State University. The program is designed under the Microsoft WindowsTM environment and has a friendly user interface. The program can perform a series of basic calculations on design day cooling loads, heating loads, space heat extraction rates and space air temperatures of a building defined by the user.

For design day cooling load calculation, the transfer function method which was introduced by Stephenson and Mitilas (1967), was used as the major methodology in the load calculation procedures. To expand the capability of this program based on the existing version, further work has been done in this project to add annual simulation procedures to the program. The results from annual building load simulation is useful to analyze HVAC system annual energy consumption.

The results comparison between the HVAC program and other professional programs, which are considered as state-of-the-art, has also been done during this project. The simulation results carried out by the HVAC program is found to be acceptable for general engineering purposes in the field of HVAC.

I wish to express my sincere appreciation to my major advisor, Dr. Jeffrey D. Spitler for his intelligent guidance, patience, encouragement and friendship during the entire period of this project. I would also like to thank Dr. Ronald D. Delahoussaye for his invaluable advice, assistance and suggestions on the computer programming. My sincere appreciation extends to Dr. Faye McQuiston for serving on my committee. His contribution on the revised Transfer Function Method is remarkable in this thesis work. I

iii

appreciate the help from all of my colleagues and friends, A. Manickam, J. Charles Bethea, C. Yavuzturk and Ojas, Wadivkar.

Finally, I would like to give my special thanks to my parents, Zhengjiou Chen, Jinhuan Ming, and my sister Ming Chen for their love, understanding, support and encouragement throughout this whole process.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

.

Chapter	Page
I. INTRODUCTION	1
1.2 LITERATIRE REVIEW	
The Transfer Function Method	3
Conduction Transfer Function Coefficients	9
Room Transfer Function Coefficients	
Space Air Transfer Function Coefficients	11
The "HVAC for Windows ^[M] " Program	
The Program Validation	
I.3 OBJECTIVE	
U. BUILDING LOAD ANNUAL SIMULATION	16
2.1 OVERVIEW OF HVAC PREVIOUS VERSION	
2.1.1 Design Day Cooling Load Calculation	
2.1.2 Design Day Heat Extraction Calculation	
2.1.3 Data Structure Description	
2.2 MODIFICATION ON DESIGN DAY HEAT EXTRACTION RATE CALCULATION	
2.2.1 System With One Set Point Temperature	
2.2.2 System With Two Set Point Temperature	
2.2.3 System Operation State Description	
2.2.4 System Set Back Operation	
2.2.5 Space Air Transfer Function	
2.2.6 Heat Extraction Rate and Space Air. Temperature Calculation	
2.2.7 Example on Heat Extraction Rate Calculation	
2.3 ANNUAL ENERGY ANALYSIS	
2.3.1 Weather Data for the Annual Simulation	
2.3.2 Solar Time Calculation	
2.3.3 Solar Irradiation Calculation	
2.3.4 Daylight Saving Time Adjustment	40
2.3.5 Heat gain, Cooling Load Calculation for the first day	
2.3.6 System Coil Load Calculation	42
2.3.7 Summary on the Annual Simulation Results	
2.4 ON LINE GLOBAL SCHEDULE LIBRARY	44
2.4.1 Load Schedule and System Schedule Overview	
2.4,2 Annual Schedule Library	
2.4.3 Weekly Schedule Library	
2.4.4 Daily Schedule Library	
2.4.5 Schedule Library Scope Discussion	
III. USER INTERFACE MODIFICATION	
3.1 OVERVIEW OF USER INTERFACE MODIFICATION IN HVAC	
3.2 DIALOG BOXES SERVING MAIN APPLICATION WINDOW	
3.2.1 Annual Simulation Setup Dialog Box	

Chapter

•	
3.2.2 Annual Simulation Results Dialog Box	
3.3 DIALOG BOXES SERVING ZONE CHILD WINDOW	
3.3.1 Ventilation Setup Dialog Box	52
3.3.2 Zone Heat Extraction Dialog Box	53
3.4 DIALOG BOXES SERVING SCHEDULE EDITING	
3.4.1 Annual Schedule Edit Dialog Box(Figure 3.5)	
3.4.2 Weekly Schedule Edit Dialog Box(Figure 3.6)	
3.4.3 Daily Load Schedule Edit Dialog Box(Figure 3.7)	58
3.4.4 System Daily Schedule Edit Dialog Box(Figure 3.8)	
3.5 PLOTTING PROCEDURE MODIFICATION	60
3.5.1 Error Fixing for Original Program's Plot Procedure	
3.5.2 Plotting Zone Monthly Load Results	61
3.6 RECOMMENDATION ON FURTHER USER INTERFACE MODIFICATION	62
IV. VALIDATION WITH BLAST	63
4.1 OVERVIEW	63
4.2 TEST ON A ZONE WITH A SINGLE EXTERIOR WALL	64
4.2.1 Test Building Setup	
4.2.2 Wall type discussion.	
4.2.3 Exterior Surface Combined Coefficient Setting.	
4.2.4 Validation Procedure	
4.2.5 Simulation Results from BLAST and HVAC	
4.2.6 Some Extra Tests on Exterior Surface Coefficients and Window's effects	81
4.3 TEST OF A LOAD CALCULATION ON A REAL BUILDING (MOTEL)	84
4.3.1 Motel Plan View	
4.3.2 Building General Design Information	
4.3.3 Motel Annual Simulation Results	
4.4 DISCUSSION	93
V. VALIDATION BY BUILDING ENERGY SIMULATION TEST (BESTEST)	
5.1 OVERVIEW	. 97
5.2 TEST BUILDING AND INPLIT DATA DESCRIPTION	97
5.2.1 Building Construction Information	97
5.2.2 Cases Description	103
S.2.3 HVAC Input Data for BESTEST Cases	105
5.3 ANNUAL SIMULATION RESULTS	
5.4 DISCUSSION	
VI. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	
6 L Concentrations	122
6.2 RECOMMENDATIONS	123
REFERENCES	175
	······································
APPENDIXES	128
APPENDIX A: BLAST INPUT FILE FOR THE MOTEL LOAD SIMULATION	129
APPENDIX B: HVAC INPUT FILE FOR THE MOTEL LOAD SIMULATION	139
APPENDIX C: HVAC INPUT FILE FOR THE BESTEST	

LIST OF TABLES

Table	Page
1.1: Experimental Space Air Transfer Function Coefficients	
for Wood-frame Houses	12
2.1: The Normalized values of space air transfer function coefficients	27
2.2: Data and Calculation results for example 2.2.7	
4.1: Material Distribution for Wall Type 1	66
4.2: Material Distribution for Wall Type 5	66
4.3: Material Distribution for Wall Type 11	67
4.4: Material Distribution for Wall Type 17	67
4.5: Coefficients for Calculating Exterior Convective Heat Transfer Coefficient	69
4.6: Exterior Combined Coefficient Values for Different Wall Types	69
4.7: Room Parameters used by HVAC in the single wall test	71
4.8: Motel Zones Information Summary	
4.9: Motel Annual Total Cooling and Heating Loads	
4.10: Motel Annual Total Cooling and Heating Loads	
5.1: Case 600s' Exterior Wall Material Description (inside to outside)	
5.2: Case 600's Roof Material Description (inside to outside)	
5.3: Case 600's Floor Material (inside to outside)	
5.4: Case 900's Exterior Wall Material(inside to outside)	101
5.5: Case 900's Roof Material(inside to outside)	102
5.6: Case 900's Floor Material(inside to outside)	
5.7: BESTEST Window's Characteristics	103
5.8: BESTEST Case Summary Information	
5.9: Room parameters for BESTEST cases	107

Table	Page
5.10: BESTEST Wall and Roof Layer Summary Information	
5.11: BESTEST Sensitivity Test Purposes	120

.

LIST OF FIGURES

Fig	Page
2.1	Cooling Load Calculation by Transfer
	Function Method(McQuiston and Spitler, 1992)17
2.2	Hierarchy of the HVAC software program data structure (Castelino, 1992)19
2.3	A/C System's Equipment Characteristic (with one set point)22
2.4	A/C Equipment Characteristic(with two set points)
2.5	System operation states illustration
2.6	The Heat Extraction Rate Calculation when the Temperature
	Floats in the System Throttling Range
2.7	Heat Extraction Rate Results for the Example
2.8	Space Temperature Results for the Example
2.9	Annual Simulation Flow Chart
3.1	Annual Simulation Setup Dialog Box
3.2	Annual Simulation Dialog Box
3.3	Ventilation Setup Dialog Box
3.4	Zone Heat Extraction Dialog Box
3.5	Annual Schedule Edit Dialog Box
3.6	Weekly Schedule Edit Dialog Box
3.7	Daily Load Schedule Edit Dialog Box
3.8	System Daily Schedule Edit Dialog Box
4.1	South Wall Design Day Comparison for the Single Wall Test
4.2	North Wall Design Day Comparison for the Single Wall Test
4.3	East Wall Design Day Comparison for the Single Wall Test

Figure	Page
4.4 West Wall Design Day Comparison for the Single Wall Test	76
4.5 Annual Simulation Comparison on Wall Type 1	
4.6 Annual Simulation Comparison on Wall Type 5	
4.7 Annual Simulation Comparison on Wall Type 11	79
4.8 Annual Simulation Comparison on Wall Type 17	80
4.9 Cooling Loads Affected by Exterior Surface Coefficient(Wall Type 1, Sou	th)82
4.10 Wall Type 5, South Window Design Day Comparison	
4.11 Motel First Floor Plan View	
4.12 Motel Second Floor Plan View	
4.13(A) Motel Monthly Cooling and Heating Load Comparison	
Between BLAST and the HVAC Program(Part A)	
4.13(B) Motel Monthly Cooling and Heating Load Comparison	
Between BLAST and the HVAC Program(Part B)	
4.13(C) Motel Monthly Cooling and Heating Load Comparison	
Between BLAST and the HVAC Program(Part C)	
5.1 BESTEST Zone Plan View	
5 2 BESTEST Zone Elevation View	99
5.3 BESTEST Low Mass Cases Annual Heating Load Comparison	109
5.4 BESTEST Low Mass Cases Annual Cooling Load Comparison	
5.5 BESTEST Hi Mass Cases Annual Heating Load Comparison	
5.6 BESTEST Hi Mass Cases Annual Cooling Load Comparison	
5.7 BESTEST Low Mass Cases Heating Load Qualification tests Results	
5.8 BESTEST Low Mass Cases Cooling Load Qualification tests Results	111
5.9 BESTEST Hi Mass Cases Heating Load Qualification tests Results	
5.10 BESTEST Hi Mass Cases Cooling Load Qualification tests Results	
5.11 BESTEST Heating Peak Load Comparison	
5 12 BESTEST Cooling Peak Load Comparison	
5.13 BLAST Results Comparison Between BESTEST cases 270 and 320	
5.14 HVAC Results Comparison Between BESTEST cases 270 and 320	

Chapter I

Introduction

1.1 Overview

When designing a cooling and heating system for either a new or an existing building, the building load calculation is one of the most important and fundamental tasks during the whole design procedure. The load calculation provides necessary design data for the engineer sizing the system, selecting equipment and estimating energy consumed by the operation of the heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) system. Generally, the peak load results obtained from the design day calculation are used to determine the required capacity of the HVAC system. The results from the design day calculation are not expected to reflect the actual performance of the system during the life of the system under the conditions other than design day. Therefore, the system capacity is usually oversized by designer by adding extra safety factors to the calculation results. When the cost of energy becomes more and more of a concern to the public, detailed (hour by hour) annual building load simulation is required by designers to evaluate the system life cycle performance and estimate the annual energy consumption budget.

For building load calculation, the heat balance method is considered as "the exact solution" (ASHRAE, 1993), because it is based on a comprehensive thermal network model combined with all building load components. The conduction heat transfer between interior and exterior wall surfaces is calculated by using conduction transfer function and all other kinds of heat transfer involved in the conditioned space have to be solved simultaneously. Because of the complexity of this method, it is impractical without the assistance of a digital computer. In 1967, a new load calculation concept was

1

carried out by Mitalas and Stephenson (1967a,b), which is called transfer function or weighting factor method. The transfer function method is considered as a simplification of the rigorous heat balance calculation procedure (ASHRAE 1993) and runs faster than the heat balance method. During the last 20 years, the transfer function method has been further developed and is feasible to calculate the cooling loads for almost all types of buildings. The detailed procedures for applying this method are already published by ASHRAE in "Cooling and Heating Load Calculation Manual, 2nd ed." (McQuiston and Spitler, 1992). Furthermore, the design day cooling load calculation by using the revised transfer function method has already been implemented in a comprehensive building load simulation computer software, which is called "HVAC for Windows™".(Castelino, 1992).

Currently, the HVAC for Windows[™] program has the capability to perform a building design day cooling, heating load and system heat extraction rate calculation based on the building description and design day conditions defined by the user. The software was developed under the Microsoft Windows[™] environment and has a friendly graphical user interface.

By using the HVAC program, the user can easily define a new building in the WindowsTM environment and perform the design day calculation. The results of the calculation can provide not only the design day peak loads, but also the hourly loads profile for the whole building or each individual load component. This feature provide the user the possibility to make a detailed analysis on the thermal performance of the building or HVAC system.

For some applications in the HVAC field, some other data, such as the building's monthly total heating, cooling loads, monthly peak loads and peak loads occurring time, are also of interest to the user. The GLHEPRO program (Spitler, 1996), which is a software developed to simulate a long term performance of a ground loop heat exchanger serving a heat pump system, needs all of the information mentioned above to complete a simulation. Therefore, it is desirable to add the annual energy simulation procedure to enhance the program's capability.

2

This thesis describes the implementation of the annual simulation procedure in the current version of the HVAC program. To meet the requirement of completing an annual load simulation, the modification of the user interface to the HVAC program is also discussed in this thesis.

1.2 Literature Review

In order to implement the new feature of annual simulation to the HVAC program and validate the results, some related papers have been reviewed in this project. The following sections describe a literature survey on the topics of: the transfer function method, the transfer functions' coefficients, the development of the HVAC for WindowsTM program and the program validation.

The Transfer Function Method

The "Thermal Response Factor Method", which was introduced by Stephenson and Mitalas (1967a,b), is based on the principle of superposition and response factors. In order to use the superposition technique, the system has to meet the prerequisite that it can be represented by linear and invariable equations. The heat transfer process in a conditioned space can meet this requirement as described by Mitalas (1965). Based on the further development of the response factor approach, Stephenson and Mitalas (1971) applied the z-transform to model the transfer Function Method (TFM)" - is similar to the previous response factor method, but as expressed in the paper (Stephenson and Mitalas, 1971), " ... they are much more economical in terms of computer memory space and running time". The transfer function method has become a popular practical load calculation method and accepted in the public domain during the last two decades. In 1970's, the ASHRAE sponsored research project, RP-138, was carried out under the

direction of Rudoy (1975) to improve the method and make it feasible in the HVAC field without the assistance of a digital computer. The project created tabulated values of room response factors corresponding to different zone geometric and construction characteristics based on the results carried out by Mitalas and Stephenson (1967). The results from the RP-138 were also incorporated in the ASHRAE Handbook of Fundamentals (1977,1981,1985). Later investigations and studies on the room response characteristics found the accuracy of the results carried out by RP-138 questionable. The results of a study carried out by Sowell (1984) showed that certain parameters of the zone geometry and construction can also affect the room thermal response considerably. In order to provide more appropriate room weighting factors which can be applied to a wider range of zone constructions, the research project (RP-472) was defined in 1985 by ASHRAE. In this project, the DOE-2.1B program was used to obtain a new set of room transfer function coefficients (Kerrisk, et al. 1981). There are fourteen zone parameters considered as important factors which can influence the room thermal characteristics. The detailed description can be found in the RP-472 companion papers (Sowell, 1988a,b,c). A complete description of the entire revised transfer function method has been made in the Cooling and Heating Load Calculation Manual (McQuiston and Spitler, 1992) published by ASHRAE. The latest version of the coefficients used for both conduction and room transfer functions are incorporated in this manual. Furthermore, as personal computers became available to the HVAC design routine, the database of the transfer function coefficients has been developed (Falconer, et al., 1992) and the database can be accessed by both user interactive computer software and specific C or FORTRAN programs. A comprehensive load calculation computer program, HVAC for Windows[™] (Castelino, 1992), which can run under the Microsoft Windows[™] environment was also developed applying the standard calculation procedures published in the Cooling and Heating Load Calculation Manual (McQuiston and Spitler, 1992).

A brief description of the transfer function method procedures in building cooling load calculation is given below.

• Calculate the hourly heat gains through opaque exterior surfaces:

To calculate the hourly heat gain conducted through building exterior wall and roof, the procedure has the following feature (ASHRAE, 1993):

1) The outdoor ambient condition is represented by sol-air temperature

2) A constant indoor space temperature is assumed for cooling load calculation

3) Interior and exterior surface combined coefficients are both set as constants

The conduction transfer function is employed to obtain the hourly heat gain through the opaque building constructions. The conduction transfer function can be expressed in form (ASHRAE, 1993):

$$q_{\epsilon,\theta} = A \left[\sum_{n=0}^{\infty} b_n \left(t_{\epsilon,\theta-n\delta} \right) - \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} d_n \left\{ \left(q_{\epsilon,\theta-n\delta} \right) / A \right\} - t_n \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} c_n \right]$$
(1.1)

where

 $q_{e\theta}$ = heat gain through wall or roof, at calculation hour, θ , Btu/h

A = indoor surface area of a wall or roof, ft^2

 $\theta = time, h$

 δ = time interval, h

n = summation index(each summation has as many terms as there are non-

negligible values of coefficients)

 $t_{e, \theta \cdot n\delta} =$ sol-air temperature at time θ -n δ , °F

t_{rc} = constant indoor room temperature, °F

 b_n , c_n , d_n = conduction transfer function coefficients

The coefficients used in the conduction transfer function can be determined by the layer description, thermal and geometry properties oF the wall or roof. A total oF 41 representative wall groups and 42 roof groups can be used to represent all common wall and roofs. The database of the conduction transfer function coefficients is also able to be accessed by using computer software (Falconer, et al. 1992).

The heat gain caused by fenestration can be divided into two parts. One is the conduction heat transfer across the window material. The other is the solar radiative heat gain through the window glass. The conduction and transmitted parts of the heat gain can be calculated by Equation 1.2 and 1.3 (ASHRAE, 1993), respectively.

Convective
$$q = UA(t_0 - t_i)$$
 (1.2)

Solar
$$q = A(SC)(SHGF)$$
 (1.3)

where

 t_0 = outdoor current hourly dry-bulb temperature, °F t_i = inside design temperature, °F A = area of window U = overall window heat transfer coefficient, Btu/(hr-ft²-F) SC = shading coefficient SHGF = solar heat gain factor, Btu/(h-ft²)

As discussed in the Cooling and Heating Load Calculation Manual (McQuiston and Spitler, 1992), in the revised transfer function method, the Solar Heat Gain Factor is split into two parts - Transmitted Solar Heat Gain Factor (TSHGF) and Absorbed Solar Heat Gain Factor (ASHGF), and they are calculated separately by using formula 1.3a and 1.3b.

$$TSHGF = I_D \sum_{j=0}^{5} t_j \left[\cos \theta \right]^j + 2I_d \sum_{j=0}^{5} t_j / (j+2)$$
(1.3a)

$$ASHGF = I_D \sum_{j=0}^{5} a_j [\cos\theta]' + 2I_d \sum_{j=0}^{5} a_j / (j+2)$$
(1.3b)

where:

 I_D : the direct solar radiation intensity

- I_d : the diffuse solar radiation intensity
- t, : the transmission coefficients for DSA glass
- a, : the absorption coefficients for DSA glass
- DSA : standard double-strength sheet glass

The solar heat gain factor can then be obtained from the form below:

Solar heat gain factor = Energy transmitted + N_i (Energy absorbed) (1.4) where

$$N_{i} = h_{i} / (h_{i} + h_{o}) \tag{1.5}$$

 h_i , h_o = interior and exterior combined heat transfer coefficient, respectively

The value of N_i is called inward flowing fraction of absorbed heat through fenestration surface.

The method to calculate the heat gain caused by people, infiltration, light and miscellaneous internal heat generating appliances is also described in the Chapter 26 in the ASHRAE Handbook (1993).

• Calculate the room cooling load based on the calculated hourly heat gain

When the hourly heat gain is obtained by using the procedures mentioned above, the hourly cooling load can then be calculated by applying the room transfer function. The cooling load due to different type (i.e. conduction, infiltration, etc.) of heat gain can be obtained from Equations 1.6 through 1.8 (ASHRAE, 1993):

$$Q_{\theta} = Q_{if} + Q_{sc} \qquad (1.6)$$

$$Q_{if} = \sum_{i=1}^{\infty} \left(v_0 q_{\theta,i} + v_1 q_{\theta,i-\delta} + v_2 q_{\theta,i-2\delta} + \dots \right) - \left(w_1 Q_{\theta-\delta} + w_2 Q_{\theta-2\delta} + \dots \right) \qquad (1.7)$$

$$Q_{sc} = \sum_{j=1}^{\infty} q_{c,j} \qquad (1.8)$$

where:

 Q_{tf} = sensible cooling load from heat gain elements having convective and radiant components

v and w = room transfer function coefficients q_{θ} = each of i heat gain elements having radiant component δ = time interval, h Q_{sc} = sensible cooling load from heat gain elements having only convective components

 q_c = each of j heat gain elements having only convective component The latent cooling load is calculated by Equation 1.9 (ASHRAE, 1993):

$$Latent Q_t = \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} (q_{c,n})$$
(1.9)

 q_c = each of n latent heat gain elements

Similar to the wall and roof conduction transfer function, the coefficients of the room transfer function imply the thermal response characteristics of a room. More discussion on the determination of the room transfer function coefficients will be continued in the next section.

• Calculate the heat extraction rate and room air temperature

When the space air temperature cannot be hold as a constant of the value of the indoor design temperature because of the limitation of the A/C system capacity, the actual heat extraction rate of the system can then be calculated by the transfer function method.

The heat extraction and the space air temperature can be expressed approximately by a linear relationship as Equation 1.10:

$$ER_{\theta} = W_{\theta} + (St_{\theta}) \tag{1.10}$$

where:

 ER_{θ} = heat extraction rate at time, θ

 $t_{r\theta}$ = the space air temperature at time, θ

W, S = A/C system characteristics parameters

From the cooling loads calculated based on a constant design indoor dry bulb temperature, the heat extraction rate and the space air temperature can be calculated by the space air transfer function as shown in Equation 1.11:

$$\sum_{i=0}^{l} p_{i} \left(ER_{\theta-\delta} - Q_{\theta-i\delta} \right) = \sum_{i=0}^{2} g_{i} \left(t_{r_{i}} - t_{r,\theta-i\delta} \right)$$
(1.11)

 g_i and p_i are the coefficients used in the space air transfer function. The discussion of choosing these coefficients will be discussed in more detail in the following section and Chapter II of this thesis.

Conduction Transfer Function Coefficients

As mentioned in the previous section, the first procedure during the cooling load calculation using transfer function method is to obtain the hourly heat gain through the building's exterior surfaces. In real life, the number of the material combinations of the wall or roof is huge. In order to represent all of these common wall or roof material combinations, the research project, RP- 472, was defined by the ASHRAE. The report of this project (Harris and McQuiston, 1988) described the procedure of wall and roof types grouping, important parameters selecting and the results applying.

In order to use a relatively small number of wall groups to represent all common wall combinations, a certain grouping method is employed in this project based on the defined error criteria used in RP-359 (Sowell, et al., 1984). In a same wall or roof group, the thermal characteristics, thermal lag and amplitude ratio, are supposed to be close to each other. This thermal characteristics can be affected by certain construction parameters, such as overall conductance, mass location and principle materials of the wall.

According to the procedure defined in the grouping procedure, the error criteria allows plus and minus one hour for the phase lag, plus zero percent and minus 20 percent for the amplitude ratio of error existing in the final results. The reason for keeping such a error range is that it "intended to lead to conservative results while keeping the number of groups reasonable" (Harris and McQuiston, 1988).

In the project RP-472, the thermal properties of about 2600 wall and 500 roof assemblies were studied. 41 wall groups and 42 roof groups were defined. The coefficients for each wall and roof group are list in the Table 26.13 and 26.18 in ASHRAE Handbook of Fundamentals (ASHRAE, 1993).

Room Transfer Function Coefficients

The latest available room transfer function coefficients are obtained from the results carried out by ASHRAE research project RP-472 (Sowell, 1988). By further study on the room thermal response characteristics, it was proved that the tabulated CLF and CLTD values listed in the ASHRAE - Fundamentals (1977,1981) had limitations with respect to a large range of zone constructions. Furthermore, certain geometry and construction parameters, which can affect the characteristic of room thermal response considerably, had not been taken into account (Sowell and Chiles 1984) due to the results of RP-138. Under this circumstance, the ASHRAE Load Calculation Technical Committee (TC 4.1) defined a research project (RP-472) to update the room weighting factors for a wider range of building constructions. The DOE-2 program was used to derive the zone weighting factor in this project and the procedure was described in the report created by Kerrisk (1981). To complete this task, an extra procedure, which was used to calculate the zone weighting factors and group the zones with similar thermal properties, has been implemented into the DOE-2 program. The detailed methodology employed in this process were also described in Kerrisk's report (1981).

According to the final results obtained from the RP-359, the zone weighting factors can be determined depending on 14 important zone parameters. They are:

- Room Geometry
- Room Height
- Exterior Wall
 Construction
- Number of
- Exterior Walls

- Roof Type
- Mid Floor Type
- Słab Type
- Floor Covering
- Partition Type
 - Ceiling Type

- Furniture
- Interior Shade
- Room Location
- Glass Percent

These zone parameters are interactive with each other. Some parameters are considered as "weak variables" and some as "strong variables". Some parameters can be either weak or strong relating to certain circumstances. For more discussion on the effect of each of these zone parameters, refer to the book" Heating Ventilating, and air conditioning Analysis and Design" by McQuiston and Parker (1994).

Space Air Transfer Function Coefficients

To calculate the heat extraction rate and room air temperature by using space air transfer function, appropriate space air transfer function coefficients need to be chosen properly depending on the building construction's mass level. In the ASHRAE Handbook (1993), three sets of coefficients are given for three different building mass levels, namely, light, medium and heavyweight, corresponding to 30,70 and 130 lb./ft² of floor area, respectively.

As mentioned by Barakat (1988), the mass level range covered in ASHRAE(1985) could not properly represent most of conventional wood-frame houses having a value of mass level generally between 10 and 12 lb./ft² of floor area, which is much lower than the range covered in the ASHRAE (1985).

In order to apply the space air transfer function properly to these low mass level buildings, experiments were carried out by Barakat, which had several test cases under an outdoor experimental facility. The experiment was designed to test the transfer function coefficients based on three different building mass levels, 9.4,26.6 and 110 lb./ft² of floor area. The methodology of determining the coefficients was described in the paper. Finally, the recommended data of space air transfer function coefficients used for buildings with low mass level are given in Table 1.1:

Coefficients	Exptl. light	Exptl. medium	Exptl. heavy
mass level (lb./ft ²)	9.4	26.6	110.0
g₀ (Btu/h-ft²-°F)	1.21	1.60	1.91
g_1 (Btu/h-ft ² -°F)	-1.27	-1.64	-2.00
g, (Btu/h-ft ² -°F)	0.06	0.04	0.09
p ₁	-0.58	-0.76	-0.90

 Table 1.1
 Experimental Space Air Transfer Function Coefficients

 for Wood-frame Houses

The "HVAC for Windows™" Program

The existing load calculation program, HVAC for Windows[™], was originally developed by Castelino in 1992. Castelino's thesis (1992) described the revised transfer function method in detail which had been implemented to calculate the building cooling load, system heat extraction rate and space air temperature calculation procedure.

Before the program can execute the design day cooling and heating load calculation, the user has to specify all necessary information, such as the building's location, construction, system control and infiltration, etc. When all calculation is done, the user can get the results of the hourly cooling load, heat extraction rate, and zone space air temperature from either graphical screen or out put files.

The design day direct and diffuse solar radiation calculation is based on the ASHRAE (1993) "Clear Sky" model. And the heat extraction rate and space air temperature calculation used the transfer function method which was described by the "Cooling and Heating Load Calculation Manual" (McQuiston and Spitler, 1992). The heat extraction rate calculation can handle a system's control profile with one set point temperature and a specified throttling range.

The HVAC program's built in data structures were also described by Castelino and will be discussed briefly in Chapter II of this thesis. All related data for a building are saved in the memory as a hierarchical linked list during the calculation procedure. The most primary part of the design day calculation is the elements cooling load calculation. The summation of the loads of all elements involved in a room make up the room loads, and the summation of all room loads makes the zone's load. Finally, the building's total loads are made up by the summation of all zone's loads. Sensible and latent cooling load calculations are performed separately.

The CLTD/SCL/CLF method, which is a simplification of the transfer function method is also discussed briefly in the thesis. The comparison between the results from the revised transfer function method and CLTD method was made with the purpose to validate the program's calculation results.

The Program Validation

As described by Judkoff and Neymark (1993), to evaluate a building energy simulation software, there are only limited ways to estimate the accuracy of the program. They are experimental, analytical and comparative evaluation approaches. They developed a validation procedure using a comparative approach, which is called "Building Energy Simulation Test (BESTEST) and Diagnostic Method". The BESTEST intends to evaluate the program to be tested by comparing the simulation results with other programs which are considered "to be better validated, or more detailed and presumably more physically correct". Generally, among building load calculation program the required input files are not the same. The purpose of the BESTEST is to create a uniform building description for a set of test cases and compare the results carried out by the testing software to the results by other software used in public domain.

There are 14 qualification test defined in the BESTEST. There are two series, 600 and 900 series which represented lightweight and heavyweight building construction, respectively. These cases were designed to test the ability of a building load software to

13

simulate "such features as windows at different orientations, horizontal and vertical external shading devices, set-back thermostats", etc. The test results includes the comparison of building annual total heating and cooling loads, peak heating and cooling loads and their corresponding occurring times.

Another important feature of the BESTEST, diagnostic flow diagram, provides a convenient way to trace possible problems in the testing software when large disagreement is encountered in the comparison results. The procedure of the BESTEST is carefully designed to test the thermal process simulation capability of the testing software. A test always begins with a base case. For low mass cases, the base case is the case 600. For high mass cases, the base case is the case 900. For all test cases, the comparison should be made on both the absolute results and the sensitivity (differential) results. When the results carried out by the testing software for a certain case have a reasonable agreement with other reference programs, that specific case is considered to be "PASS". If the testing results cannot pass for a certain case, the BESTEST diagnostic procedure can be applied to figure out the software's potential problem. For example, if the test procedure cannot pass the base case 600 for low mass case, then the diagnostic procedure A1 through A11 should be run to find out what the problem could be. For each diagnostic procedure, only a single thermal process simulation capability is tested. For instance, the diagnostic procedure "A1" only tests the exterior wall conduction heat transfer; the procedure "A6" only tests the infiltration heat gain and the procedure "A8" only tests the exterior solar absorbtance. Because each thermal process simulation capability is tested separately in the BESTEST diagnostic procedure, the encountered problem in the testing software can be easily tried out and isolated. Also, the corresponding modification can be considered to the testing software to fix the problem.

From the comparison results of the BESTEST, either the program end user or developer can tell if the results of the program is acceptable and decide which software can be used properly for their certain purpose.

14

1.3 Objective

The objective of this project is to add the following new features to the existing version of the HVAC program developed by Castelino (1992):

- 1. Add the capability of annual load simulation to the program based on the revised transfer function method. The annual simulation will be executed based on the user specified weather data file for a certain location.
- 2. Add the capability to calculate sensible and latent ventilation loads on the coil to the program.
- Modify the procedure of heat extraction rate calculation and make the program simulate an A/C system with two set point temperatures or with a set back operation period.
- 4. Modify the existing user interface to make the program meet the requirement of performing an annual energy analysis.
- 5. Connect the annual simulation results calculated by the HVAC program to the GLHEPRO program to perform the ground loop heat pump simulation.
- 6. Validate the annual simulation results carried out by the HVAC program.

Chapter II

Building Load Annual Simulation

2.1 Overview of HVAC Previous Version

The previous HVAC program has the capability to calculate the design day's building cooling load, heating load, and A/C system heat extraction rate based on the building description file defined by the user's input data. The cooling load calculation is based on the revised transfer function method and is performed on each building heat transfer or heat generation load component. In order to perform the load calculation, a hierarchical data structure has been built in the previous HVAC program to save intermediate calculation information and simulation results.

2.1.1 Design Day Cooling Load Calculation

The design day cooling load calculation in the previous HVAC program is based on the revised transfer function method. For the design day calculation, because there is no history information available, the program needs to iterate for convergence of results. The solar radiation model used in the design day cooling load calculation is ASHRAE "Clear Sky" model. The clearness of the sky is supposed to be I, which means very clear. The flow chart of the design day cooling load calculation procedure is shown in Figure 2.1.



Figure 2.1 Cooling Load Calculation by Transfer Function Method(McQuiston and Spitler, 1992)

2.1.2 Design Day Heat Extraction Calculation

The design day A/C system heat extraction rate calculation is performed on each zone. The input data for the extraction rate calculation function are the zone hourly total sensible cooling load and the system control profile. The previous HVAC program can only perform a system control profile, which has a single set point zone temperature. The zone space temperature is only allowed to float around this set point within a specified system throttling range. This limitation does not allow the program to analyze a system which has a "Dead Band" control profile. This feature will be modified in the new version of the HVAC program, and it will be discussed in section 2.2.

2.1.3 Data Structure Description

The major data structure to hold all building input data and important relative parameters is shown in figure 2.2. An outline description of the major data structure used in previous HVAC program is given in the following section.

In each building description (*.blg) file, data is saved based on four kinds of data structure; they are "building", "zone", "room", and "element" data structures. These data structures hold all of the information about the building necessary for program calculations. In addition, a "temporary" data structure is used to hold intermediate results.

Building Data Structure

The "building" data structure includes fields for the building's name, location(latitude, longitude, city and state), outdoor summer and winter design day conditions, solar radiation time alignment, and the cooling load calculation results for the design day. This data structure also includes some fields holding the intermediate calculation results like solar equation of time, declination, etc.



Figure 2.1 Hierarchy of the HVAC software program data structure(Castelino, 1992)

Zone Data Structure

In the HVAC program, a zone represents a conditioned space which is controlled by a single thermostat, and is assumed to have a uniform space air temperature. The "zone" data structure holds the information of the zone's indoor design day condition, HVAC system capacity and throttling range, calculation results of the design day cooling load and heat extraction rate, and zone infiltration and system schedule information.

Room Data Structure

In the HVAC program, the term "room" is defined as a conditioned space which is enclosed by the building constructions and hold all kinds of user defined load components, e.g. a single office, a single kitchen or a single classroom can all be defined as a room. The "room" data structure has the data of the room construction parameters and also the cooling load calculation results, such as hourly room sensible cooling loads, hourly room latent loads and hourly room total cooling loads.

Elements Data Structure

Data of various building load components, for example, wall, roof, infiltration, and lights, is stored in the same type of data structure - element data structure. Some fields in the data structure are only used for some specific types of building components. If it is a structure for wall, valid fields will involve wall type, wall actual U factor, wall area, etc. If it is a structure for infiltration, valid fields will involve the air change rate and schedule of the infiltration. Element data structures also include some fields which specify the necessary parameters used for transfer function method load calculations.

Temporary Data Structure

There is another important temporary data structure which holds all temporary information that is necessary during calculation procedures, such as hourly solar angles, local solar times, the intensity of the solar beam, diffuse radiation, and hourly summer

20

outdoor dry bulb temperatures. The room space air transfer function coefficients are also included in this data structure.

2.2 Modification on Design Day Heat Extraction Rate Calculation

The system heat extraction rate calculation in the previous version of the HVAC program is limited in that it can not analyze a HVAC system with two set point temperatures, with the zone space temperature floating between these two set points. In order to simulate a more realistic system which not only can have two set points, but also be allowed to have a set back period, the of heat extraction rate calculation procedure has been modified.

2.2.1 System With One Set Point Temperature

Generally, for a cooling system with a single set point temperature, the relationship between heat extraction rate and room air temperature can be represented approximately by a linear expression as shown below:

$$ER_{\theta} = W + S \times t_{r\theta} \tag{2.1}$$

Where:

 W and S: equipment parameters represent the performance of a A/C system
 ER_θ: Heat extraction rate at time, θ

 $t_{r\theta}$ Room air temperature at time, θ

This relationship can also be illustrated as in figure 2.3:



Figure 2.3: A/C System's Equipment Characteristic (with one set point)

Where:

ER_{max}: system maximum heat extracting capacity

ER_{min}: system minimum heat extracting capacity

 Δt_{u} : throttling range

t'_{r0}: thermostat set point temperature at time, θ , is chosen as the middle point of the system throttling range

The linear relationship expressed in equation 2.1 is supposed to hold when room air temperature lies in the system throttling range. When the room air temperature lies outside the throttling range, the rate of heat extraction will be equal to ER_{min} or ER_{max} . depending on whether the zone air temperature is above or below the range.

The S value represents the slope of the linear function, which can be calculated by:

$$S = \frac{ER_{\max} - ER_{\min}}{\Delta t_{\mu}}$$
(2.2)

The interception value of equation 2.1, W, is calculated by:

$$W = \frac{\left[ER_{\max} + ER_{\min}\right]}{2} - S \times t_{r\theta}^{*}$$
(2.3)

2.2.2 System With Two Set Point Temperature

Unlike the heat extraction rate calculation in the previous version of the HVAC program, the new version of the HVAC program provides a feature which allows the zone space temperature to float between two specified set point temperatures. It can also be considered as a combination of two "one set point" profiles. When the temperature is below the low set point, the system will add heat to the space, and when the temperature is above the high set point, the system will extract heat from the space. If the zone space temperature is between the two set points, the A/C system will be turned off, and the zone space temperature is allowed to float. The characteristic of system is illustrated in figure 2.4.

2.2.3 System Operation State Description

During the heat extraction rate calculating procedure, the system has the same throttling range for both heating and cooling. There are two set point temperatures defined for a single A/C system profile. One is for heating and another is for cooling.

Each set point temperature is the middle point of its respective throttling range. Under this definition, a system has five running states related to the value of zone air temperature as shown in Figure 2.5.



Figure 2.4 A/C Equipment Characteristic(with two set points)



Figure 2.5 System operation states illustration

State I: System is turned on with maximum heating capacity.

State II: System heating is turned on. The relationship between heat extraction rate and zone air temperature follows the equations as below:

$$ER_{\theta} = W_{h,\theta} + S_{h,\theta} \times t_{r\theta}$$
(2.4.1)

$$S_{h,\theta} = \frac{ER_{\max,h}}{\Delta t_{\mu}}$$
(2.4.2)

$$W_{h,\theta} = \frac{ER_{\max,h}}{2} - S_{h,\theta} \times t_{r\theta}^{*}$$
(2.4.3)

State III: System is turned off, and zone air temperature is allowed to float.

State IV: System cooling is turned on, and the relationship between heat extraction rate and room air temperature follows the equations as below:

$$ER_{\theta} = W_{c,\theta} + S_{c,\theta} \times t_{r\theta}$$
(2.5.1)

$$S_{c,\theta} = \frac{ER_{\max,c}}{\Delta I_{\mu}}$$
(2.5.2)

$$W_{\epsilon,\theta} = \frac{ER_{\max,\epsilon}}{2} - S_{\epsilon,\theta} \times t_{r\theta}^{*} \qquad (2.5.3)$$

State V: System turned on with maximum cooling capacity.

2.2.4 System Set Back Operation

The A/C system set back period definition is allowed in the new version of the HVAC program. Any A/C system can be scheduled to operate either in a normal operating state, or the set back state. For these two states, the system has two sets of different system control profiles described in the previous section. For example, during the normal operating state, the system lets the space air temperature float between 68°F and 80°F. During set back period, the space air temperature can float between 50°F and 90°F. If the user desires a period over which the system is totally turned off, then this period can be defined as a set back period which has a pair of extremely low and high set point temperatures, like 0°F and 200°F. Then the space air temperature can never reach that point so that the system will not be turned on at all during the period.

2.2.5 Space Air Transfer Function

The hourly system heat extraction rate and zone air temperature can be calculated by using the space air transfer function:

$$\sum_{i=0}^{i} p_{i} (ER_{\theta-i\delta} - Q_{\theta-i\delta}) = \sum_{i=0}^{2} g_{i} (t_{ri} - t_{r\theta-i\delta})$$
(2.6)

where:

g_i and p_i= the coefficients used in the space air transfer function
 Q = the cooling load calculated base on an assumed constant zone temperature t_{rc} at time θ

The normalized values of g's and p's can be found in the ASHRAE handbook of fundamental(1993). The values are given for three different categories of building envelope construction types; namely, light, medium and heavyweight construction, characterized by 30,70 and 130 lb./ft² of floor area. This range can represent most general building construction in current HVAC design tasks. However as pointed out by
Barakat(1987), for conventional wood frame houses with mass values as low as 10-12 lb./ft², (much lower than the value of the lightweight case listed in ASHRAE), the accuracy of applying the space air transfer function may deteriorate. An extra building construction level was added to the program to expand its energy analysis capability to buildings with very low mass levels.

In Barakat's paper, a series of experimental data of space air transfer function coefficients with three different building construction mass levels, 9.4,26.6 and 110 lb./ft² was presented. Barakat's values for a building with 9.4 lb./ft² are used as the "Extra Light" level for the HVAC program.

The complete coefficients value used in the HVAC program's space air transfer function are shown in Table 2.1:

Room Envelope Construction	g,	g Btu/h·ft²·°F	g ₂	P₀ Dimen	P1 sionless
Extra Light	+1.21	-1.27	+0.06	1.0	-0.58
Light	+1.68	-1.73	+0.05	1.0	-0.82
Medium	+1.81	-1.89	+0.08	1.0	-0.87
Heavy	+].85	-1.95	+0.10	1.0	-0.93

TABLE 2.1	The Normalized values of space ai	Γ
tran	sfer function coefficients	

2.2.6 Heat Extraction Rate and Space Air Temperature Calculation

From equations 2.6 and 2.1 in the previous sections, the following expression can be derived to calculate space air temperature:

$$t_{r\theta} = \left(I_{\theta} - ER_{\theta}\right) / g_{0,\theta} \tag{2.7}$$

where:

$$I_{\theta} = t_{rc} \sum_{i=0}^{2} g_{i,\theta} - \sum_{i=1}^{2} g_{i,\theta} t_{r\theta-i\delta} + \sum_{i=0}^{1} p_{i} Q_{r\theta-i\delta} - \sum_{l=1}^{1} p_{l} E R_{\theta-i\delta}$$
(2.8)

All terms involved in the right hand side of equation 2.7 and 2.8 are history terms, except the current heat extraction rate(ER_{θ}) in equation 2.7 and the current space air temperature, which also depends on the current value of the heat extraction rate.

The procedure of getting the current heat extraction rate and space air temperature is described below in detail.

a) Assume the system is totally turned off, namely, ER_{θ} is set to be zero. Use equation 2.7 to calculate out the space air temperature $t_{r\theta}$. If the $t_{r\theta}$ lies in the range of state III shown in the figure 2.5, then the heat extraction rate of the current hour will be zero. If $t_{r\theta}$ lies in the range below state III, then go to step b. If $t_{r\theta}$ lies in the range above state III, then go to step c.

b) In the case of $t_{r\theta}$ below state III from the step a, set the system heat extraction rate equal to the maximum system heating capacity($ER_{max,h}$), and find out the value of $t_{r\theta}$ by equation 2.7 again. If $t_{r\theta}$ lies in the range below state II, then set the heat extraction rate equal to $ER_{max,h}$ and stop. Otherwise, $t_{r\theta}$ will certainly be in the range of state II, and go to step e.

c) In the case of $t_{r\theta}$ above state III from the step a, set the system heat extraction rate equal to the maximum system cooling capacity(ER_{max,c}), and find out the value of $t_{r\theta}$ by equation 2.7 again. If $t_{r\theta}$ lies in the range above state IV, then set the heat extraction rate equal to ER_{max,c} and stop. Otherwise, $t_{r\theta}$ will certainly be in the range of state IV, and go to step e.

e) From the previous steps, it is already clear that the value of $t_{r\theta}$ will certainly lie in the range of state II or state IV. In both cases, the program will use a search method to find out the exact value of the heat extraction rate and space air temperature. The calculation procedure is shown in figure 2.6. Only the case of state II is described below, and the case of state IV follows a similar procedure. Figure 2.6 shows the algorithm. Symbols used in Figure 2.6 are defined as follows:

 T_{max} : the maximum space air temperature in the range of state II, which is the system low set point temperature plus half of the throttling range.

 T_{min} : the minimum space air temperature in the range of state II, which is the system low set point temperature minus half of the throttling range

T_{test}: test space air temperature during calculation

ER_{test} : calculated heat extraction rate value with current test space air temperature

Tresult : calculated space air temperature with ERrest

T_{high}: the high temperature of the current searching range

T_{low}: the low temperature of the current searching range

 Δ : the difference between T_{hugh} and T_{low}



Figure 2.6 The Heat Extraction Rate Calculation when the Floats in the System Throttling

2.2.7 Example on Heat Extraction Rate Calculation

The calculated zone cooling load based on a constant design zone temperature is given in Table 2.2 column 5. The zone summer design temperature is 70 °F. The A/C system is set to the normal operation state from 0600 to 2100 hours, and the zone temperature is allow to float between 68 °F and 70 °F. Between 2100 to 0600 hours, the system is set to set back state, and the zone temperature is allowed to float between 62 °F and 75 °F. System throttling range is 0.1 °F.

During heat extraction calculation, some important intermediate value are listed below:

• S and W:

Normal Operation Period: Low S = 50000; Low W = -3402500High S = 50000; High W = -3497500Setback Operation Period: Low S = 50000; Low W = -3102500High S = 50000; High W = -3747500

• System Operation States:

Normal Operation Period:

State I:	Less than 67.95 °F ·
State II:	67.95 °F ~ 68.05 °F
State III:	68.05 °F ~ 69.95 °F
State IV:	69.95 °F ~ 70.05 °F
State V:	Larger than 70.05 °F

Setback Operation Period:

State I:	Less than 61.95 °F
State II:	61.95 °F ~ 62.05 °F
State III:	62.05 °F ~ 74.95 °F
State IV:	74.95 °F ~ 75.05 °F
State V:	Larger than 75.05 °F

The heat extraction rate and zone space air temperature were calculated for this sample case, and the calculation results are listed in Table 2.2, column 6 and 7. For example, for 14th hour period, the system operation state is the "State IV" of normal operation period. The S and W values are 50000 and -3497500, respectively. The calculated value of the space air temperature is 69.9843674 °F. The heat extraction rate of that hour is 1678.72 Btu/h(= 69.9843674 * 50000 - 3497500).

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Hours	Set Back	L.S.P	H.S.P.	Cooling	Heat Extraction	Space Temp.
				Load	Rate	
	Yes/No	°F	٩F	Btu/hr	Btu/hr	F
1	Yes	62	70	-635.79	0	63.7244873
2	Yes	62	70	-684.6	0	62.950058
3	Yes	62	70	-715.3	0	62.2418213
4	Yes	62	70	-750.39	-105.705	62.0478859
5	Yes	62	70	-781.48	-227.775	62.0454445
6	Yes	62	70	-809.26	-329.055	62.0434189
7	No	68	70	-826.03	-1553.19	68.0189362
8	No	68	70	-699.62	-1267.47	68.0246506
9	No	68	70	-54.65	-522.84	68.0395432
10	No	68	70	147.28	-238.645	68.0452271
11	No	68	70	533.58	0	69.175766
12	No	68	7 0	801.78	215.38	69.9543076
13	No	68	70	976.79	490.035	69.9598007
14	No	68	70	2091.13	1679.075	69.9835815
15	No	68	70	2171.75	1824.415	69.9864883
16	No	68	70	1863.67	1571.505	69.9814301
17	No	68	70	672.93	429	69.95858
18	No	68	70	216.89	10.145	69.9502029
19	No	68	70	-4.46	0	69.002518
20	No	68	70	-133.79	0	68.2752304
21	No	68	70	-214.48	-66.225	68.0486755
22	Yes	62	70	-269.22	0	67.2720108
23	Yes	62	70	-314.87	0	66.7780151
24	Yes	62	70	-350.42	0	66.3122864

Table 2.2 Data and Calculation results for example 2.2.7

The Results of the calculated heat extraction rate compared with the cooling load are shown in Figure 2.7, and the space air temperature's profile is shown in Figure 2.8.

From the Figure 2.8, it is clearly shown that the zone space air temperature floats between 68°F and 70°F during the normal operating period, and between 50°F and 70°F during the set back period.



Figure 2.7 Heat Extraction Rate Results for the Example



Figure 2.8 Space Temperature Results for the Example

2.3 Annual Energy Analysis

There are two major calculation loops in the annual energy simulation. One is the month loop. During this loop, the program performs the annual simulation from the beginning month to the end month, which can both be specified by the user. Inside the month loop, there is another loop which is the day calculation loop. In this loop, the program performs the daily calculations from the beginning date to the ending date of that month. If the current month is either the beginning month or the end month, then the start and stop days may be specified by the user. Otherwise the daily calculations will be executed from the first day to the end day of that month. During the daily calculation loop, the cooling loads for 24 hours of each day are calculated by using the transfer function method.

The flow chart of the building annual cooling load calculation is illustrated in Figure 2.9.

2.3.1 Weather Data for the Annual Simulation

Outdoor weather information during a typical design year is recorded on a companion weather file for each specific design location. For a specific location, the HVAC weather data file is created by using BLAST(1992) "Weather Information File Encoder(WIFE) program" to process the weather data tapes. Raw weather data tapes obtained from the National Climatic Center of National Oceanic and Atmospheric Agency(NOAA) and other sources. The weather data file formats, such as "TRY", "TMY", "1440, T1440", "SOLMET" and etc., can be processed by the WIFE program. One hour is used as the time step in the HVAC weather data file. There are 8760 hours (365 * 24) in a typical year. The time period of 12:00 midnight to 1:00 am is defined as hour 1 in the weather file. Temperature is sampled at the midpoint of each hour. For each hour, the weather file contains the following data:

- outdoor dry bulb air temperature
- outdoor specific humidity
- beam solar radiation in normal direction
- diffuse solar radiation
- ambient ground reflective solar radiation

As mentioned above, there are 8760 hours in a standard year. In the annual energy simulation, the calculation is performed day by day. At the beginning of each day's calculation, the program finds out the reading position for the first hour of that day and then reads weather data for the next 24 hours. When the calculation of that day is done, the program reads the weather data of the next 24 hours and starts the calculation for the next day. Figure 2.9 is a flow chart for the annual analysis.



Figure 2.9 Annual Simulation Flow Chart

2.3.2 Solar Time Calculation

The time used in the weather file is standard local time. During the annual simulation, when daylight savings time is in effect, the program will convert it to local standard time first, and then calculate the actual hour position to extract the weather data from the weather file.

At the beginning of each daily calculation, the hour of the year is calculated first, in order to locate the correct position to extract the weather data from the companion weather file.

The hour calculation follows the steps below:

1)Determination of current month and current day:

Information is obtained from the loop accumulating value.

2)Calculate the number of days before the current month:

number of days before current month =
$$\sum_{i=0}^{current month-1} days in month[i]$$
(2.9)

where:

i: the month count;

days in month[i]: the regular day's number in month i,

e.g. days in month of January is 31 and of February is 28, etc.

3)Calculate the day's number before the current day:

number of days before current day = days before current month +

$$current \, day - l \tag{2.10}$$

4)Calculate hour count:

hour count = number of days before current day
$$*24$$
 (2.11)

5)Calculate the weekday information of the current day(which is used for schedule

assignment:

weekday = the remainder of (number of days before current day / 7) (2.12)

where: 0 stands for Sunday, 1 for Monday, 2 for Tuesday and so on.

The hour and weekday calculation is illustrated in the following example:

Hour Count and Weekday Calculation Example:

Suppose the current calculation date is June 21st. Find the hour count and the weekday information:

Solution:

- The day's number before current month is the summation of the days number in each month before, by using equation (2.9):
- day's number before current month = 31 + 28 + 31 + 30 + 31 = 151
- By equation (2.10), the day's number before current day is 151 + 21 1 = 170.
- Substitute 170 into equation (2.11), the hour count is 170 * 24 = 4080.
- From Equation (2.12), the value of weekday is 170 % 7 = 2, which represents
 Tuesday.

All necessary time information about the current day is calculated in the above procedure. The value of the hour count will be used to read weather data from the weather data file. The weekday value will be used to assign schedule to schedule load components and the zone A/C system.

2.3.3 Solar Irradiation Calculation

Differing from the procedure used in the design day calculation, the solar irradiation values in the annual simulation employ the source data from the weather file directly.

Weather data of solar irradiation from the weather data file includes:

- Solar beam radiation in normal direction (I_{ND})
- Solar diffuse radiation incident on horizontal surface ($I_{d,H}$)
- Ground reflected solar radiation (I_{GR})

In the design day solar irradiation calculation, the ASHRAE Clear Sky Model(1993) is employed to derive the values of the above three terms. For the annual simulation, these values are available directly from the weather file. For an exterior surface with a particular orientation, the beam radiation (I_D) on a certain surface is determined by

$$I_D = I_{ND} \cos\theta \tag{2.13}$$

where:

 θ : incidence angle of beam radiation on that surface for the mid-point of each hour period. If $\cos\theta \le 0$, then the beam radiation is treated as zero.

In the design day clear sky solar radiation calculation for a vertical surface, if the $\cos\theta$ is greater than -0.2, the ratio of the diffuse radiation incident on the surface to that on a borizontal surface with same area can be calculated by equation (Threlkeld, 1963):

$$Y = 0.55 + 0.437 \cos\theta + 0.313 \cos^2\theta \tag{2.14}$$

Otherwise the Y will be set to a constant value of 0.45. For the surfaces with any other tilt angle, Y value is calculated using an isotropic sky assumption:

$$Y = (1 + \cos \alpha)/2$$
 (2.15)

where:

 α : the surface tilt angle: 90° for vertical surface and 0° for horizontal.

During annual simulation, because the real weather data is applied instead of using clear day model, the Y value is calculated by using Formula 2.15 for surfaces with all tilt angles.

The diffuse radiation from sky incident on a surface (I_d) is

$$I_d = I_{d,H} * Y \tag{2.16}$$

Because the ground reflected solar radiation can be extracted directly from the weather data file, the diffuse radiation from ground incidenting on a surface(I_g) can be calculated by using the formula 2.17.

$$I_{g} = I_{GR} * (1 - Y)$$
 (2.17)

The total solar irradiation(I) on a specific surface will be calculated by the summation

$$I = I_{D} + I_{d} + I_{g}$$
(2.18)

The total solar irradiation on a certain surface is then used in the following equation (McQuiston and Spitler, 1992) to find out the surface hourly sol-air temperature(t_c).

$$t_{\epsilon} = t_{o} + \alpha \frac{I}{h_{o}} - \frac{\epsilon \Delta R}{h_{o}}$$
(2.19)

where:

t_o: the outdoor air dry bulb temperature

 α : the surface absorptance to solar irradiation;

 ε : the surface hemispherical emittance;

h_o: exterior combined surface coefficient;

 $\varepsilon \Delta R/h_o$: the longwave radiation factor;

When the hourly surface sol-air temperature is determined, it will be used in the wall conduction heat transfer calculation following the same procedure used in the design day cooling load calculation.

2.3.4 Daylight Saving Time Adjustment

Generally, in the United States, daylight saving time is supposed to begin on the first Sunday of April and terminate on the last Sunday of October. In the HVAC program,

it is always assumed that the first day of a year is Sunday. According to this assumption, the annual energy simulation will be executed under daylight savings time during the period between day count of 119 and 302, which represents the first Sunday in April and the last Sunday in October, respectively.

Whenever the daylight savings time is encountered at the day count of 119, during the annual energy simulation, the hour count, which is used to extract the weather data from the weather file, will be shifted one hour earlier to make the time alignment in the program compatible with that in the weather file. When daylight saving time is ended at the day count of 302, the hour count will be shifted one hour back to extract the weather data.

2.3.5 Heat gain, Cooling Load Calculation for the first day

Using the transfer function method to calculate heat gain and cooling load, some previous values are involved in the calculation. Obviously, however, for the first day of an annual simulation period no history data is available. Initially these data values are assigned to be zero. After the calculation for the first 24 hours is done, the values of the last few hours of that day are then used as the initial set of values for the next iteration on the first day calculation. The iteration is continued over the 24 hour period until the results converge to a steady periodic solution. This iteration procedure is used for all calculations on the heat gain and cooling load for the first day of an annual simulation.

In the annual simulation, when the calculation of the first day is completed, all history values become available from the previous results, and the iteration is no longer needed. In the annual simulation procedure, there is an identifier which indicates if the current calculation day is the first day of the simulation period. If it is, the program executes the iteration and checks the convergence, if it is not, program just takes the results of previous day and assigns it to the history terms.

41

2.3.6 System Coil Load Calculation

In the HVAC program, the system heat extraction rate calculation is based on the total sensible system coil loads. The system coil load is the summation of the space cooling load and some extra loads caused by system operation, such as heat gain from the fan motor and heat gain from outdoor fresh air due to ventilation. In this project, the sensible and latent heat gain due to ventilation are taken as part of the system coil load. In order to provide satisfactory IAQ, the outdoor fresh air is generally mixed with recirculated conditioned air and then supplied to the conditioned space. The minimum requirement of outdoor fresh air for certain representative buildings is discussed in Chapter 23, ASHRAE (1993). The ventilation air is generally treated by the A/C system, so the heat gain caused by ventilation is not a part of room heat gain. Therefore this part of heat gain should be added directly to the system coil load instead of space cooling load.

In the current HVAC program, the volumetric flow rate of outdoor air (ODA) can be defined for each zone. To define the ODA, the user needs to specify the maximum volume flow rate of the system total supply air, the maximum volume flow rate of outdoor fresh air, ventilation design day operation schedule and ventilation annual operation schedule. The ventilation schedule specifies the hourly fraction percentage of the peak amount of the outdoor air flow rate.

What need to be emphasized is that bringing in ODA generally introduces extra outside air to the space by electrical fan, that results in that inside room pressure being higher than that of ambient. Therefore, the part of infiltration may significantly reduced(ASHRAE, 1993). The interaction between a ventilation and infiltration involved in a single zone should be considered carefully during building description procedure.

The sensible and latent cooling loads calculation for ventilation follows the same procedure as infiltration calculation. The equation for calculating sensible cooling load due to ventilation is

$$Q_{\text{sensible}} = 1.10 * (T_o - T_i) * V$$
 (2.20)

where:

Q_{sensible}: The sensible cooling load due to ventilation (Btu/h)

- T_o : out door air dry bulb temperature (°F)
- T₁ : indoor constant design temperature (°F)
- V : volume flow rate of outdoor fresh air caused by ventilation (cfm)

The equation for calculating latent cooling load due to ventilation is

$$Q_{latent} = 4840 * (W_o - W_i) * V$$
 (2.21)

where:

Q_{latent}: The latent cooling load due to ventilation (Btu/h)

W_o : outdoor air specific humidity (lbmv/lbma)

W_i : indoor air design specific humidity (lbmv/lbma)

When the value of Q_{latent} is positive, it will be added to the system cooling load. Otherwise, it will be added to the system heating load.

The hourly ventilation sensible and latent cooling loads are calculated for each zone and then added to the zone sensible and latent cooling loads, respectively, to make up the zone system coil sensible and latent cooling loads.

The one problem with this approach is that it assumes a fixed indoor air specific humidity. In actuality, the humidity may float up or down. The actual humidity level depends on the infiltration, ventilation, internal latent heat gain, water adsorption/absorption in the building mass, and the heat pump operating characteristics. A more detailed model could be utilized to better estimate the latent coil loads. This is an area for future research.

2.3.7 Summary on the Annual Simulation Results

In order to prepare the final report of a building annual energy simulation, results need to be collected during the simulation. The following information was extracted from the calculation:

- Zone total cooling load (heat extraction rate plus latent cooling load) for each month
- Zone peak hourly cooling and heating load and corresponding times of occurrence
- Building total monthly cooling load
- Building peak hourly cooling and heating load and corresponding times of occurrence
- Building peak hourly load for each month

In HVAC program, a zone is defined as a conditioned space which is controlled by a single thermostat. The hourly cooling or heating load results for each zone will be different with each other. Therefore, the peak load occurring time for a single zone may or may not be the same for the whole building.

The building total monthly cooling and heating load and the peak hourly load for each month will be used to create ".GLL" file, which will be used directly as the GLHEPRO (Spitler, et al., 1996) input data file to simulate the ground loop heat exchanger performance.

2.4 On Line Global Schedule Library

2.4.1 Load Schedule and System Schedule Overview

In order to perform the annual energy analysis, miscellaneous load components' schedules have to be taken into account during the calculation. In contrast to the design day calculation, the schedule for the annual simulation may become much more complicated and realistic. The load schedule is the schedule related to the building loads components, while the system schedule is the schedule related to the A/C system control profile. To define a schedule for an entire year, a hierarchical schedule data structure is

established which can extract from and save schedule data to a global schedule library. The global schedule library could be categorized into annual, weekly and daily libraries.

2.4.2 Annual Schedule Library

For the annual building load calculations, each element has a field for holding a name of an annual schedule. An annual schedule is defined by the user and is stored in the annual schedule library. The schedules saved in the annual schedule library are globally useable.

The data structure which is used to hold an annual schedule data is defined below in "struct.h" file:

typedef struct

{

char	name[20];
int	<pre>begin_date[4], end_date[4];</pre>
char	week_schedule_name[4][20];
HANDLE	hNext;

} annual_schedule;

The first field, "name", holds the name of a specific annual schedule. The number of characters for a schedule's name could be as many as 20.

An annual schedule can have as many as four periods of time with different weekly schedules. These four time periods can not be overlapped. For each time period, the user should define a beginning date (month and day) and an ending date. Beginning and ending dates are transferred to an integer number of days count ($0 \sim 365$) and saved in the fields of "begin_date" and "end_date" in the annual schedule data structure.

Also, for each time period, there is a field which can hold the name of a weekly schedule. This field is defined as a matrix type which can save four names of different weekly schedules for different time periods.

Annual schedules are extracted from the annual schedule library at the beginning of the execution of the program. During the program running time, the annual schedule exists as a linked list of annual schedule structures, and user can add new schedules to the list or delete schedules from the list. Before the termination of the program, if the schedule list is changed during the current execution, the user will be prompted if the schedule needs to be saved. If the answer is "Yes", the global annual schedule library will be updated.

2.4.3 Weekly Schedule Library

As mentioned above, the annual schedule can hold as many as four different time periods, and for each time period, the weekly schedule is different. In the annual schedule data structure, these different weekly schedule are represented by the names of the weekly schedule.

Similar to the annual schedule, the weekly schedule holds a different schedule name for each day of a week. There are seven days in a week, from Monday to Sunday, and for each of them, the user can define a daily schedule name for that specific day.

The data structure of a weekly schedule is outlined below in the "struct.h" file:

typedef struct

ł

```
char name[20];
char day_schedule_name[7][20];
HANDLE hNext;
```

```
} week_schedule;
```

The "name" field holds the name of each weekly schedule. For each different week day, the weekly schedule also saves a daily schedule name in a field of matrix type.

The data of weekly schedules are stored in the weekly schedule library. During the starting of the program, weekly schedule data are extracted from the global library and stored in the weekly schedule's linked list. When necessary, the user can define new weekly schedules to the linked list. When the user intends to delete a weekly schedule from the linked list, the program will check if this weekly schedule is currently used by any higher level schedule (annual schedule). If it is used by any annual schedule, the delete action will not be allowed. This protection is necessary, because during the annual simulation, schedule load elements just hold the name of a annual schedule, and from this point, program has to find out all weekly schedules and then the daily schedules for this annual schedule. Only the daily schedule holds the value of each schedule's hourly fraction which will be used in load calculation.

When the program is terminated, all weekly schedules in the weekly schedule linked list can be saved to the weekly schedule library if the user wants to update the schedule library.

2.4.4 Daily Schedule Library

The daily schedule is the most basic schedule. It is used directly in the load calculation procedure to determine the actual load of an element or the state of an air-conditioning system.

There are two different types of daily schedules in the HVAC program. One is for the building element's cooling load calculation-"load daily schedule", and another is for the heat extraction rate calculation-"system daily schedule".

A load daily schedule for cooling load calculation holds the percent value of each hour based on the element's peak load. For example, if the user defined a "light" type element with a peak load of 100 Btu per hour, and the schedule percent value of hour 19:00 is 50, than for the hour 19:00, the actual element's load is 50 Btu per hour, and so on.

The system daily schedule for the heat extraction rate calculation hold the state parameter of the system for each hour of a day. There are two different states of an airconditioning system defined in the HVAC program. One is normal operating state, and another is set back state.

2.4.5 Schedule Library Scope Discussion

In the current development of the program, the global schedule library is shared by all buildings which are currently opened by the HVAC window. If the user deleted some schedules from the global library, and the schedule is used by another building simulation, then when the user begins the calculation of that building, the HVAC program will tell the user that some schedule used by the current building does not exist in the global schedule library. Then the user must define the schedule again.

Chapter III

User Interface Modification

3.1 Overview of User Interface Modification in HVAC

The HVAC load calculation program was originally developed under Microsoft WindowsTM environment. A convenient way is provided for the user to input building description data and to specify an execution command through a graphical user interface. In order to perform an annual simulation, some extra data need to be defined by the user through user interface. In addition to the existing user interface in the old version of the HVAC program, some new features are added to complete the building annual energy simulation.

3.2 Dialog Boxes serving Main Application Window

3.2.1 Annual Simulation Setup Dialog Box

The annual simulation setup dialog box is shown in Figure 3.1.

The user should specify the simulation period, weather file and reporting level before executing the building annual cooling load simulation. The major fields in the annual simulation setup dialog box are described below:

"Simulation Period" Edit Group:

The HVAC program has the capability to perform a annual simulation of a typical year from January 1st to December 31st But for the convenience of the user, who might

like to perform a partial annual simulation, a specific period can be defined by specifying the simulation beginning date and ending date. The program can also check if the simulation period is defined properly by the user.

"Weather File" Specification Group:

In order to perform an annual simulation, the name of a weather file has to be specified by user. The weather file can be located from the current directory or any other directory.

Reports :	⊖ Hourty	Monthly
Simulation	Period	Weather File
	Month: Day:	Name: tuitmy.wea
From:	Jan. 🚺 1	Selected from:
το:	Dec. 31	tultmy.wes
		[-@-]
57		

Figure 3.1 Annual Simulation Setup Dialog Box

"Create .gll File" Check Box:

If this button is checked, a ".gll" file, which holds the results of building monthly loads information, will be created automatically after the annual simulation. But an entire year simulation period is required to create a ".gll" file. The ".gll" file is used by the GLHEPRO program(Spitler, 1996).

"Start Simulation" Button:

After the user click this button, the program will begin to execute the annual simulation. The simulation period and the weather file are according to the fields "Simulation Period" and "Weather File", respectively.

"Close" Button:

If the user has defined all items in the annual setup dialog box and prefers not to execute the annual simulation right away, the user can click the "Close" button. The program will then save all options and go back to the main window.

3.2.2 Annual Simulation Results Dialog Box

The annual simulation results are displayed in the dialog box shown in Figure 3.2. This dialog box just displays the annual simulation results, but does not accept any input data.

	Zone Ne	ame:	BUILDING	2
Month	Heating Load 1000 Btu	Coalii 100	ng Load 10 Btu	7 Peak Heating Load
Jen.	517.07	16	2.43	-2213.88 Blu/hr
Feb.	334.57	13	4.69	10
Mor.	83.88	28	8.87	JAN. 12, 8:00
Apr.	71.87	38	1.26	
Мау	9.90	66	6.05	Peak Cooling Load
Jun,	0.00	91	7.67	2843.34 Btu/h
Jul.	0.00	107	74.00	D
Aug.	0.00	99	3.56	OCT. 22, 15:00
Sep.	3.92	71	5.47	
0æ	23.61	65	2.66	Kelp
Nov.	113,23	30	9.08	Valid Walker and Anno 1994
Dec.	418.61	21	6.21	Close

Figure 3.2 Annual Simulation Dialog Box

The monthly total heating and cooling loads of the building are the main results for an annual simulation. In the HVAC program, since the term "Zone" is defined as a space which hold a same space temperature and a unique A/C system, the total monthly loads of each zone may also be of interest to the user.

The annual simulation results displayed in the dialog box shows the total monthly cooling and heating load of the building and zones contained in that building. The peak heating and cooling loads with their occurring time are also displayed in this dialog box.

3.3 Dialog Boxes serving Zone Child Window

3.3.1 Ventilation Setup Dialog Box

The ventilation calculation for a zone is one of the new features implemented in the new version of the HVAC program. The ventilation setup dialog box is shown in Figure 3.3.

North Z	one's Vent	liation	
System Supply Air	Flow Role	300 8	
Out Daor Air	Flow Rate:	30.0	_ CFM
Annual Schedule:	Continuous		(CD)
Design Day Schedule:	Continuous		EDIT
theip	Citint al		OK

Figure 3.3 Ventilation Setup Dialog Box

To describe the ventilation characteristic of a zone, the user needs to define the following items:

<u>System Supply Air Flow Rate</u>: Defined as the air flow rate supplied by zone A/C system. <u>Out Door Air Flow Rate</u>: Defined as the flow rate of outdoor fresh air introduced to the space by ventilation.

Annual Schedule: the name of a ventilation annual schedule.

Design Day Schedule: the name of a ventilation design day schedule.

The reason for separating the ventilation schedule from the zone A/C system schedule is that ventilation represents the operation of fan, while A/C system represents the operation of system's cooling or heating.

3.3.2 Zone Heat Extraction Dialog Box

To calculate the zone heat extraction rate using a space air transfer function, the zone construction type and system characteristics have to be defined in the zone heat extraction dialog box. The box is shown in Figure 3 4.

The major fields in the zone heat extraction dialog box are described below: <u>Room Envelope Construction</u>:

In this field, the user needs to define the construction type of the zone. There are four different radio buttons in this field to specify "Extra light construction", "Light construction", "Medium construction" and "Heavy construction".

Heat Extraction Capacity:

The maximum and minimum cooling load capacities are defined in this field. If the value of minimum cooling load is negative, it represents the maximum heating capacity of the A/C system.

System Throttling:

For each A/C system, one throttling range value has to be defined to calculate the heat extraction rate. It is recommended that this value be larger than $0.1 \,^{\circ}$ F. Otherwise the convergence of the results of the heat extraction rate may become difficult.

CExtre light c	onstruction	
Light constr	uction	O Heavy construction
leat Extraction	Capacity	
Max. : 100000	.00 BTU/hr	Min.: -100000.00 8TU
Syst	em Throttling	0.10 F
A/C System Sc	hedule ——	
Design Day	Daily Sys. Sc	zhd #1
Annual	Annual Sys. S	Schd #1

Figure 3.4 Zone Heat Extraction Dialog Box

A/C System Schedule:

In this field, the user can select the names of the A/C system annual and design day schedules from the schedule list boxes. If the schedule requires any modification, then the user can click the "Edit" button and go to the annual or design day schedule editor dialcg box.

3.4 Dialog Boxes Serving Schedule Editing

There are several dialog boxes designed for the purpose of editing schedule in the schedule library. They are annual, weekly, daily load and daily A/C system schedule edit dialog boxes. These dialog boxes are shown in Figure 3.5 to 3.8.

There are some common fields used in these dialog boxes, they are "New", "Save", "Save As" and "Delete" buttons.

"New" button:

The user can click this button to add a new schedule to the schedule library. After this button is clicked, the dialog box will clear all fields and let the user describe the new schedule. When the user finish the schedule description, he can click the "Save As" button and give the new schedule a proper name. After the "New" button is clicked, the "Save" button will be disabled. The reason is that the new schedule can not be saved to the library before a proper name has been assigned.

"Save" button:

When a specific schedule is selected, user can modify the value in the editing fields. After the modification is finished, the user has to click the "Save" button to save it. Otherwise, the modification will not be saved for that schedule permanently.

"Save As" button:

This button is clicked when the user defines a new schedule or want to save an existing schedule in a different name. The user then has to provide a proper name in the new schedule dialog box, and click "OK". The schedule with the new defined name will be saved in the global schedule library.

"Delete" button:

This button allows the user to delete a schedule from schedule library. If a lower schedule is currently being used by a higher level schedule in the library, then this lower level schedule can not be deleted directly. A warning message box will show up to stop the delete procedure, if the user tries to delete it.

55

3.4.1 Annual Schedule Edit Dialog Box(Figure 3.5)

Annual Schedule edit dialog box can be used for editing both annual load and A/C system schedule library.

In the annual schedule edit dialog box, the user can modify or delete an existing schedule or create a new in the annual schedule library. The major fields in the annual schedule edit dialog box are described below:

Weekly Schedule for different periods of a year:

The user can define a maximum of four different weekly schedule periods in a year. For each weekly schedule period, the user needs to specify a weekly schedule name, beginning and ending date of that period. The time periods during a year cannot be overlapped, but the order of the periods can be defined in any way.

	a) Schedule Name : An	nual	Scho	#4			
WEEKIY SCI	iedule for amerent periods of		Bar	Fro	m.	Τo	
	Weekly Schedule Nome:		Mor	ith:	Day:	Month:	Day:
Period 1:	Weekly Schd #1		Jan.		1	Mar. 🗶	31
Period 2:	Weekly Schd #2		Apr.		1	Jun,	30 🔮
Period 3:	Weekly Schd #3		July	C.	1	Sept. 🔮	3D 🔮
Period 4:	Weskly Schol #4		0 <i>c</i> l.		1	Dec.	31
Annual Sche	dule Library	b//S	chedi 1	Note	e: The p	eriods of a	VEDI
Annual Scho Annual Scho	Now			C	an not b	e overlapp	ied II
Annual Scho						Help	

Figure 3.5 Annual Schedule Edit Dialog Box

Modify Weekly Schedule:

If the user wants to modify the weekly schedule which is currently highlighted in the annual schedule edit dialog box, he can click on this button and the program will open the weekly schedule edit dialog box. When the modification is finished, the program will return to this annual schedule edit dialog box and will set the highlight back to the weekly schedule which was highlighted before modification.

3.4.2 Weekly Schedule Edit Dialog Box(Figure 3.6)

Neekly Schedule	Name: Weekly Schol #4
Daily Schedule	Name
Monday:	Deily Schd #1 🗱
Tuesday:	Daily Schd #1
Wednesday:	Daily Schd #1
Thursday:	Daily Schd #1
Friday:	Daily Schd #4
Saturday:	Daily Schd #4
Sunday:	Daily Schd #4
	Modily Delly Schedule
Week Schedule	Library
Continue	
Continue Weekly Schd #1 Weekly Schd #2	

Figure 3.6 Weekly Schedule Edit Dialog Box

Weekly schedule edit dialog box is used for editing both load and A/C system weekly schedule library. The major fields in the weekly schedule edit dialog box are described below:

Daily Schedule Name:

For a weekly schedule, daily schedule name for each weekday needs to be defined. If a load weekly schedule is being edited, daily schedule name will be selected from the daily load schedule library. If a A/C system weekly schedule is being edited, daily schedule name will be selected from the daily A/C system schedule library.

Modify Daily Schedule:

If the user want to modify the daily schedule which is currently highlighted in the weekly schedule edit dialog box, he can click this button to enter load or A/C system daily schedule edit dialog box. When modification is finished, the program will return to this weekly schedule edit dialog box and will set the focus back to the daily schedule which was highlighted before modification.

3.4.3 Daily Load Schedule Edit Dialog Box(Figure 3.7)

For a daily load schedule, the user needs to define the fraction value for each hour which multiples to the peak load of the load components or ventilation. There are 24 scroll bars in the load daily schedule edit dialog box. Whenever the 24 fraction values are defined properly, the user can click on the "Save" button and save the schedule to the global library. The user also can click the "New" button to create a new load daily schedule.

		. De	ity Load Se	iedule t	dit Winde	w	
		Schedule Name :		Daily Schd #4			
Hour	Fraction	0	1	Hour	Fraction	0	1
00-0 1	0.00			12-13	0.50		
01-02	0.00			13-14	0.50		
02-03	0.00			1 4-15	0,50		
03-04	0.00			15-16	0.50		
04-05	0.00			16-17	0.50	65	
05-06	0,50			17-18	0.50		
06-07	D.50		// File 2000 (C)	18-19	0.50		
07-08	0.50			19-20	0.00	62	
06-09	0.50			20-21	0.00		
09-10	D.50		*** * ***	21-22	0.00	い際	
10-11	0.50			22-23	0.00		
11-12	0.50			23-00	0.00		
Г	Daily Schi	edule Li	brary ———				
Continue Daily Schd #1							
	Daily Sch	0#2 d#3					Haip
	Daily Sch	d #4	:	New Contractory			
	2810			Delete			Dune

Figure 3.7 Daily Load Schedule Edit Dialog Box

3.4.4 System Daily Schedule Edit Dialog Box(Figure 3.8)

For a system daily schedule, the user needs to define the system operation state of a A/C system for 24 hours. There are two different system operation state for each hour, which are "Normal Set" and "Set Back". The user also needs to specify the high and low set point temperatures for both "Normal Set" and "Set Back" operation states, and these values can be specified in the fields "Set Point Temperature" and "Set Back Temperatures". The high and low set point temperatures have to be defined properly by 3.5 Plotting Procedure Modification

A LOW MUSIC TO A LOW

3.5.1 Error Fixing for Original Program's Plot Procedure

input value.

In the original version of the HVAC program, there were several serious errors that showed up during plotting procedure. The phenomenon and fix for these errors are described in the following sections.

the user. In other word, the low set point temperature can never be higher than the high

set point temperature. Otherwise, a message box will show up to let the user modify the

System memory resource consumed during plotting procedure:

The reason for this is that the program does not delete the object properly after creating it for painting. A painting object has to be deleted immediately after using it, otherwise the system memory will never be freed up even after the application terminates. The new version of the HVAC program can handle this properly, and whenever a plot window is closed, the memory being used will be released immediately.

The bit map picture could not show up on the window at correct position:

This is because the position calculation of a bit map was based on absolute window dimension values in the old HVAC program. If the system display setting(like resolution or font) is changed, the previous position calculation will not be able to handle this situation. The solution for this problem is that relative window dimension values be used whenever a bit map position needs to be calculated.



Figure 3.8 System Daily Schedule Edit Dialog Box

3.5.2 Plotting Zone Monthly Load Results

In order to show the results of an annual simulation, in the zone window, a plot child window is designed to show the zone monthly results. Monthly total heating and cooling load are displayed in bars with different colors. If the user's mouse pointer points to a particular monthly load bar, the corresponding month and load value of that month will be shown up in the message box on the bottom left corner of the plot window.

This plot window also displays the zone peak heating and cooling loads of that typical simulation year.

3.6 Recommendation on Further User Interface Modification

The user interface designed in the current version of the HVAC program has met the necessary functionality to let the user complete a building annual energy simulation. And most of the simulation results can be read directly from the interface in a convenient way. Most building description tasks can be done by mouse clicking In order to make the program have more functionality which can be demanded for a standard Windows[™] program, some recommendations are given below for further modification on the HVAC load calculation program's user interface.

Using MDI instead of SDI

Make the current window to a multiple document interface(MDI) style. The current HVAC window is in single document interface(SDI) style. A building which is currently opened is represented by a icon. If there are several buildings opened at the same time, the switch among these buildings can be done by clicking different building's icons. But when the zone, room or even elements child windows are also opened for some of these buildings, the relationship of these child windows will not be very clear, and leads to making mistakes easily in such a SDI environment. If MDI environment is used instead of SDI, a building is represented as a single document window in the client area, and only one document window is active at any time. Then the logical relationship among building documents will become much more clear. If a building document window is minimized, all related child windows of that specific building will also disappear from the client area.
Chapter IV

Validation with BLAST

4.1 Overview

In order to validate the building energy simulation results calculated by the HVAC program, several validation procedures were performed in this project. Three special test cases were designed to validate the results of both annual and design day building load calculation. They are:

- 1. A test zone with a single room which includes only one exterior wall, and a constant zone air temperature
- Load calculation for a real building case which is a two story motel located in Tulsa, Oklahoma
- 3. BESTEST (Judkoff, et al., 1993) cases involves a more complicated zone. The zone which is located at the top floor includes four exterior walls and a roof. Infiltration and internal equipment loads are also specified. The A/C system served for this zone allows the space air temperature in the zone floating between 68 °F and 80.6 °F. System set back procedure is also performed for these test cases.

The first two validation cases will be discussed in detail in this chapter, and the BESTEST cases will be discussed in chapter V.

4.2 Test on a zone with a single exterior wall

To validate the results carried out by the HVAC program, that uses the transfer function method to perform the building load calculation, the first thing that needs to be focused on is the conduction heat transfer through exterior walls. To eliminate the effects of other load components, the test cases of a zone with a single exterior wall was designed. The test zone is located on the mid-floor of a fictitious building so that there is no heat transfer through the floor and the roof. Furthermore, there are no other building loads in this test zone. Corresponding to a certain design day condition and annual weather data, both design day and annual simulation results calculated by HVAC for Windows[™] were compared with the results from BLAST(1991a, 1991b), another building load analysis program which uses heat balance method to perform the building load calculation. BLAST is widely considered to be one of the most accurate building load calculation programs. Empirical validation studies have been reported by Bauman (1983), Carroll (1983), Robertson (1985) and Yuill (1984).

4.2.1 Test Building Setup

A test building which represents equivalent conditions between BLAST and HVAC for Windows is defined as follows:

Building's Location:

Tulsa, Oklahoma longitude: 95.9 degree latitude: 36.2 degree Time Zone: 6

Design Day Weather Conditions:

July, 21 (Monday)

Out Door Air High Temperature = $98.0 \,^{\circ}$ F Out Door Air Low Temperature = $74.0 \,^{\circ}$ F Wet Bulb Temperature = $75.0 \,^{\circ}$ F Pressure = $400 \,^{\circ}$ in. H₂O Wind Speed = $788.2 \,^{\circ}$ f/m at direction 0 degree 97.0 percent clear sky

Building Geometry Description:

Floor Area: 15x15 ft² Ceiling Height: 10 ft Zone Location: Middle floor

Building Components Description:

Exterior Wall: Test Wall Types (Wall types 1,5,11 and 17) Partition Wall: 3" Batt Insulation with plaster board on both sides Floor: Midfloor type with light weight Roof: Midfloor Ceiling without suspended ceiling

Zone Control System Profile Description:

Max. Heat Extraction Capacity: 100000 Btu/hr Min. Heat Extraction Capacity: -100000(Heating) Btu/hr Zone Set Point Temperature: 68 °F(constant) System Throttling Range: 0.05 °F

Annual Simulation Information:

The weather file used for BLAST is "Tultmy.wea", a TMY weather file for Tulsa for a typical year. In HVAC annual simulation, local weather data is extracted from BLAST weather report file, "Tultmy.wot", for the purpose of comparison.

4.2.2 Wall type discussion

Different wall types are used in this single wall test cases. Wall types (1,5,11,17) listed in "Cooling and Heating Load Calculation Manual" (McQuiston and Spitler, 1992) are chosen as sample walls. The layer description of these sample walls is shown in the Tables 4.1 through 4.4.

Layers	Layer Description	R value("F.ft ² .h/Btu)			
A3(inside)	Steel siding	0			
B1	Air space resistance	0.91			
B13	4 in. insulation	13.33			
A3(outside)	Steel siding	0			
Total R Value		14.24			
Total U Value		0.0702			
Outer Solar Absorptance		0.2			
Outer Surface Rough	ness	Smooth			

 Table 4.1
 Material Distribution for Wall Type 1

 Table 4.2
 Material Distribution for Wall Type 5

Layers	Layer Description	R value(°F ft ² .h/Btu)			
A6(inside)	Finish	0.17			
B21	1.36 in. insulation	4.5			
C7(outside)	8 in. Lightweight concrete block	2.0			
Total R Value		6.67			
Total U Value		0.1499			
Outer Solar Absorpt	ance	0.65			
Outer Surface Rough	iness	Rough			

Table 4.3 Material Distribution for Wall Type 11

Layers	Layer Description	R value(°F.ft ² .h/Btu)
El(inside)	3/4 in. Plaster or gypsum	0.15
C8	8 in. Heavyweight concrete block	1.11
B6	2 in Insulation	6 67
Al (outside)	1 in. Stucco	0.21
Total R Value		8.14
Total U Value		0.1229
Outer Solar Absorpt	ânce	0.92
Outer Surface Rough	ness	Smooth

Table 4.4	Material	Distribution	for	Wall Type	17
-----------	----------	--------------	-----	-----------	----

Layers	Layer Description	R value(F.fl ² h/Btu)			
A2(inside)	4 in. Face brick	0.43			
C2	4 in. Lightweight concrete block	1.51			
B15(outside)	6 in Insulation	20.00			
Total R Value		21.94			
Total U Value		0 0456			
Outer Solar Absorpta	ance	0.5			
Outer Surface Rough	uness	Very Rough			

The layers of these wall types described in the above tables do not include the effects of wall's exterior and interior surface combined-coefficients. In HVAC program, all wall and roof's interior surface combined-coefficients are chosen as a constant, equal to 1.46 Btu/hr.ft².°F. For Exterior surface, the constant combined-coefficient 3.0 Btu/hr.ft².°F is used under all circumstances. In BLAST, the outer surface convective coefficient is a variable that changes with outdoor wind speed and material texture. For comparison

purposes, the exterior surface combined-coefficient is modified during HVAC simulation cases corresponding to different testing conditions.

4.2.3 Exterior Surface Combined Coefficient Setting

To make the test conditions in both BLAST and HVAC simulation as close as possible, the constant value of exterior surface coefficient in the HVAC program was modified depending on the different outer surface material roughness and design outdoor wind speed.

In BLAST program, the ASHRAE(1993) model, which is curve fit formula based on a second order polynomial was used to calculate the exterior surface pure convective coefficient, and the independent variable is outdoor wind speed. The formula has the form(Judkoff, 1993):

$$h_{o} = a_{1} + a_{2} \times V + a_{3} \times V^{2}$$
(4.1)

where:

h_o: exterior surface convective coefficient (W/m².K) a₁,a₂,a₃: curve fit coefficients related to outer surface texture V: outdoor wind speed (m/s) The "a" coefficients are shown in the table 4.5(Judkoff, 1993):

The exterior surface convective heat transfer coefficients calculated by Equation 4.1 using design day wind speed is listed in table 4.6, and these values are approximately used as exterior surface combined coefficients in the HVAC annual and design day building load simulations. In the BLAST program, the exterior radiant heat exchange are calculated separately. The results of Equation 4.1 only represents the surface exterior pure convective coefficients. The reason of eliminating the effects of the radiation part is that,

Maternal Roughness	aı	â2	â3
Very Rough	11.58	5.894	0.0
Rough	12.49	4.065	0.028
Med. Rough	10,79	4.192	0.0
Med. Smooth	8.23	4.0	-0.057
Smooth	10.22	3.1	0.0
Very Smooth	8.23	3.33	-0.036

Table 4.5	Coefficients for	Calculating	Exterior	Convective	Heat	Transfer	Coefficient
		0					

when air speed becomes relatively large, the relative effect of the surface exterior radiation heat exchange will diminish. This approximation is suitable for the comparison purposes in this specific project.

Table 4.6	Exterior	Combined	Coefficient	Values for	Different	Wall Types

Wall Type	Out Surface Roughness	Wind Speed	Ex. Surf Coeff.
		(fl/min)	(Btu/tv.ft ² F)
Wall type 1	Smooth	788.2 (4.0 m/s)	3 9834
Wall type 5	Rough	788.2 (4.0 m/s)	5.1418
Wall type 11	Smooth .	788.2 (4.0 m/s)	3.9834
Wall type 17	Very Rough	788.2 (4.0 m/s)	6.1910

4.2.4 Validation Procedure

Based on the building description and ambient conditions discussed above, both BLAST and HVAC program are used to execute the design day and annual cooling load simulation for each exterior wall type. For each wall type, the wall facing angle was also changed(South, North, East and West) so that the effect of solar radiation on the calculated cooling load through the exterior wall can be tested.

• Some explanation for BLAST input:

While using BLAST to perform the test simulation, each layer of the wall is defined as a temporary material. The reason for doing this is to make the comparison condition between BLAST and HVAC as close as possible. A temporary control profile is also defined in the BLAST input to keep the zone space temperature as a constant (68 °F) for both design day and annual simulation period. In BLAST, the floor area should be defined to obtain correct cooling load calculation results based on the heat balance method. Partition wall, mid floor and ceiling are not heat transfer building load components, but heat storage components in BLAST. In BLAST test case input file, the only heat transfer component for the whole zone is an exterior wall. For different wall type tests, the exterior wall's facing angle is modified in the BLAST ". bin" file. The BLAST program is run based on each corresponding bin file.

Some explanation for HVAC program input data:

Room parameter definition:

For this specific test case, the only load element defined in the HVAC program is a exterior wall. The partition, floor and other internal heat storage components are represented by the user defined room parameters.

The room parameters defined for these test cases are listed in the table 4.7.

Table 4.7 Room Parameters used by HVAC in the single wall test

ensfer

beth

Room Parameters	Defined Value
Room Geometry	15 x 15
Room Height	10
# of Exterior Wall	1
Interior Shade	0%
Furniture	Without
Exterior Construction	
Wall Type 1	L.W. with Lt. insulation
Wall Type 5	L.W. with Lt. insulation
Wall Type 11	H.W. with moderate insulation
Wall Type 17	L.W. with moderate insulation
Partition Type	5/8 in. Gyp-Air-5/8 in. Gyp
Room Location	Mid Floor Type
Mid Floor Type	l in. Wood
Slab Type	Mid Floor Type
Ceiling Type	Without Ceiling
Roof Type	L.W. w/o susp. ceiling
Floor Covering	vinyl tile
Glass Percent	10 %

Exterior Wall Total U Factor:

Exterior Wall total U factor(air to air) used in the HVAC program is chosen as same as the U factor shown in BLAST simulation output file(.bot file). The total U factor in BLAST is calculated based on the wall layer description and surface convective and radiative coefficients. As mentioned previously, the surface exterior convective coefficient is a function of outdoor wind speed and surface texture. The changing of the exterior convective coefficients also affect the surface overall U factor. Moreover, if the effect of heat storage is eliminated, the U factor is the major variable that causes heat transfer between internal space and ambient. So it is reasonable to use the same U factor in both BLAST and HVAC input data in the test procedures.

HVAC summer design day conditions description:

In HVAC, the summer design day is defined by design day's date(month and day), outdoor dry bulb air temperature, mean coincident wet bulb temperature and mean daily temperature range. In BLAST, the design day is chosen from BLAST design day library No. 142, which represents the design day condition of Tulsa, Oklahoma. The high outdoor air DBT is 98 °F and the low outdoor air DBT is 74 °F. In the HVAC summer design day input, the high outdoor DBT of 98 °F and the temperature daily range of 24 °F will represent exactly the same summer outdoor air dry bulb temperature bourly profile as BLAST.

4.2.5 Simulation Results from BLAST and HVAC

The results of design day cooling load calculation from both BLAST and HVAC are shown in Figures 4.1 through 4.4. The results of annual simulation based on the Tulsa weather data are shown in Figures 4.5 through 4.8.

As shown in the results, the difference between BLAST and HVAC design day and annual simulation are both in acceptable ranges. A detailed discussion of the results is given in section 4.4. But it should be noticed, the exterior surface combined coefficients is modified in HVAC program based on the equation 4.5 for each test case. How does the exterior surface combined coefficient influence the cooling load calculation? There is another simple test introduced to explain this question.



Figure 4.1 South Wall Design Day Comparison for the Single Wall Test



Figure 4.2 North Wall Design Day Comparison for the Single Wall Test



Figure 4.3 East Wall Design Day Comparison for the Single Wall Test



Figure 4.4 West Wall Design Day Comparison for the Single Wall Test



Figure 4.5 Annual Simulation Comparison on Wall Type 1



Figure 4.6 Annual Simulation Comparison on Wall Type 5







Figure 4.8 Annual Simulation Comparison on Wall Type 17

4.2.6 Some Extra Tests on Exterior Surface Coefficients and Window's effects

• Exterior Surface Coefficients Effects:

-

From the test cases with a zone having a single exterior wall, a special case, "Wall type 1, facing South", was chosen to test the effects of exterior surface combined coefficient. In this test, the exterior surface coefficient is changed from 2 to 7 Btu/hr.ft².°F. The design day cooling load calculation results carried out by the HVAC program are shown in Figure 4.9. From the results of this simple test, it is clearly shown that the peak cooling load reduced when the exterior surface combined coefficient(h_o) becomes larger. This phenomenon can be explained by the Equation 1.5. When the value of h_o becomes larger, the sol-air temperature will become smaller. Furthermore, the sol-air temperature is an important factor that determines the conduction heat gain through the exterior wall.

• Window Effects:

In addition to the conduction heat transfer through exterior wall, another major part of the heat gain due to building exterior surface is the heat gain through window. In order to test the capability to model the thermal process of heat gain through window of the HVAC program, The following test was carried out.

The previous test case, "Wall type 5, facing South", was modified to have a window on the 15×10 ft² south wall. The dimension of the window is 6 by 4 feet. Design day and Annual conditions are as same as before. The results of annual and design day were obtained from both BLAST and the HVAC program.

The comparison results are shown in Figure 4.10. The shading coefficient approach over predicts the transmitted heat transfer through window. It is desirable to develop a more detailed window heat transfer simulation model. Further discussion can be seen in Chapter VI, "Conclusions and Recommendations".



Figure 4.9 Cooling Loads Affected by Exterior Surface Coefficient(Wall Type 1, South)

.



Figure 4.10 Wall Type 5, South Window Design Day Comparison

.

4.3 Test of a Load Calculation on a Real Building (Motel)

This section discussed on a load calculation comparison between BLAST(1992) and the HVAC for Windows on a realistic building - a two story motel.

For a real building load calculation, the situation would become more complicated than the test performed on a single zone. All kinds of different load components, like lights, people, electric equipment, ventilation and interzone partitions will be involved as parts of space cooling load. Furthermore, some of these loads may be combined with specific schedules according to specific simulation time periods. Also, for the first floor of building, the heat transfer due to floor has to be considered. For the special comparison purposes desired in this project, which was intended to compare the simulation results between BLAST and HVAC, the building description input for each program can only be defined as close as possible, and it may not be possible to represent the building exactly the same in both programs. And the results of the comparison can only provide a basic idea of how the HVAC program can be applied to a real complicated commercial building.

4.3.1 Motel Plan View

The building's first floor and second floor's plan views of the motel are shown in figure 4.11 and 4.12. The building general design information is described in the following section.

4.3.2 Building General Design Information

Building General Information:

• Location Name: Tulsa, Oklahoma



Ν ----

Figure 4.11 Motel First Floor Plan View



N -

Figure 4.12 Motel Second Floor Plan View

-

- Latitude: 36°12'
- Longitude: 95°54'
- Time Zone: 6

Summer Design Day Conditions:

- Month: 7
- Day: 21
- Design Day Outdoor Dry Bulb Temperature: 98.00°F
- Design Day Outdoor Wet Bulb Temperature: 74.00°F
- Mean Daily Range: 24.00°F

Building Construction Description:

- Exterior Wall Wood frame construction with overall U factor (including surface conductance) of 0.108.
- Roof shingled, pitched roof, attic airspace, with overall U factor of 0.045
- Windows Double pane, with shading coefficient of 0.88 and overall U factor of 0.67

In order to perform the cooling load calculation on the motel, the building needs to be divided into several representing zones, and each zone will be controlled by a single A/C system and have a same system control profile. The zone description of the motel can be found in Table 4.8.

Table 4.8	Mote	Zones	Inf	ormati	ion	Summa	агу
-----------	------	-------	-----	--------	-----	-------	-----

Zone	Zone Name	Zone	Floor Area	Height	Total	System Control	System	System	System	Ventilation
No.		Multiplier			Window	Annual Schedule	Max.	Max.	Throttling	ODA
			[sq.ft.]		Area	Name	Cooling	Heating	Range	
				[ft.]	[ft.]		Capacity	Capacity	[°F]	[cfm]
							[Btu/br]	[Btu/hr]		
1	NW Corner 1st Fl.	1	348	8	26.88	motel room control	100000	100000	0.1	30
2	West Typical 1 st Fl.	9	348	8	26.88	motel room control	100000	100000	0.1	30
3	NE Corner 1st FL	1	348	8	26.88	motel room control	100000	100000	0.1	30
4	East Typical 1st Fl.	7	348	8	26.88	motel room control	100000	100000	0.1	30
5	NW Corner 2nd Fl.	1	348	8	26.88	motel room control	100000	100000	0.1	30
6	West Typical 2nd Fl.	9	348	8	26.88	motel room control	100000	100000	0.1	30
7	NE Corner 2nd Fl.	1	348	8	26.88	motel room control	100000	100000	0.1	30
8	East Typical 2nd FL	9	348	8	26.88	motel room control	100000	100000	0.1	30
9	Special 2nd Fl.	2	538	8	53.76	motel room control	100000	100000	0.1	30
10	Laundry	1	696	8	0	laundry control	100000	100000	1.0	160
11	Main Lobby	1	1926	8	287.24	Lobby's Control	100000	100000	2.0	300
12	Swimming Pool	1	1702	10	220 5	swim control	1000000	1000000	1.0	1700

.

4.3.3 Motel Annual Simulation Results

After the building description files have been created carefully for both BLAST and the HVAC program, annual load simulations are executed. The annual load simulations are based on the weather data of a Tulsa's typical year. From the annual simulation results carried out by BLAST and the HVAC program, the monthly cooling and heating loads for each zone of the motel can be collected. In this project, only the results of system sensible loads are compared between BLAST and the HVAC.

The motel input building description file for BLAST(".bin" file) is listed in the Appendix A. The motel input building description file for the HVAC program(".ipt" file) is listed in the Appendix B.

The comparison results of monthly cooling and heating loads are shown in Figure 4.13(A) through 4.13(C).

The annual total cooling and heating loads results of both BLAST and the HVAC program are listed in Table 4.9.

Zone Name	Annual Total Cooling Load(1000 Btu)		Annual Total Heating Load (1000 Btu)	
	BLAST	HVAC	BLAST	HVAC
NW Corner 1st Fl.	6346	8803	5139	5384
West Typical 1 st Fl.	6009	8028	3152	3395
NE Corner 1st F1.	6208	6900	5127	5657
East Typical 1st Fl.	5880	6095	3149	3647
NW Corner 2nd Fl.	8068	10292	6672	7178
West Typical 2nd Fl.	7669	9454	4534	5119
NE Corner 2nd FL	7799	7646	6559	6381
East Typical 2nd Fl.	7443	7210	446)	5286
Special 2nd Fl.	12277	15831	7245	7761
Laundry	7938	10126	4084	3622
Main Lobby	69216	82536	42945	51635
Swimming Pool	17632	24910	323552	321227

 Table 4.9
 Motel Annual Total Cooling and Heating Loads







.

Figure 4.13(A) Motel Monthly Cooling and Heating Load Comparison Between BLAST and the HVAC Program(Part A)



2 N.W. Corner Zone

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Months

2 N.E. Corner Zone

Cooling Load(1000 Btu/hr)

2000

1500

1000

500

٥



2 W. Typical Zone







BLAST(H)

DHVAC(H)

BLAST(C)

■HVAC(C)



Figure 4.13(C) Motel Monthly Cooling and Heating Load Comparison Between BLAST and the HVAC Program(Part C)

The building annual total cooling and heating loads for the motel are listed in Table 4.10.

Table 4.10 Motel Annual Total Cooling and Heating Loads

Annual Total Cooling Load(1000 Btu)		Annual Total Heating Load(1000 Btu)		
BLAST	HVAC	BLAST	HVAC	
379039	447794	539959	566357	

4.4 Discussion

In this chapter, BLAST is used as a reference program to validate the simulation results carried out by the HVAC program. The test begins with the most fundamental case which is a room with a single exterior wall. Furthermore, the effects of surface exterior coefficients and window are also tested to evaluate the simulation capability of the HVAC program. At the end of this test procedure, load calculation on a relatively complicated real building - motel is executed by both BLAST and the HVAC program. All comparison results are illustrated in either chart or table formats.

From the comparison results carried out by the single zone test, the following conclusion can be achieved. For the design day calculation, if there is no window on the exterior wall, the single zone test results will only represent the conduction heat transfer through the exterior wall. No matter what the facing angle of an exterior wall is, the difference in the peak cooling load of the summer design day between BLAST and HVAC is kept within 16 %. The largest difference occurred in the case of "West wall, wall type 11". For wall type 1, the agreement between BLAST and the HVAC program are relatively better than other cases. As described by Sowell(1992), according to the group method used in the ASHRAE Research Project 472 to keep representative wall group and roof group in a acceptable number, there is an inherent error of positive 20 % in the

amplitude and one hour in time delay by using derived transfer function coefficients. This inherent error can be seen clearly from the comparison results of the single zone tests. In all cases, the hourly cooling load results calculated by the HVAC program are greater than that from BLAST and the biggest difference is smaller than 20 percent. This is acceptable for most purposes and will give a conservative result.

For the results of the single zone annual simulation, because the design day wind speed is used to calculate the approximate exterior surface combined coefficient in the HVAC program, but real hourly wind speed is used in BLAST, the comparison results will become not as predictable as in the design day calculation. But, in the annual simulation, the average outdoor wind speed still can be considered as same as the summer design day because higher and lower hourly outdoor wind speed will compensate with each other during the entire year and the macroscopic results are still considered comparable. From the annual simulation comparison results shown in Figures 4.5 through 4.8, for total annual cooling load, the biggest difference is also under 13 percent; for total annual heating load, the biggest difference is under 4 percent.

Another test on the exterior surface combined coefficient shows that, for the summer design day calculation, when solar radiation is in effect, the hourly cooling load will be reduced by increasing the value of the coefficient. This is because when a solar flux is incident on an exterior wall, the exterior surface temperature will rise and become higher than the ambient air. As the value of exterior surface coefficient increases due to a higher outdoor wind speed, the convective heat transfer between exterior surface and ambient air will be increased. Therefore, there will be less heat conducted to the indoor space through the wall, and the cooling load will be decreased correspondingly. The phenomenon can also be explained by observing Equation 2.21 which is used to calculate the sol-air temperature. This also implies that it is desirable to modify the exterior surface combined coefficient in the HVAC program to vary with surface roughness and wind speed.

When a south window is added in the case "South wall, wall type 5", a relatively large disagreement between BLAST and the HVAC program is emerged Actually, a south window is defined as similarly as possible in both BLAST and the HVAC program.

In BLAST, the window material is defined as glass type with specified R value and shading coefficient. In the HVAC program, the window R value and shading coefficient are chosen as same as in BLAST. Because the case "South wall, wall type 5" without window has been tested previously, the big difference in the results on the window case is mainly due to the effect of the existing of the window. For all test cases in this project, include the test cases shown in next chapter, all results show that, the heat gain caused by window calculated by the HVAC program are about 10 to 20 percent greater than the results calculated by BLAST. This indicate that the simplified method(Shading Coefficient Method) in window heat transfer calculation does not have sufficient accuracy and can be improve in future study.

The primary purpose of the test case for the motel is to figure out if the HVAC program suitable to a real building annual load simulation. From the previous results obtained from the single zone test, one can tell that the results of conduction heat transfer through exterior walls(also roofs) have a good accuracy for both design day and annual simulation. Furthermore, the methodology of calculating other building load components, such as infiltration, lights, people, equipment, and ventilation, is relatively straight forward and similar in both BLAST and the HVAC program. In this special test case, the exterior surface combined coefficient is set to be 3.0 Btu/hr-ft²-F as the real value the current HVAC program actually used. Under this condition the results calculated by the HVAC program are expected larger than the case with using modified exterior surface combined coefficient.

In the motel simulation, another factor can influence the calculation results is floor heat transfer. Because the HVAC program cannot take the floor heat transfer into account, during the BLAST building description procedure, the monthly ground temperatures are set approximately to be close to the zone space air temperature. This definition will make the heat transfer due to floor as small as possible during the entire simulation period in BLAST and the factor of floor heat transfer can be neglected in the results comparison. However, it would be highly desirable to include floor heat transfer in the annual energy analysis.

From the motel simulation comparison results shown in Figures 4.20a through 4.20c, it can be observed that the monthly total heating loads have a very good agreement between BLAST and the HVAC program for all zones. The HVAC monthly total cooling loads are bigger than BLAST in the range of 15 - 40 percent. The building annual total heating and cooling loads comparison is listed in Table 4.10. The building total heating load of HVAC is about 5 percent higher than that of BLAST. The building total cooling load of HVAC is about 18 percent higher than that of BLAST.

The comparison results between BLAST and the HVAC program shown in this chapter indicates that the HVAC program has the capability to simulate any complicated commercial building. The results carried out by the HVAC program are generally greater than that carried out by BLAST. Some new features, including floor heat transfer, modified exterior surface combined coefficient calculation model, and improved window heat transfer model, can be considered adding to the HVAC program to improve the program accuracy and capability.

Chapter V

Validation by Building Energy Simulation Test (BESTEST)

5.1 Overview

The validation procedure of the "Building Energy Simulation Test" (BESTEST) (1993) is to make an equivalent building description for the program being tested and other programs which are considered to be state-of-the-art programs and widely used in the field of HVAC engineering design and consulting routines. Fourteen cases are presented in the BESTEST procedure, and 10 of them are chosen to used in this project for the purpose of the HVAC program validation. They are the 600 and 900 series which consist of qualification tests. The 600 Series represents a zone with lightweight envelope construction and the 900 Series represents a zone with heavyweight construction.

5.2 Test Building and Input Data Description

5.2.1 Building Construction Information

The test zone in both the 600 and 900 series is a zone built up with four exterior walls, one roof and a large window with double pane glass on the south wall. It is a zone located on the top story of a fictitious building. Figure 5.1 and Figure 5.2 show the plan view and elevation view of this "fictitious" zone, respectively. There is no heat transfer through the interzone floor for this top story test zone.

The 600 test series building component's description is listed in Tables 5.1 through 5.3, while the 900 test series building component's description is listed in Tables 5.4 through 5.6.

In all cases, the window plays an important role in building envelope heat transfer because of its relatively large size. The characteristic values of the window defined by the BESTEST for all test cases are listed in Table 5.7.



Figure 5 1 BESTEST Zone Plan View


Figure 5.2 BESTEST Zone Elevation View

Name	k	Thickness	υ	R	Density	Ср
	Btu/h*ft*F	fl	Btu/h*ft2*F	h*fl2*F/Btu	lb./ft3	Btu∕lb•F
Int. Surf. Coefficient			1.461	0.685		
Plasterboard	0.093	0.039	2.350	0.426	59.307	0.201
Fiberglass quilt	0.023	0.217	0.107	9.363	0.749	0.201
Wood Siding	0.081	0.030	2.741	0.365	33.087	0.215
Ext. Surf. Coefficient			5.163	0.194		
Total air-air U value	0.091 Btu/h*ft2*F					
Total surf-surf U value	0.098 Bnvh*ft2*F					

 Table 5.1
 Case 600s' Exterior Wall Material Description (inside to outside)

Table 5.2 Case 600's Roof Material Description(inside to outside)

Name	k	Thickness	ss U R		Density	Ср
	Btu/h*ft*F	ft	Btu/h+ft2+F	h*fl2*F/Btu	lb./ft3	Btu/Ib*F
Int Surf. Coefficient			1.461	0 685		
Plasterboard	0.093	0.033	2.820	0.355	59.307	0.201
Fiberglass quilt	0.023	0.367	0.063	15.854	0 749	0 201
Roofdeck	0 081	0.062	1.299	0.775	33.087	0.215
Ext. Surf Coefficient			5.163	0 194		
Total air-air U value	0.056 Btu/h*ft2*F					
Total surf-surf U value	0.059 Btu/h*ft2*F					

Name	k	Thickness	ប	R	Density	Ср
	Btu/h*ft*F	ft	Btu/h*ft2*F	h*ft2*F/Btu	lb./f⊡	Btu/lb*F
Int. Surf. Coefficient			1.461	0.684		
Timber flooring	0.081	0.082	0.987	1.013	40,578	0.287
Fiberglass quilt	0.023	3.291	0.007	142.287	0.000	0.000
Total air-air U value	0.007 Btu/h*ft2*F					
Total surf-surf U value	0.007 Btu/h*ft2*F					

Table 5.3 Case 600's Floor Material (inside to outside)

 Table 5.4
 Case 900's Exterior Wall Material(inside to outside)

Name	k	Thickness	υ	R	Density	Ср
	Btu⁄h∙ft*F	٠ft	Btu/h*ft2*F	h*ft2•F/Btu	16./ft3	Btu∕lb•F
Int. Surf. Coefficient		-	1.461	0.685		
Plasterboard	0.295	0.328	0.899	1.113	87.399	0.239
Fiberglass quilt	0.023	0.202	0.115	8.722	0 624	0.335
Wood Siding	0 081	0 030	2.74)	0.365	33.087	0.215
Ext. Surf. Coefficient			5.163	0 194		
Total air-air U value	0.090 Btu/h*ft2*F				~	
Total surf-surf U value	0.098 Btu/h*ft2*F					

.

Name	k	Thickness	U	R	Density	Ср
	Btu/h*ft*F	ft	Btu/h•ft2•F	h*ft2*F/Btu	ib./ft3	Btu∕lb•F
Int. Surf. Coefficient			1.461	0.684		
Plasterboard	0.093	0.033	2.820	0.355	59.307	0.201
Fiberglass quilt	0.023	0.367	0.063	15.854	0.749	0.201
Roofdeck	0.081	0.062	1.299	0.770	33.087	0.215
Ext. Surf. Coefficient			5.163	0.194		
Total air-air U value	0.056 Btu/h*ft2*F		3			
Total surf-surf U value	0.059 Btu/h*ft2*F					

Table 5.5 Case 900's Roof Material(inside to outside)

Table 5.6 Case 900's Floor Material(inside to outside)

Name	k	Thickness	υ	R	Density	Ср
	Btu/h*ft*F	Ĥ	Btu∕h*ft2*F	h*ft2*F/Btu	lb./ft3	Btu/ib*F
Int. Surf. Coefficient			1.461	0.684		
Concrete Slab	0.653	0.262	2 489	0 402	87.399	0.239
Fiberglass quilt	0.023	3.304	0.007	142 855	0 000	0.000
Total air-air U value	0.007 Btu/h*ft2*F					
Total surf-surf U value	0.007 Btu/h*ft2*F					

Table 5.7	BESTEST	Window's	Characteristics
-----------	---------	----------	-----------------

Extinction Coefficient	0.0196 / mm
Number of Panes	2
Pane Thickness(standard 1/8" glass under IP system)	3.175 mm
Air Gap Thickness	13 mm
Index of Refraction	1.526
Normal Direct Beam Transmittance Through Pane In Air	0.86156
Conductivity of Glass	1.06 W/m.K
Conductance of Each Glass Pane	333 W/m²-К
Combined Radiative and Convective Coefficient of Air Gap	6.297 W/m ² ·K
Exterior Combined Surface Coefficient	21.00 W/m ² ·K
Interior Combined Surface Coefficient	8.29 W/m ² ·K
U-Value from Interior Air to Ambient Air	3 0 W/m ² ·K
Density of Glass	2500 kg/m ³
Specific Heat of Glass	750 J/kg·K
Curtains, Blinds, Frames, etc. inside the window	None

5.2.2 Cases Description

5.2.2.1 Infiltration

The Infiltration load in the BESTEST test zone is defined as 0.5 air change per hour.

5.2.2.2 Internal Equipment Heat Gain

The power of the internal heat source is assumed to be a constant value, 200 W, and the radiative and convective portion are 60 % and 40 %, respectively. This load represents the pure heat gain of the space from the internal equipment. The equipment has a continuous running schedule.

5.2.2.3 Exterior Combined Surface Coefficient

From 2300 pm to 0700 am;

if the space temperature is less than 10 $^{\circ}C(50 \,^{\circ}F)$, system heating will be turned on;

From 0700 to 2300 pm:

if the space temperature is less than 20 $^{\circ}C(68 \ ^{\circ}F)$, system heating will be turned on;

For all hours:

if the space temperature is greater than 27 $^{\circ}C(80.6 \,^{\circ}F)$, system cooling will be turned on;

5.2.2.8 Loads Schedule

There are two kinds of schedule loads presented in the BESTEST cases, they are internal equipment and infiltration heat gain. But the schedule of these loads are all treated as continuous, i.e. they will be turned on continuously during the entire simulation period. So in HVAC simulations, a continuous schedule is assigned to these loads.

5.2.2.9 Cases Specification Table

All BESTEST cases performed in this project are summarized in the table 5.8.

5.2.3 HVAC Input Data for BESTEST Cases

To describe the test zone in the HVAC user's interface environment is pretty straight forward, except some special input field which are specified in detail in following sections.

5.2 3.1 Room Parameter's Description

Room parameters for the test series 600 and 900 are summarized in Table 5.9:

1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
Case	Set Pt.	Mass	Еqцір.	Infil.	ABS	Glass	Window	Overhang
No.	°C		w	асн		m²	Orien.	
600	20,27	Light	200	0.5	0.6	12	S	without
610	20,27	Light	200	0.5	0.6	12	S	with
620	20,27	Light	200	0.5	0.6	6,6	E,W	without
630	20,27	Light	200	0.5	0.6	6,6	E,W	with
640	S.B.	Light	200	0.5	0.6	12	S	without
900	20,27	Heavy	200	0.5	0.6	12	S	without
910	20,27	Неату	200	0.5	0.6	12	S	with
920	20,27	Heavy	200	0.5	0.6	6,6	E,W	without
930	20,27	Heavy	200	0.5	0.6	6,6	E,W	with
940	S.B.	Heavy	200	0.5	0.6	12	S	withoul

 Table 5.8
 BESTEST Case Summary Information

Note: S.B.: System SETBACK control profile in affect; ABS: Exterior Solar Absorbtance;

5.2.3.2 Wall Type Description

When the transfer function method is used, the wall type has to be carefully selected to calculate the exterior wall conduction heat transfer. If the exact matching wall material cannot be found in the wall material library, a material which has the closest thermal properties from the library should be used instead.

For case 600s, according to the wall layer description listed in Table 5.1, the outermost layer of the exterior wall is plasterboard, which has a heat capacity of 0.039 x $59.307 \times 0.201 = 0.495Btu/ft^2F$, and the material that can be chosen from the library is "A3", "Steel Siding ", which has a heat capacity of 0.24 Btu/ft²F. Similarly, B12 - 3 in. Insulation is chosen for "Fiberglass quilt" and "A3" for Wood Siding. The dominant wall material is "Steel Siding" and the secondary principle material is "3/4 in. Plaster or Gypsum". The Mass location is "Mass Integral". After these variables are specified inside the HVAC program, the wall type is calculated and described as "Wall Type 1".

The definition of wall layer for the BESTEST are summarized in Table 5.10.

Name of Parameter	Cases 600s (Light)	Cases 900s (Heavy)
Room Geometry	15 ft x 15 ft	15 ft x 15 ft
Room Height	10 ft	10 ft
# of Exterior Walls	4	4
Room Location	Top Floor	Top Floor
Interior Shade	0 %	0 %
Furniture	Without	Without
Exterior Wall Construction	L.W with moderate insu	H.W. with moderate insu
Partition Type	5/8 in. Gyp-Air-5/8 in. Gyp	5/8 in. Gyp-Air-5/8 in. Gyp
Mid Floor Type) in. wood	8 in. Concrete
Slab Type	Mid floor type	Mid floor type
Ceiling Type	Without ceiling	Without ceiling
Roof Type	L.W w/o suspended ceiling	L.W. w/o suspended ceiling
Floor Covering	Vinyl Tile	Vinyl Tile
Glass Percent	10	10

Table 5.9 Room parameters for BESTEST cases

Table 5.10 BESTEST Wall and Roof Layer Summary Information

	Case 600	Case 900
Layer Distribution(inside to outside)	E0,E1,B4,A3,A0	E0,C4,B4,E1,A0
Principle Material	Steel Siding	4 in. Common Brick
Secondary Material	3/4 in. Plaster Board	3/4 in Plaster Board
Mass Location	Mass Integral	Mass In
Actual U Factor	0.091 Btu/h•ft ² *F	0.090 Btu/h*fl²*F

5.2.3.3 Roof Type Description

Similar to the wall type selection, the layer distribution of the roof for both 600 and 900 cases is defined as layers of - E0,E2,B12,B7,A0, "Mass Integral", with principle material of 1 in. wood, and without suspended ceiling. Roof type of 2 is obtained from the HVAC program.

5.3 Annual simulation results

The BESTEST input building description file for the HVAC program (".ipt" file) is listed in the Appendix C.

There are several sets of comparison results that can be obtained from the BESTEST procedure. They are annual total cooling load, annual total heating load, peak heating and cooling load and there occurring times. The annual heating and cooling load comparison results for low mass cases (Case 600s) are shown in figure 5.3 and 5.4, the annual heating and cooling load comparison results for heavy mass cases (Case 900s) are shown in figure 5.5 and 5.6. The results of sensitivity test are shown in Figure 5.7 through 5.12. In these tests, the sensitivity of the program to various phenomena is examined by taking the difference between two different cases. For example, in Fig. 5.7, the difference in heating load between cases 630 and 620 is plotted. The only difference between the two cases is that case 630 has an overhang. In this case, HVAC is shown not to be very sensitive to the addition of an overhang, when compared to the other programs.

As mentioned in the BESTEST, to pass a test case, the simulation results of testing program must show "reasonable agreement with the reference programs for both the absolute results and the sensitive results" (Judkoff, 1993). When a disagreement show up during a specific test case, the user need to follow the diagnostic procedure provided by the BESTEST. The BESTEST results on the HVAC program shown in this section are the final results of this project, which means that the problems found during the BESTEST procedure have already been fixed. The problem tracing method in the BESTEST will be discussed in the following section.



Figure 5.3 BESTEST Low Mass Cases Annual Heating Load Comparison



Figure 5.4 BESTEST Low Mass Cases Annual Cooling Load Comparison



Figure 5.5 BESTEST Hi Mass Cases Annual Heating Load Comparison



Figure 5.6 BESTEST Hi Mass Cases Annual Cooling Load Comparison



Figure 5.7 BESTEST Low Mass Cases Heating Load Qualification tests Results



Figure 5.8 BESTEST Low Mass Cases Cooling Load Qualification tests Results



figure 5.9 BESTEST Hi Mass Cases Heating Load Qualification tests Results



figure 5.10 BESTEST Hi Mass Cases Cooling Load Qualification tests Results



Figure 5.11 BESTEST Heating Peak Load Comparison



Figure 5.12 BESTEST Cooling Peak Load Comparison

5.4 Discussion

The BESTEST is specially designed for both software developer to trace the potential problem and software end user to validate the commercial software accuracy. In this specific project, the BESTEST is applied to determine if the annual simulation results carried out the HVAC program is acceptable. Furthermore, when problems are encountered, the diagnostic procedure provided by the BESTEST become especially useful to trace the problem and check the implemented technical methodology in the HVAC program.

In this project, the BESTEST begin with the base test - case 600 for a light mass construction. At first, the comparison results were not satisfied for some unclear reason. According to the procedure provided by the BESTEST diagnostic diagram, cases 195 to 320 were executed to find the reason of the major disagreement in the annual simulation results.

In the BESTEST diagnostic procedure, case 195 especially tests the conduction heat transfer of the building exterior construction. In this case, there is no window on any exterior walls. Also, the components of internal heat gain, infiltration are eliminated. Furthermore, the BANGBANG is used as the system control strategy, which holds the space air temperature as a constant value of 20°C(68°F). Under these conditions, the annual simulation was executed by the HVAC program, and the results showed that the simulation results of the HVAC program has a good agreement with other programs presented in the BESTEST.

After the most basic test - case 195 has been done, the diagnostic procedure was move on to other diagnostic test cases. Among the test cases, the case 200 test the surface convection heat transfer problem; the case 230 test the infiltration problem; the case 240 tests the internal heat gain problem; the case 250 test the solar absorptance of exterior walls. The cases 210 through 220 were skipped for the reason that the HVAC program does not have the capability to simulate the interior and exterior surface IR radiation.

From the diagnostic case 270, the heat transfer through window becomes important. As discussed in the previous chapter, the algorithm of solar radiation through

115

window in the HVAC program makes the cooling load results higher than other programs (like BLAST). This phenomenon also appeared in the case 270. The case 290 through 310 test the affects of changing the window orientation and adding extra window exterior shading.

The results for all test cases mentioned above have an agreement with the results from other reference programs in the BESTEST in a reasonable range. The HVAC program was then considered passing these diagnostic tests. The test then moved on the case 320. The difference between the case 320 and other previous test cases is that the case 320 uses a DEADBAND system control profile which lets the room space air temperature float between 20 and 27°C(68 and 80.6°F). And this case is designed specially to test the capability of the program to deal with the thermostat DEADBAND.

The annual simulation results by the HVAC program showed a major disagreement in the annual total heating load. The problem on thermostat DEADBAND calculation in the HVAC program was noticed at this point. In order to find out the reason of the problem, detailed information was extracted during the annual simulation procedure of the HVAC program.

The BLAST program was employed to check the hourly cooling load results of the HVAC program. By using the transfer function method, the system heat extraction rate calculated by the HVAC program has an equivalent meaning with the cooling load results in the BLAST output file. For this reason, the hourly data of system heat extraction rate from the HVAC program and the hourly data of cooling loads from BLAST have been compared for the checking purposes. Because the difference between case 320 and 270 indicates the effects of the thermostat DEADBAND, the hourly loads calculation results are also extracted from both BLAST and the HVAC program for comparison. Figure 5.13 and 5.14 show the comparison between case 320 (DEADBAND) and 270 (BANGBANG) for BLAST and the HVAC program, respectively.



Figure 5.13 BLAST Results Comparison Between BESTEST cases 270 and 320



Figure 5.14 HVAC Results Comparison Between BESTEST cases 270 and 320

Figure 5.13 and 5.14 indicate that the HVAC program appears to have a higher beat storage thermal mass during DEADBAND system control strategy. According to the load calculation procedure in the transfer function method, when DEADBAND system control strategy is in effect, the part of cooling load which will be converted to the system heat extraction rate will be determined by the coefficients of space air transfer function. Furthermore, these coefficients are determined by the zone construction type. As mention before, in the previous version of the HVAC program, there are three different types of zone construction defined, which are "Light", "Medium" and "Heavy" construction. From the test results, it is shown that even the "Light" construction type cannot represent the low mass cases in the BESTEST test properly. For this reason, it is considered that it is necessary to add an extra building construction type to the heat extraction rate calculation procedure.

As discussed in Barakat paper(1987)(See literature review in Chapter 1), for houses with wood frame construction, the mass level is much smaller than the mass range covered in ASHRAE(1993). Also, Barakat provides a set of space air transfer function coefficients for wood frame housed based on experimental results. This extra set of space air transfer function coefficients are implemented into the HVAC program. The results published here for low mass cases are the results after the implementation.

After the case 600 passed the BESTEST (after implementing the "Extra Light" construction option), the comparison results of the test case followed showed a reasonable agreements with other reference programs.

BESTEST also highlighted the sensitivity of the program to certain inputs which were found to be erroneous. At the beginning of the high mass test, there was an input error in the HVAC program building description procedure. The error was a wrong wall type is define for the exterior wall. The error lead to the results that both annual total heat and cooling load were much higher than the results carried out by other reference programs. This problem is shown even during the very basic case - case 900 of the high mass test procedure. As mention in the chapter 4, the definition of exterior wall type is very important in the transfer function method, because it determines the amplitude and time delay of conduction heat transfer through exterior walls. If these value cannot be defined properly, all following procedure will use wrong information for further calculation on cooling loads and system heat extraction rate. After this input error was noticed and fixed, the annual simulation results of the high mass BESTEST case can also show the agreement with other reference programs.

Room parameters affect the conversion procedure from space heat gain to space cooling load. During the BESTEST procedure, it is shown clearly that some room parameters can influence the simulation results dramatically. These room parameters include: Exterior wall construction, interior shading and zone location. When other parameters are fixed, the zone location is the most sensitive parameter that influence the cooling load calculation results. Because the test case described in the BESTEST represent a zone with a exposed roof and a floor above a conditioned space, the zone location for BESTEST should be "Top Story". The value of interior shading is chosen as 0 percent because there is no curtain behind the window(s).

From the results of previous chapter, especially section 4.2.6, it is shown that the simplified window transmitting heat transfer calculation procedure can make a considerable disagreement between the HVAC program and BLAST. In BESTEST cases, the window's size is relatively large and the major part of the heat gain is due to window transmitting heat transfer. This makes the cooling load results calculated by the HVAC program larger than other programs for all cases, especially for high mass cases. The proportion of heat gain due to window become larger in high mass cases than that in low mass cases because the amplitude of exterior wall conduction heat gain in high mass cases reduced. Comparing with the annual simulation results from other reference program, the total annual cooling load calculated by the HVAC program is high but still can be used to indicate the system annual energy consumption for engineering analysis purposes. Also, the future improvement on window calculation model is expected for the HVAC program.

From the Figures 5.7 through 5.10, which show the sensitivity test results, the sensitivity of the HVAC program to each building or system description variety can be detected. For low mass and high mass cases, each differential value between two cases can indicate the sensitivity of the program to a certain case. Table 5 11 list the test purposes of each differential value.

119

Table 5.11 BESTEST Sensitivity Test Purposes

Differential Value	Test Purpose
610 - 600	Test South Window Overhang
620 - 600	Test East and West Solar Transmittance and incidence
630 - 620	Test East and West Window Overhang
640 - 600	Test Night Setback System Control
910 - 900	Test South Window Overhang with Mass Interaction
920 - 900	Test East and West Transmittance with Mass Interaction
930 - 920	Test East and West Shading with Mass Interaction
940 - 900	Test Setback with Mass Interaction

As illustrated in Figure 5.7 and 5.9, for annual heating load calculation results, the HVAC program has good agreement with other reference programs in most of the sensitivity test cases, except the "630 - 620" and "930 - 920" cases, which test the east and west shading devices. But it should be noticed that the absolute value of the difference between these cases are already very small. It is harder to reach a better agreement than other sensitivity test cases. Furthermore, as discussed by Judkoff (1993), even among the results of BESTEST reference programs, the disagreements in the annual cooling load predictions for the east and west shading device cases is large. In the HVAC program, the heating load actually takes the negative value of the cooling load. And because the large size of the windows in the BESTEST cases, the time of the shading device in effect almost always occurs during the period when cooling load is positive. Therefore, it is reasonable that the total annual heat load cannot be affected a lot by adding shading devices.

For high mass case, the sensitivity test results on change window orientation of the HVAC program is shown considerably higher than other program. It can be seen that the disagreement among other reference program are large and the results seem unpredictable.

All this phenomenon indicates that an improved window solar radiation heat transfer model needs to be developed.

.

.

Chapter VI

Conclusions and Recommendations

The procedure of annual energy analysis has been implemented in the HVAC for WindowsTM program. The annual simulation results calculated by the HVAC program have been validated by the testing procedures discussed in the previous two chapters. In this chapter, the conclusions and some recommendations will be presented.

6.1 Conclusions

From the comparison results in chapter IV and V, it is clearly shown that the HVAC program can successfully perform an annual load simulation on realistic buildings. To execute the annual simulation, the solar radiation calculation procedure was modified form the previous version of the HVAC program. Local annual hourly weather data is used in the building annual energy simulation.

In order to simulated a more complicated A/C system control profile for a year, the heat extraction rate calculation procedure is modified in the new version of the HVAC program. The zone space air temperature is allowed to float between high and low set point temperatures which are defined by the user. System set back period can also be modeled in the new version of HVAC program.

Unlike the design day calculation, the schedule for different time periods need to be assigned to each schedule load for an annual simulation. In the new version of the HVAC program, the user can define daily, weekly and annual schedules to an element in a GUI environment. The system control profile can also be scheduled for an annual simulation.

Simulation result validation procedures have also been carried out in this project. The validation procedure began with a very fundamental test - a single wall test and proceeded to a very complicated real building test. The validation results are discussed in previous chapters.

The validation results in this project indicates that, for general engineering energy analysis purpose, the new version of the HVAC program can be used to simulate any kinds of commercial building with acceptable accuracy. Using the BESTEST procedure, the HVAC program was compared to other detailed energy analysis programs. Generally, the results compared well, with a few discrepancies. The thermal process of conduction heat transfer, heat gain through window, system thermostat DEADBAND and etc. can be successfully simulated by using the HVAC program. Furthermore, from the HVAC program, information of monthly loads, loads for each zone, peak loads of zones and even hourly load for an entire year can be obtained from the annual simulation. This feature is especially useful when these data is required for other HVAC application, such as GLHEPRO (Spitler, 1996) program. Further study is expected for the transfer function method on window heat gain calculation to improve the simulation accuracy of the HVAC program. Some recommendations are suggested in the following section.

6.2 Recommendations

1) Using transfer function method, the floor is considered as a energy storage component. The variation of the ground temperature for different season has no effects on the load calculation procedure. If there is no other heat transfer component existing in a zone, the calculated cooling load will be carried out as zero. For a design day cooling load calculation, to ignore the heat transfer from the floor is acceptable. But for an annual simulation, the error introduced from this simplification will become significant, especially for a heating season and an interior zone calculation. It is recommended that heat transfer

component for floor be added. It can be similar to the partition element, and the ground temperature could be defined for every month during an annual simulation.

2) The calculation model of exterior surface combined coefficient needs to be improved. There are several convection coefficient calculation models available currently. For the transfer function method, a constant exterior combined coefficient is used. This will lead to a small error if the outdoor wind speed becomes large. A model which can relate the surface coefficient with the outdoor wind speed and surface roughness can be implemented to the HVAC program in the future to eliminate this error.

3) An improved calculation model of window heat transfer needs to be developed for the transfer function method. Currently, the shading coefficient is employed to simplify the radiation transmitted through the window. The shading coefficient approach ignores incidence angle dependence and assumes a constant fraction of the absorbed solar radiation is convected into the space. Furthermore, the value of the shading coefficient strongly affects the results. From the stand point of this project, it is recommended that a more detailed window heat transfer model be implemented to improve the accuracy of annual load simulation.

4) The current version of the HVAC program does not have the capability to model actual humidity fluctuations in the space. A constant zone design relative humidity ratio is used for an entire year simulation. The error of the latent load calculation results can become considerably large during the heating season. It is recommended that a model of a coil be added which can account for condensation under actual operating conditions.

5) An more detailed model to simulate the shading device which affects the beam radiation through window is recommended. Form the results of the BESTEST, even among the state of the art load calculation program, a weak agreement occurred in modeling window shading device. More empirical study is required to verify the analysis simulation results.

124

References

- ASHRAE. (1977, 1981, 1985, 1989, 1993). ASHRAE Handbook of Fundamentals. Atlanta, American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers, Inc.
- Barakat, S. A. (1987). Experimental Determination of the Z-Transfer Function Coefficients for Houses, <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, 93(1): 146-161.
- Bauman, F., et al. (1983). Verification of BLAST by Comparison with Measurements of a Solar-Dominated Test Cell and a Thermally Massive Building, <u>ASME Journal of Solar Engineering</u>, 105(2).
- BLAST Support Office (1991a). BLAST User Reference, Volume 1. Department of Mechanical and Industrial Engineering, University of Illinois, Urbana, IL.
- BLAST Support Office (1991b). BLAST User Reference, Volume 1. Department of Mechanical and Industrial Engineering, University of Illinois, Urbana, IL.
- Carroll, W., & Friedman, N. (1983). Comparison of BLAST Predictions with Measured Performance for a Thermally Massive Building, Lawrence Berkeley Laboratory Report LBL-11679.
- Castelino, R. L. (1992). <u>Implementation of the Revised Transfer Function Method and</u> <u>Evaluation of the CLTD/SCL/CLF Method</u>. M.S. Thesis, Oklahoma State University.
- Falconer, D. R., et al (1992). Electronic Tables for the ASHRAE Load Calculation Manual, <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, 99(1): 193-200.
- Harris, S. M. & McQuiston, F. C. (1988). A Study to Categorize Walls and Roofs on the Basis of Thermal Response, <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, 94(2),688-715.
- Kerrisk, J. F. et al. (1981). The Custom Weighting-Factor Method for Thermal Load Calculations in the DOE-2 Computer Program. <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, 89(1), 569-584.

- McQuiston, F. C., & J. D. Parker, (1994). <u>Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning</u> <u>Analysis and Design, 4th edition</u>. New York: John Wiley & Sons, Inc.
- McQuiston, , F. C. and J. D. Spitler. (1992). <u>Cooling and Heating Load Calculation</u> <u>Manual</u>, 2nd ed. ASHRAE.
- Mitalas, G. P. (1965). An Assessment of Common Assumptions in Estimating Coling Loads and Space Temperatures, <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, 71(3).
- Mitalas, G. P., & Stephenson, D. G. (1967). Room Thermal Response Factors. ASHRAE Transactions, 73(1): III 2.1 - III 2.10.
- Petzold, C. (1992). <u>Programming Windows: The Microsoft Guide to Writing Applications</u> for Windows 3.1. Redmond, Washington: Microsoft Press.
- Robertson, D. K. & Christian, J. E. (1985). Comparisons of Four Computer Models with Experimental Data from Test Buildings in Northern New Mexico, <u>ASHRAE</u> <u>Transactions</u>, 91(2B): 591-607.
- Rudoy, W., & Duran, F. (1975). Development of an Improved Cooling Load Calculation Method, <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, 81(2), 19-69.
- Stephenson, D. G. & Mitalas, G. P., (1967). Cooling Load Calculations by Thermal Response Factor Method, <u>ASHRAE Transaction</u>, 73(1): III 1.1 III 1.7.
- Stephenson, D. G. & Mitalas, G. P. (1971). Calculation of Heat Conduction Transfer Functions for Multi-layer Slabs, <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, 77(2), 117-126.
- Sowell, E. F., & Chiles, D. C. (1984a). Characterization of Zone Dynamic Response for CLF/CLTD Tables. ASHRAE Transaction, 91(2A), 162-178.
- Sowell, E. F., & Chiles, D. C. (1984b). Zone Descriptions and Response Characterization for CLF/CLTD Calculations. <u>ASHRAE Transaction</u>, <u>91</u>(2A), 179-200.
- Sowell, E. F., & Chiles, D. C. (1984c). A Counter-Intuitive Effect of Mass on Zone Cooling Load Response. <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, <u>91(2A)</u>, 201-208.
- Sowell, E. F. (1988a). Load Calculation for 200, 640 Zones, <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, 94(2) 716 736.
- Sowell, E F. (1988b). Cross-check and Modification of the DOE-2 Program for Calculation of Zone Weighting Factors, <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, 94(2): 737-753.
- Sowell, E. F. (1988b). Classification of 200, 640 Parametric Zones for Cooling load Calculations, ASHRAE Transactions, 94(2): 754 777.

Spitler, J. D., et al. (1996) GLHEPRO User's Manual. Oklahoma State University.

- Spitler, J. D., McQuiston F. C., & Lindsey K. (1993a). Development of a Revised Heating and Cooling Load Calculation Manual. <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, 99(1): 175 - 182.
- Spitler, J. D., McQuiston, F. C. & Lindsey, K. (1993b). The CLTD/SCL/CLF Cooling Load Calculation Method. <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, 99(1): 183 - 192.
- Threlkeld, J. L. (1963). Solar Irradiation of Surfaces on Clear Days, <u>ASHRAE</u> <u>Transactions</u>, 69: 24 - 36.
- Yuill, G. & Phillips, E. G. (1984). Comparison of BLAST Program Predictions with the Energy Consumptions of Two Buildings. <u>ASHRAE Transactions</u>, <u>91</u>(2A), 1200-1206.

Appendixes

Appendix A

BLAST Input File for the Motel Load Simulation

.

```
REGIN INPUT:
   RUN CONTROL:
     NEW ZONES,
     NEW AIR SYSTEMS.
     PLANT.
     REPORTS (ZONE LOADS, ZONE) .
     UNITS (IN-ENGLISH, OUT-ENGLISH) ;
     TEMPORARY HATERIALS:
       WALL(N5U
         (L=0, 1820, K=0, 0250, D=5.7, CP=0.200, ABS=0.75.
         TABS=0.900.ROUGH):
       ROOFINSH
         - (L-0.1500, K-0.0250, P-5.7, CP=0.200, ABS-0.75,
         TABS-0.900, ROUGH);
       MGLASS
          - (R-0.610,SC-0.00,VERY SMOOTH,GLASS);
       FLOORINSU
         - (8=90,000, ABS=0.75, TABS=0.900, ROUCH);
       HIZPART
         - (R=1.500.AB5=0.75,TABS=0.900,ROUGH);
     END:
     TEMPORARY WALLS:
       MPARTI
         = (PL(
             1N2 ,
             PL();
        HWALL.
         - (PL3
             PL4 .
             WALLINSU .
             PL41:
       R17
           (MGLASS);
     END;
     TEMPORARY ROOFS:
       CROOF
          - (WD2
             IN2 ,
             E4,
             PL4);
        MRCOF
         · IPLA .
             E4
             RCOFINSU ,
             E517
     END:
     TEMPORARY FLOORS:
        NFLXOR
          . IDERT 12 IN .
             CO171:
        CFLOOR
          = (PL4 ,
             Eł,
             1112 .
             WD21:
        INSUF LOOP
          - IDIRT 12 IN .
             FLOORINSU .
             201712
     END:
      TEMPORARY WIND WS:
        MWIND
```

```
- (MGLASS);
END:
TEMPORARY SCHEDULE (ROOM LIGHT) :
      0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,0.00,0.00),
       SUNDAY= (0, 00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00,
       0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,0.00,0.00),
        0,00,0,00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,0.00,0.00),
       0,00,0,00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,0.00,0.00),
       SYSCIAL2= (0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,0.00,
        0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,0.00,0.00,0.00),
       0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,0.00,0.00) :
END .
TEMPORARY SCHEDULE (ROOM PEOPLE) :
       0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.
       SATURDAY=(1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00, 0.00,
       0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00
        SUNDAY- (1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00, 0.00,
       0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.
        HOLIDAY= (1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00, 0.00,
        0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.
        0,00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.
        SPECIAL3= (1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00, 0.00,
       0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.
       SPECIAL4-(1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00, 0.00,
       DID:
TEMPORARY SCHEDULE (ROOH TV) :
       0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,0.00,0.00),
        0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,0.00,0.00),
        SPECIALI-10.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00,
        SPECIAL2- (0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00,
        0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,0.00,0.00,0.00),
        SPECIALA - (0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00,
        0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,0.00,0.00,0.00);
 END/
 TEMPORARY SCREEDULE (CONTINUEUS):
```

TEMPORARY SCHEDULE (LOBBY PEOPLE) :

SATURDAY- (0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.50, 0.50, 1.00, 1.00, 0.50, 0.50, 0.50, 0.50, 0.50, 0.50, 0.50, 0.50, 0.50, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.50, 0.50), SPECIAL2= (0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.50, 0.50, 1.00, 1.00, END/

TEMPOPARY SCHEDULE (SWIN PEOPLE) :

0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.001, J, 00, 0, 00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.40); END:

TEMPORARY SCHETTILE (LALDIDRY MACHINE);

```
\begin{array}{l} \label{eq:horizontal_horizon} HONDAY THRU FRIDAY - ($.50, 0.06, 0.06, 0.05, 0.06, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0
```

0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00,0.00), 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00)END: TEMPORARY SCHEDULE (ROOM VENT): SATURDAY- (1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.44, 0.44, SPECIAL3-(1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.14, 0.44, SPECIAL4-(1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.04.0.44. EMD: TEMPORARY SCHEDULE (VENT SPEC 1): HONDAY TURU FRIDAY- (1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.52, 0.52, SATURDAY= (1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 1.00SUNDAY= (1.00,).00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 0.52, 1.00, 1.00, (.00, 1.00, 1.00)SPECIAL2-(1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.52, 0.52, SPECIALJ-(1.00, 1. 0.52,0.52,0.32,0.52,0.52,0.52,0.52,0.52,0.52,1.00,1.00,1.00,1.00,1,00), END: TEMPORARY SCREDULS (VENT SPEC2): SATURDAY-(1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.55, 0.55, SUNDAY-(1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.55, 0.55, HOLIDAY= (1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.55, 0.55, 0.55, 0.55, 0.55, 0.55, 0.55, 0.55, 0.55, 0.55, 0.55, 1.00, 1 SPECIALZ= (1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.55, 0.55, SFECIAL3-(1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.55, 0.15,

END:

TERFORARY SCHEDULE (LAUNDRY VENT):

```
1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0
        1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0
         1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0
         1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 1.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0
         END:
TEMPORARY CONTROLS (MCONTROL) :
          PROFILES:
                 CC-11.0000 AT 67.90, 0.0000 AT 68.00,-1.0000 AT 68.101;
          SCHEDULES :
                  MONDAY THRU FRIDAY- (0 TO 21-CC),
                  SATURDAY- (0 TO 24-CC) .
                  SUNDAY- (U TO 21-CC),
                  HOLIDAY- (0 TO 24 -CC) .
                  SPECIALI-(0 TO 24-CC),
                  SPECIAL2-(0 TO 24-CC).
                  SPECIALS- (0 TO 24-CC).
                  SPECIALA-(0 TO 24-CC);
END:
TEMPORARY CONTROLS (ROCH CONTROL) :
          PROFILES:
                  CROCM-(1,0000 AT 68.00, 0.0004 AT 68.10, 0 0000 AT 72.00.
                                                                            -1,0000 AT 72.10);
          SCHEDULES:
                  HONDAY THRU FRIDAY-(" TO 24 -CROCHI,
                   SATURDAY- (0 TO 24 - CPINH) .
                  SUNDAY- (0 TO 21-CROCH) .
                   HOLIDAY- (0 TO 24 - CROOH) .
                   SPECIALI- (0 TO 24-CROOMI.
                   SPECIAL2-10 TO 24-CROOMI.
                  SPECIALS-10 TO 24 - CROOM) .
                  SPECIALI-10 TO 24-CROOM) ;
END
TEMPORARY CONTROLS (LAUNDRY CONTROL):
          PROFILES
                  NORMAL-(1.0000 AT 67.90, 0.0000 AT 69.00, 0.0000 AT 80.00,
                                                                           -1.0000 AT 80.101.
                   SETBACK-11.0000 AT 49.90, 0 0000 AT 50.00, 0.0000 AT 05.00,
                                                                            -1.0000 AT 85.101:
           STHEDULES:
                  MONDAY THRU FRIDAY O TO 6-SETRACY .
                                                                                                                6 TO 17-N RHAL .
                                                                                                             17 TO 24-52TBAD.
                   SATURDAY-(0 TO 6-SETBACK
                                                                                                               6 TO 17-NORMAL
                                                                                                            17 TO 24-SETBACH .
                   SUNDAY-10 TO 6-SETBACK .
                                                                                                                6 TO 17-NORMAL .
                                                                                                             17 TO 28 SEIBACKL.
                   HO! IDAY- (0 TO 6-SETBACK
                                                                                                                6 TO 17-NORMAL
                                                                                                             17 TO 24-SETRACKI,
                   SPECIALI-IN TO 6-SETBACK
                                                                                                                6 TO 17-11- KMAL .
```

17 TO 24-SETBACK! SPECIALZ - (D TO S-SETRACK 5 TO 17-NORMAL 17 TO 24-SETBACKI SPECIALJ-(0 TO 6-SETBACK 6 TO 17-NORMAL . 17 TO 24-SETBACK) . SPECIALA- (0 TO 6-SETBACK 6 TO 17-NORMAL 17 TO 24-SETBACK) ; END: JEMPORARY CONTROLS (SWIM CONTROL) : PROFILES: SCONTROL-(1.0000 AT 79.90, 0.0000 AT 80.00, 0.0000 AT 85.00. -1.0000 AT 85.101; SCHEDULES: MONDAY THRU FRIDAY= (0 TO 24-SCONTROL), SATURDAY- (0 TO 24-SCONTROL), SUNDAY = 10 TO 24-SCONTROL), HOLIDAY- (D TO 24-SCONTROL), SPECIALI- (D TO 24-SCONTROL) . SPECIALZ- (0 TO 21-SCONTROL) . SPECIALS- (0 TO 24-SCONTROL) SPECIAL4=(D TO 24-SCONTROL); END; FROJECT-"motel for thesis"; LOCATION-TULSA : DESIGN DAYS-TULSA SIMMER : WEATHER TAPE FROM 0) JAN THRU 3) DEC; GROUND TEMPERATURES= (67, 68, 68, 69, 72, 72, 72, 72, 72, 69, 68, 681: FACILITY ID=0; BEGIN BUILDING DESCRIPTION: BUILDING="motel ": NORTH AXIS-0.001 SOLAR DISTRIBUTION-0; ZONE 1 "IN.W.Corner ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -12.42, 0.00); NORTH AXIS-0.00: EXTERIOR WALLS : STARTING AT (0. .0, 12.42, 0.00) FACING(270.00) TILTED(90.00) HWALL (12.42 BY 8.00) WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE HWINDOW (5.38 84 5.00) REVEAL(0.0D) AT 10.01, 0.013, STARTING AT 128.01, 12.42, 0.305 FACING(0.00) TILTED (90.001 MWALL (28.00 BY 0.001; PARTITI US : STARTING AT (0.00, 0.00, 0.00) FACING(180.00) TILTED(90.00) MPARTI (24.70 BY 8.00), STARTING AT124, 70, 0,00, 0.001 FACING(90.00) TILTED (90.00) MPARTI (9.00 BY 8.00); SLAB ON GRADE FLOOPS : STARTING AT (5 10, 12.50, 0.00)

 $\frac{32}{2}$

÷

TILTED(180.00) HELOOR (26,00 BY 12.50); CEILINGS : STARTING AT(0.00, 0 00, 8.00) FACING(180.00) T(LTED(0.00) CROOF (28.00 BY 12.50); PEOPLE-2. ROOM PEOPLE . AT ACTIVITY LEVEL 0.35, 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, FROM GIJAN THRU JIDEC: LIGHTS=0.78, ROOM LIGHT , 0.00 PERCENT RETURN AIR, 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT. 0.00 PERCENT VISIBLE, 0.00 PERCENT REPLACEABLE. FROM DIJAN THRU JIDEC; CONTROLS-ROOM CONTROL , 3412000.0 HEATING, 3412000.0 COLING, 0.00 PERCENS MRT, FROM OLJAN THRU DIDEC: ELECTRIC EQUIPHENT-0.68, ROOM IV . 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT LATENT, 0.00 PERCENT LOST. FROM DIJAN THRU DIDEC; (1)F(LTRATION⇒53.13, ROON VENT , WITH COEFFICIENTS (1, 000000, 0 0000000, 0.0000000, 0, 0000000), FROM GIJAN THRU DIDEC; END ZONE; ZONE 2 "IW. typical ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -24.84, 0.00): NOATH AX15-0.00; EXTERIOR WALLS : STARTING AT(0.00, 12.12, 0.00) FACING(210.00) TILTED (90.00) MWALL (12.42 BY 8.00) WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE KWINDOW (5.38 BY 5.00) REVEAL (0.00) AT (0.01, 0.01): PARTITIONS : STARTING AT (0.00, 0.00, 0.30) FACING: 190.00) TILTED(40.00) BEARTI (24.70 BY 9.00). STARTING AT (24.70, 0.00, 0.00) FACING(90.00) TILIED(90.00) HPARTI (9.00 BY 8.01). STARTING AT124.70, 12.42. 5.001 FAC(NG(0.00) TILTED(90.00) HPARTE (24. "0 BY 0.001: SLAR ON GRADE FLONDRS : STARTING AT (0.00, 12.42, 0.00) FACING(1)90.00) T11TED(190.00) HELOOR (29.00 BY 17.42): CEILINGS : STARTING AT (0.00, 0.00, 0...) FACING(184.00) TILTEDIO. GO) CROOF 128.00 BY 1:.4" ; PEOPLE-2, ROOM PEOPLE .

FACHIG(180.00)

AT ACTIVITY LEVEL 0.35, 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, FROM OIJAN THRU BIDEC: LIGHTS-0.78, ROOM LIGHT , 0.00 PERCENT RETURN AIR, 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT. 0.00 PERCENT VISIBLE, 0.00 PERCENT REPLACEABLE, FROM 01JAN THRU 31DEC: CONTROLS-ROOM CONTROL , 3412000.0 HEATING, 3412000.0 COLLING, 0.00 PEPCENT MRT, FROM 01JAN THRU 31DEC; ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT=0.68, ROOM TV , 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT LATENT, 0.00 PERCENT LOST, FROM 01JAN THRU 31DEC; INFILTRATION-53.13, ROOM VENT , WITH COSPFICIENTS (1.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000), FROM DIJAN THRU BIDEC: END ZONE: ZONE] "IN.E.Corner ": ORIGIN: (28.00, -12.42, 0.00); NORTH AXIS=0.001 EXTERIOR WALLS : STARTING AT (28.00, 0.00, 0.00) FACING (90.001 TILTED(90.00) MWALL (12.12 BY 8,001 WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE HWINDOW (5, 14 BY 5.00) REVEAL(0.00) AT (0.01, 0.01), STARTING AT (28.00, 12.42, 0.00) FACING(0.00) TILISD(99.00) MWALL (29.00 BY 8.001; PARTITIONS STARTING AT (3.30. 0.00. 0.00) FAC(NG(180.00) TILTED(90.00) HPARTI (24,70 BY 8.00), STARTING AT (3.30, 9.00, 0.00) FACING(270.00) TILTED/90.00) MPARTI (9.00 BY 8.00); SLAD ON GRADE FLOORS : STARTING AT (0.00, 12.42, 0.001 FACING (180.001 171150.081 JUNE MFLOOP (28.00 BY 12.42); CELLINGS : STARTING AT (0. 0, 0,00, 9.00) FACING(180.00) TILTED(0.00) CROOF (29.00 BY 12.421: PEOPLE=2, ROON PEOPLE , AT ACTIVITY LEVEL 0.35,100,00 PERCENT RADIANT, FROM DIJAN THRU BIDEC; LIGHTS=0.78, ROTH LIGHT . 0.00 PEPCENT RETURN AND, 190,00 PEPCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERIMIT VISIBLE, 0.00 PERCENT ASPLACEABLE. FROM O'JAN THRU BIDEC: CONTROLS-ROOM C. NTROL . 3412000.0 HEATING, 3412000.0 CODLING, 0.00 PEPTENT MPT.

```
FROM DIJAN THRU BIDEC.
  ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT-0.68, ROOH IV .
    190.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT LATENT, 0.1. PERCENT LOST,
    FROM OIJAN THRU JIDEC:
  INFILTRATION=53.13, ROOM VENT ,
    WITH COEFFICIENTS (1.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000), 0.000000).
    FFON OLJAN THRU BIDEC;
END ZONE:
ZONE & "IE. Typical ":
  OPIGIN: (29,00, -24.84, 0.00);
  NOATH AXIS=0.00;
  EXTERIOR WALLS :
   STAATING AT (28.00, 0.00, 0.00)
    FACING(90.00)
    TILTED(90.00)
    MWALL (12.42 BY 8.00)
      WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE
      MWINDOW (5.38 84 5.00)
        REVEAL(0.00)
        AT (0.0), 0.01):
  CARTITIONS :
    STARIING AT(). 30. 0.00, 0.001
    FACING(100.00)
    TILTED (90.00)
    MPART1 (24.70 BY # 00),
    STARTING AT (3.30, 9.00, 0.00)
    FACING(270.00)
    T1LTED(30.00)
    MPARTI (9.00 BY 8.00),
    STARTING AT (28.00, 12.12, 0.00)
    EACING (0.00)
    TILTED(90.00)
    MPART) (21.70 BY 8.00);
  SLAD ON GRADE FLOORS :
    STARTING AT(0,00, 12.42, 0.00)
    FACING(190.00)
    (100.001) U371117
    HELOOR (28.00 BY 12.12);
  CEILINGS :
    STARTING AT(0.00, 0.00, 0.00)
    FACINO: 190.0*1
    TILTED(0.00)
   CROOF (28.00 BY 12.42):
  PEOPLE- 2, ROOM PEOPLE ,
    AT AUTIVITY LEVEL 0.35, 100. " FERCENT RADIANT,
    FROM 011AN THRU 31DEC:
  LIGHTS=0.78, ROOH LIGHT ,
      0.00 PERCENT RETURN AIR, 100.00 PEPCENT RATTANT,
      0.00 PERCENT VISIBLE. 0.00 PERCENT REFLACENCILE.
    FROM DIJAN THRU IIDEC;
  -NIROLS-ROOM CONTROL .
         3412000.0 REATING. 3412000.4 COOLING.
      0.00 PERCENT HRT.
    FROM DIJAN THRU MOET;
  ELECTRIC SQUIPHENT=0.68, ROOM TV .
    100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT PATENT, 0.00 TERCENT LOST.
    PROH CIJAN THRU DIDEC:
  INFILIRATION-53.13, ROOM VENT ,
    WITH COEFFICIENTS (1.000000, 0.000000, 0.0000000, 0.0000000).
    FROM DIJAN THRU BIDEC;
END ZONE:
ZONE 5 "IW_Typical ":
```

ORIGIN (0.00, -37.26, 0.00); NORTH AXIS-0.00; SAME AS ZONE 2 EXCEPT: END ZONE; ZONE 6 "IW, TYDICAL ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -49.69, 0.00); NORTH AXIS=0.00; SAME AS ZONE 2 EXCEPT: END ZONS: ZONE 7 "JW. Typical "; ORIGIN: (0.00, -62.10, 0.00); NORTH AXIS=0.00; SAME AS ZONE 2 EXCEPT: END ZONE: 20NE @ "1W, Typical ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -74,52, 0.00): NORTH AXIS=0.00; SANE AS ZONE 2 EXCEPT: END CONE; ZONE 9 "IW. Typical ": OPIGIN: (0.00, -86.91, 0.00); NORTH AXIS=0.00: SAME AS ZONE 2 EXCEPT: END ZONE; ZONE 10 "IW.Typical ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -97.36, 0.00); NORTH AXIS-0.00: SAME AS ZONE 2 EXCEPT: END ZONE: 20WE 11 "IW. Typical ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -111.78, 0.00); NORTH AX15-0.00; SAME AS ZONE 2 EXCEPT: END ZONE; ZONE 12 "IW. Typical ": "RIGIN: (0.00, -124.20, 0.00): NORTH AXIS-0.00; SAME AS ZONE 2 EXCEPT: END 20NE; 20NE 13 "15. Typical ": CRIGIN: (2P. AP. - 17.26, 0.00): NORTH AXIS-0.00; SAME AS ZONE 4 EXCEPT: END ZONE; 20NS 14 "18. Typical ": DRIGIN: (28.00, -19.69, 0.001: NORTH AXIS-0. DA; SAME AS ZONE & EXCEPT: END ZONE: 20016 15 "18.Typics1 ": ORIGIN: (20.00, -62.10, 0.00); NORTH AXIS=0.00; SAME AS ZONE 4 EXCEPT: ENO ZONE: ZONE 16 "18-Typical ": ORIGIN: 128.00, -74.57, 0,001; NORTH AXIS=0.00; SAME AS ZONE & EXCEPT: END ZONE: 20HE 17 "18. Typical ": ORIGIN: (28.00, -86.94, 0.00); NORTH AKIS=0.00:

SAME AS ZONE 4 EXCEPT: END ZONE; ZONE 18 "1E. Typical ": OPIGIN: (28.00, -99.16, 0.00); NORTH AXIS=0.00: SAME AS ZONE 4 EXCEPT: END ZONE; ZONE 19 "laundry ": RIGIN: (28.00, -124.20, 0.00): NORTH AXIS=0.00: EXTERIOR WALLS : STARTING AT (29.00, 0.00, 0.00) FACING(90.00) TILTED(90 00) MWALL (24.84 BY 8.00); PARTITIONS : STARTING AT (28.00, 24.04, 0.00) FACING(0.00) TILTED(90.00) MPARTI (24.70 BY A.00), STARTING AT (3.30, 24.84, 0.00) FACING (270.00) TILTED(90.00) HPART) (24.84 BY 9.00), STARTING AT (3.30. 0.00. 0.00) FACING (180.00) TILTED (90.00) MPARTY (24.70 BY 8.00); SLAB ON GRADE FLOORS : STARTING AT (0.00, 24.84, 0.00) FACING(190.00) TILTED(180.00) MELOOR (28.00 BY 24.84); CEILINGS : STARTING AT10.00, 0.00, 8.00) FACING(180.00) T1LTED(0.00) CROOF (28.00 BY 24.84): PEOFLE 5. LAUNDRY MACHINE . AT ACTIVITY LEVEL 0.65,100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, FROM OIJAN THRU DIDEC: LIGHTS-1.90, LAUNDRY HACHINE . 0,00 PERCENT RETURN AIR, 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT VISIBLE, 0.00 PERCENT REFLACEABLE, FROM OIJAN THRU JIDEC: ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT=7.17, LAUNDRY MACHINE . 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT LATENT, 0.00 DEP.ENT LOST, FRIN OIJAN THRU BIDEC; CONTROLS-LAUNDRY CONTROL . 3412000.0 HEATING, 3412000.0 COOLING, 0.00 PERCENT MRT. FRUM OIDAN THRU DIDEC: INFILTRATION-299.00, CALINDRY VEHT . WITH COEFFICIENTS (1.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000, FROM DIJAN THRU JIDEC: END COVE; ZONE 26 "Lobby ": CRIGIN: (0.00, -158 33, 0.001) NURTH AXIS-0.00; EXTERIOR WALLS : STARTING AT 11.00. 34.31. .01 EACING(370.00)

TILTED(90.00) HWALL (34.33 BY 8.00) WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE HWINDOW (9.09 BY 7.00) REVEAL(0.00) AT (0.01, 0.01), STARTING AT (56.00. 0.00, 0.00) FACING (90.00) TILTED (90.00) NWALL (34.33 BY 8.00) WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE HWINDOW (29.47 BY 7,601 REVEAL(0,00) AT (0.01, 0.01); PARTITIONS : STARTING AT (0.00, 0.00, 0.00) FACING(180.00) TILTED(90.00) MPART1 (56,00 BY 8.00), STARTING AT (55.00, 34.33, 0.00) PACING (0.00) TILTED(90.00) MPARTI (56.00 BY 8.00): SLAB ON GRADE FLOORS I STARTING AT (0.00, 34.33, 0.00) FACING(180.00) T1LTED(180.00) HELOOR 156.00 BY 31.331; ROOFS : STARTING AT (54.00, 0.00, 8.00) FACING(90,00) TILTED(15.00) MROOF (34.33 BY 29.00): CEILINGS : STARTING AT (0.00, 0.00, 0.00) FACING(180.00) TILTED(0.00) CPOOF (28.00 BY 34.33); PEOPLE=15.LOBBY PEOPLE . AT ACTIVITY LEVEL 0.45, 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, FROM OIJAN THRU DIDEC: LIGHTS-3. 29, CONTINUOUS . 0.00 PERCENT RETURN AIR. 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT VISIBLE, 0.00 PERCENT REPLACEABLE, FROM DIJAN THRU BIDEC: CONTROLS-ROOM CONTROL . 1412000.0 HEATING, 3432000.0 "OLDIG. 0.00 PERCENT MAT. FROM OIJAN THRU DIDEC: ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT-2.00, CONTINUOUS , 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT LATENT, 0.00 PERCENT LOST. FROM OIJAN THRU DIDEC: INFILTRATION-557.00, CONTINENOUS WITH COEFFICIENTS (1.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000), FROM GIJAN THEY DIDEC: END ZONE . ZONE 21 TZN.W. Corner T: CRIGIN: 10.00, -12.42, 8.001 -NORTH AXIS-0.00; EXTERIOP WALLS : STARTING AT(0.00, 12.42, 0.00) FACING (270.40)
TILTED(90.00) HWALL (12.42 BY 0.00) WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE MW [100W (5.38 BY 5.00) REVEAL(0.00) AT (0.01, 0.01), STARTING AT (20.00, 12.42, 0.00) FACING (0.00) TILTED(90 00) MWALL, (28,00 by 0.00); PARTITIONS : STARTING AT (0 00, 0.00, 0, 1) FACING(180.00) TILTED(90.00) MPARTI (24.70 BY 8.00), STARTING AT (24.70, 0.00, 0.00) FACING(90.00) TILTED(90.00) MPARTI (9.00 BY 9.00): FLCORS : STARTING AT (0.00, 12.42, 0.00) FACING (180.00) 7(LTED()80.00) CELOOR (28.00 BY 12.12): RCOF5 : STARTING AT (0.00, 12.42, P 00) FACING(270.00) TILTED(15.00) MROOF (12.42 BY 29.00): PEOPLE-2, ROOH PEOPLE , AT ACTIVITY LEVEL 0.35, 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, FROM OIJAN THRU BIDEC; LIGHTS-0.78, ROOM LIGHT . 0.00 PERCENT RETURN AIR, 100.04 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT VISIBLE, 0.00 PERCENT RETLATEABLE, FROM OIJAN THRU LIDEC; CONTROLS-ROOH CONTROL , 3412000.0 REATING, 3412000.0 COOLING, 0.00 PERCENT HRT. FROM OIJAN THEU SIDEC: ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT-0.68, ROOM TV . 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT LATENT, 0.00 PERCENT LO-T. FROM OLJAN THRU SIDEC; INFILTRATION-51.11, ROOM VENT , WITH COEFFICIENTS (1.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000). FROM DI TAN THEU SIDEC: END TONE; ZONE ... "2W. TYPINAL ": ORIGIN: (0.00, 24.94, 4.001; NOPTH AXIS 1.00: EXTERIOR WALLS : STARTING AT (0.80, 12.42, 0.00" FACING (270.00) TILTED(90.001 HWALL (12.42 BY 9.001 WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE HWINEN 15.39 BY 5.001 REVEAL 10.001 AT (0.01, 0.011: PARTITIONS : STARTING AT 10.00, 0.00, 0.001 FA 1901.140.001

.

T)LTED(90.00) HPART! (24.70 BY 8.00). STAATING AT (24.70, 0.00, 0.00) FACING (90.00) TILTED(90.00) HFARTI (9.00 BY 8.001, STARTING AT124.70, 12.42. 0.001 FACING(0.00) TILTED (90.001 MPARTI (24.70 BY 8.00); FLOORS : STARTING AT (0.00, 12.42, 0.00) FACING(180.001 TILTED(1R0.00) CELOOR (28.00 BY 12.42); : 2300R STARTING AT (0.00, 12.12, 0.00) FACING (270.00) T1LTED(15.00) HROOF (12.42 BY 28.00); PEOFLE-2, ROOM PEOPLE . AT ACTIVITY LEVEL 0.35,100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, FROM DIJAN THRU SIDEC: LIGHTS=0.78, ROCH LIGHT , 0.00 PERCENT RETURN AIR, 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT. 0.00 PERCENT VISIBLE, 0.00 PERCENT REPLACEABLE, FROM 01 JAN THRU 31 DEC: CONTROLS - ROOM CONTROL . 3412000.0 HEATING. 3412000.0 COLING. 0.00 PERCENT HRT. FROM 01JAN THRU JIDEC; ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT-0.68, RUCH TV , 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT LATENT, 0.00 PERCENT LOST. FROM DIJAN THRU LIDEC; INFILTRATION-53.13, ROOM VENT , WITH COEFFICIENTS (1.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000). FROM OIJAN THRU DIDEC; END LONE: ZONE 23 "2W. Typical ": ORIGIN: (0.00. -37.25, 8.00); NORTH AXIS-0.00: SAME AS ZONE 22 EXCEPT: END ZONE: ZONE 24 "2W. Typical ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -49.64, 8,00); NORTH AX15-0.00: SAME AS ZONE D7 EXCEPT: THO ZONE; DONE 25 "2W. Typical ": ORIG)N: (0.00, -62.10, 9.00); NORTH AXIS-0.00; SANE AS ZONE 22 EXCEPT: END Z NZ; 2 NE 26 "ZW. Typical ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -74.52, 8. 1); NORTH AX15-0.00: SAME AS ZONE 22 EXCEPT: END 2 NET TTNE 27 "2W. Typical ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -00.94. 0.001; NORTH AXIS=0.00; SAHE AS ZONE 22 EXCEPT:

END TONE; ZONE 28 "2W. Typical ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -99.36, 9.00); NORTH AXIS=0.00; SAME AS 2018 22 EXCEPT: END ZONE: ZONE 29 "2W.Typical ": ORIGIN: 10.00, -111.7 5.00 NORTH AXIS=0.00; SAME AS ZONE 22 EXCEPT: END ZONE; ZONE 30 "2W. Typical ": ORIGIN: (0.00. -124.20, 8.00); NOATH AXIS-0.00: SAME AS ZONE 22 EXCEPT: END ZONE; ZONE 31 "2N.E.Typical ": ORIGIN: (28.00, -12.42. 8.00); NORTH AX18-0.00: EXTERIOR WALLS : STARTING AT (28.00, 0.00, 0.00) EACING (90.00) TILTED(90.00) MHALL (12.42 BY 4.00) WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE MUINDOW (5.35 BY 5.00) REVEAL (0.00) AT (0.01, 0.01), STARTING AT (29.00, 12.42, 0.00) FACING(0.00) TILTED(90.00) MWALL (28.90 BY 8.001: PARTITIONS : 100.0 , 90.0 , 01.3. JUN DAT (3.30 FACING(180.00) TILTED (90.00) HEARTI (24.70 BY 4.010) STARTING AT(3.30, 3.00, 0.00) FACING (270.00) TILTED (90.001 MEARTE (9.00 BY 6.001; FLOORS : STARTING AT(0.00, 12.42, 0.00) FACING(180.00) T1LTED (180.00) CELOOR (28.00 BY 12.12); ROOFS : STARTING AT (24.00, 0.00, 0.00) TACING 00.001 TILTED(15.00) MROOF 112.42 BY 29 1012 PEOPLE-2, ROOM PEOPLE . AT ACTIVITY LEVEL 0.35.100.10 FERCENT RADIANT. FROM ØIJAN THR' JIDE .: LIGHTS-0.78, ROOM LIGHT 0.00 FERCENT REJURN ALP. 100.00 FERCENT RADIANT. 0.00 PERCENT VISIBLE, 0.C. PERCENT REPLACEABLE, FROM DIJAN THRU JIDEC; CONTROLS-ROOM CONTROL . 3412000.0 HEATING, JUI2008.0 COOLING, 0.00 PERCENT HRT. FROM CIJAN THRU HIDEC:

ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT-0.68, ROOH TV . 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT LATENT, 0.00 PERCENT LOST, FROM DIJAN THRU 31D6C: INFILTRATION=53.13, ROOM VENT . WITE COEFFICIENTS ().000000, 0.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000), FROM 01JAN THRU 31DEC: END ZONE; 20NE 32 "2E.Typical ": OPIGIN: 128,00, 24,94, 8.901; NORTH AXIS=0.00; EXTERIOR WALLS : STARTING AT 128.00, 0.00, 0.001 FACING (90.00) TILTED (90.00) MWALL (12.42 BY 8.00) WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE MNINDOW (5.30 BY 5.001 REVEAL(0.00) AT (0.01, 0.0)); PARTITIONS : STARTING AT(3.30, 9.00, 0.00) FACING (270.00) TILTED(90.00) MPARTI (9.00 BY 8.00). STARTING AT(3,30, 0.00, 0.00) FACING(180.00) TILIED(90,00) MPARTI (24,70 BY 8.00), STARTING AT (20.00, 12.42, 0.00) FACING (0,00) TILTED(30.00) HPARTI (24.70 BY 8.00): FLOORS : STARTING AT (0.00, 12.42, 0.00) FACING (180.001 TILTED(140.00) CFLOOR (28.00 BY 12.42); ROOFS : STARTING AT (28.00, 0.00, 8.00) FACING(90.00) TILTED(15.00) MROOF (12.42 BY 28.00); PEOPLE-2, ROOH PEOPLE . AT ACTIVITY LEVEL 0.35,100.00 PERCENT PADIANT, FROM DIJAN THRU BIDEC: LIGHTS-0.78, ROOM LIGHT , 0.00 PERCENT RETURN ALR, 100.00 PEPCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT VISIBLE, 0.00 PERCENT DEPLACEABLE, FROM OIJAN THRU SIDEC; CONTROLS-ROOM CONTROL , 1412000.0 HEATING, 3412000.0 C DLING, 0.00 PERCENT MRT, FROM DIJAN THRU SIDEC: ELECTRIC EQUIPHENT=0.68, ROOM 1V . 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT LATENT, 0.00 PERCENT LOST, FROM DI IAN THPU HEDEC: INFILTRATION-53.11. ROCH VERT . WITH SFFICIENTS 1.600000, 0.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000). FROM OTJAN THRU 31DEC: END Z WE: 7 NE 33 "2E.Typical ": ORIGEN: (29.00, 37.26 9.00).

NORTH AXIS-0.00: SAME AS 20NE 32 EXCEPT: END ZONE; ZONE 34 "25. Typical ": ORIGIN: (28.00, -19.68, 8.00); NORTH AXIS=0.00: SAME AS ZONE 37 EXCEPT: END ZONE: ZONE 35 "ZE. Typical ": ORIGIN: (28.00, -62,10, 8.001) NORTH AXIS=0.00; SAME AS ZONE 32 EXCEPT: END ZONE: 20NE 36 "26.Typics1 ": ORIGIN: (28.00, -74.52, 8.00): NORTH AXIS=0.00; SAME AS ZONE 32 EXCEPT: END ZONE: ZONE 37 "2E. Typical ": ORIGIN: (28.00, 46.94, 8.00); NORTH AX15+0.00; SAME AS ZONE 32 EXCEPT: END 20HE: 20NE 10 "28. typical ": ORIGIN: (24.00, -99.36, 8.00): NORTH AXIS=0.00: SAME AS ZONE 32 EXCEPT: END ZONE: ZONE 39 "2E. Typical ": ORIGIN: (28.00, -111.70, 9.00); NORTH AXIS=0.00; SAME AS ZONE 32 EXCEPT: SND ZONE: ZORE 40 "CE.Typical ": ORIGIN: (20.00, -124.20, 8.00); NORTH AX15-0.00; SAHE AS ZONE 32 EXCEPT: END ZONE ! ZONE (1 "2 Special ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -141.37, 2.001; NORTH AXIS=0.00: EXTERIOR WALLS : STARTING AT(0.00, 17.17, 0.00) FACING(270.00) TILTED(90.00) HWALL (17.17 BY 0.00) WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE MWINDOW (7.69 BY 7.90) REVEAL(0.00) AT (0.01, 0.01); PARTITIONS : STARTING AT 14.00, 0.00, 0.009 FACING/18D. . J) TILTED(90.00) MPARTI 121.70 BY STARTING AT 124.70, 0.00, 0.081 FACING (90. 00) 71LTED (\$0. 801 HPARTI (14.00 PY 8. 1). STARSING AT124.70, 17.17, 0.001 FACINGIO. 001 711.TEB(%%, 00)

MPARTI 124.70 BY 8.001; FLOOPS : STARTING AT 10.00, 17.17, 0.00) FACING (180.00) TILTED(180.90) CFLOOR (31.50 BY 17.17); ROOFS : STARTING AT 10.00, 17.17, 8.00) FACING (270.00) TILTED(0,00) MROOF (17.17 BY 31.50): PEOPLE-2, ROOM PEOPLE . AT ACTIVITY LEVEL 0.35,100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, FROM OIJAN THRU DIDEC; LIGHTS-0.70, ROOH LIGHT . 0.00 PERCENT RETURN AIR, LOO.00 PERCENT RADIANT, 0.00 PERCENT VISIBLE, 0.00 PERCENT REPLACEABLE, FROM GIJAN THRU BIDEC: CONTROLS-ROOM CONTROL . 3412000.0 HEATING, 3412000.0 COOLING, 0.00 PERCENT MAT, FROM OLJAN THRU JIDEC: ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT-0.69, ROOM TV . 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT. 0.00 PERCENT LATENT, 0.00 PERCENT LOST, FROM OIJAN THRU DIDEC: INFILTRATION-66.00, VENT SPEC2 . WITE CORFFICIENTS (1.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000), FROM OIJAN THRU DIDEC: END ZONE: ZONE 42 "2 Special ": ORIGIN: (0.00. -158.54. 9.00); ; GO. O-21XA HTROK SAME AS ZONE 41 EXCEPT: END 20NE; ZONE () "swim room ": ORIGIN: (0.00, -188.87, 0.00); NORTH AXIS=0.00; EXTERIOR WALLS : STARTING AT (0.00, 34.33, 0.00) FACING(270,00) TILTED(90.00) WHALL (30.3) BY 10.00) WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE MWINDOW (10.69 BY 9.00) REVEAL (0.00) AT (0.01, 0.01). STARTING AT 10.00, 0.00, 0.00) FAC18G(150,00) TILTED (90.00) WALL 156.00 BY 10.001 WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE MUINDOW (26,67 BY 7.50) REVEAL (0.00) AT (0.01, 0.01) STARTING AT(56.00, 0.00, 0.00) EACING (99.00) TILTED(90.00) WALL (30.15 BY 11.01. WITH WINDOWS OF TYPE HW(NDOW (10.8? BY 9.00) REVEAL (9. 0.69 AT 10.61. 0.011;

PARTITIONS : STARTING AT (56.00, 30.33, 0.00) FACING(0.00) TILTED(90.00) HPARTI (56.00 BY 10.00); SLAB ON GRADE FLOORS : STARTING AT (0.00, 30.33, 0.00) FACING(180.00) TILTED(1BD.00) HELOOR (56.00 BY 30.33); 800FS : STARTING AT (0,00, 30.33, 8.00) FACING(270.00) TILTED(15.00) HROOF (30.33 BY 29.001, STARTING AT (\$6,00, 0,00, 8,00) FACING(90.00) TILTED(15.00) MROOF (30.33 BY 29.00): PEOPLE-30, SWIM PEOPLE , AT ACTIVITY LEVEL 0.70,100.00 PERCENT RADIANT, FROM OIJAN THRU SIDEC; LIGHTS-2.90, CONTINUOUS , 0.00 PERCENT RETURN AIR, 100.00 PERCENT RADIANT. 0.00 PERCENT VISIBLE, 0.00 PERCENT REPLACEABLE, FROM OIJAN THRU BIDEC: CONTROLS-SWIN CONTROL . 3412000.0 HEATING, 3412000.0 COOLING. 0.00 PERCENT MRT, FROM 01-JAN THRU 31DEC; INFILTRATION-1780.00, CONTINUOUS , WITH COEFFICIENTS (1.000000, 0.000000, 0.000000), 0.000000), FROM OIJAN THRU BIDEC: END ZONE; END BUILDING DESCRIPTION; END INPUT:

.

Appendix B

۰.

HVAC Input File for the Motel Load Simulation

>>> The Input Data of Building HTL

Building	information
Building's name:	HTL
Building's Location:	Tulsa, Oklahoma
Latitude:	36.20
Longitude:	95.90
Building's Time Zone:	7
Timet	Clock Time
Atm. Pressure:	14.70
Summet Design Condition	53: • •
Month:	7
Day:	21
Design Dry Bulb Temp.:	96.00
Mean Coincident WBT:	76.00
Mwan Daily Range:	21.00
Winter Design Condition	na ; • •
Design Dry Bulb Temp.:	13.00
Relative Humidity:	60.00
Average Air Temp.:	49.30
Ground Amplitude:	18.00

Zone Information

Zone Name:	IN.E. Cort.
Zone Multiplier:	ı
Summer Indoor Design DET:	68.00
Summer Indoor Design WBT:	70.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indoor Design WBT:	0.00
Summer Indoor R. Humidity:	50.00
Winter Indoor P. Humidity:	30.00
Room Construction Type:	Extreme Light
Max. System C. Capacity:	100000.00
Max. Syster H. Capacity:	-100000.00
System Air Flow Rate:	0.00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Renge:	0.10
System Annual Schd. Name:	motel room control
System Design Schd. Name:	motel room
Ventilating Ann. Schd. Name:	room people
Vencilating Des. Schd. Name:	room people

-----Rc : Information

Four Name:		Eocil
koom Hultiplier:		3
Floor Sur. Area:		347.70
Room Ceiling Height		9.00
Room Perameters:		
Room Geometry	:	15 ft x 15 D.
Room Height	:	F (L
I of Exterior Wall	:	2
Interior Shada	:	50 1
Furniture	:	With
Exterior Construction	4	L.W. with Lt. insin.
Partition Type	:	5/5 in. Gyp-Air-5/8 in. Gyp
Room Location	:	BOLLOD FIELT
Mid Floor Type	:	l in. Wood
Slab Type	;	4 in. glat on 12 in. soil
Ceiling Type	:	Without Cailing
Roof Type	:	L.W. w/e susp. coiling
Floor Covering	:	vinyl tile
Glass Parcent	:)o î

-----People Information------

People's Name:	people	
People Peak Gain:	716.00	
Peak Licupancy:		
Sensible Hear Cain:	250.00	
Latent Heat Gain:	105.00	
Radiant Fraction:	0,700	
Convective Fraction:	0.300	
Annual Schd. Name:	room people	
Design Day Sond. Name:	room people	

-----Light Information-----

Light's	Нале:	Lighz
Light's	Peak Gain:	783.497
Radiant	Fraction:	0.590

Convective Fraction:	0.410
Annual Schd. Name:	room light
Design Day Schd. Name:	room light
Equipment latoin	10100
.	
Equipment's Name:	Equipment (IV)
Equipment Yeak Gain:	682.00
Sensible Heat Heath:	662.00
Latent Heat Gain:	0.00
Equipment Hulcipiter:	1
RADIANT FRACTION:	0.100
CORVOCUIVE FRACTION:	0.100
Andual Scha. Name:	
Design Day Scho. Name:	reas ly
Infiltration Info	TELL LODDODD
second pritchacton into	IEACIOB~
fallinger lands Namas	Tatiller-From
All Changer about	0.30
Regular Schel, Name.	CONCERCE SALE
Design Day Scho. Name:	0000000000
and the second state of th	1/10
totterostati intormati	10B
Wallta Nawa:	Fe-1
Facing Directions	90.0
Tile Ingles	96 00
Vill Dunde	2
Wall Type.	0.15
Actual o Factor,	0.12
Surface Apart	29.16
Waterial Bestrintions:	//:30
Haterial obseriptions.	10 · Ourmade Surface
Sevistance.	
hostovanov	Al : Stepl Siding
	A12 + 3 in the latent
	•.• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	EG : Inside Surface
Resistance	EC : inside Surface
Resistance	EC : Inside Surface
Resistance	EC : Inside Surface EZ : 1/7 In: 51ag or
Resistance Stone Mass Location;	EC : Inside Surface EZ . 1/2 in. Slag or Mass Integral
Resistance Stone Mass Location; Principle Material:	EC : Inside Surface EZ . 1/2 in. 51ag or Mass Integral Al.A3.A5.or El 1 in.
Resistance Stone Mass Location; Principle Material: Stucco.Steel	EG : Inside Surface EZ . 1/2 in. Siag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A5,or El l in.
Resistance Stome Mass Location; Principle Material: Stucca, Steel Secondary Material:	EG : Inside Surface EZ . 1/2 in. 51ag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A5,or El 1 in. El 3/4 in. Plastet or
Resistance Stone Hass Location: Principle Haterial: Stucca, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum	EC : Inside Surface EZ . 1/2 In. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in. El 3/4 in. Plastot or
Resistance Stone Mass Location; Principle Material; Stucca, Steel Secondery Material; Gypsum	EC : Inside Surface EE . 1/2 in. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El ! in. El)/4 in. Plastne or
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Secondary Material: Gypsum >>>Window for This Su	EC : Inside Surface EI : 1/2 in: Siag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in: El 3/4 in: Plastor or flace6
Resistance Stone Mass Location; Principle Material: Stucco, Steal Secondary Material: Gypsun >>Window for This Su	EG : Inside Surface EI : 1/2 in. Sing or Mass Integraf Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in. El 3/4 in. Plastor or Macc66
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucco, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>	EG : Inside Surface EE . 1/2 In. 51ag or Mass Integral Al.A3.A5.or El 3 in. El 3/4 in. Plastor or flace6
Resistance Stone Mass Location; Principle Material: Stucca, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum >>====Window for This Su Glass's Name:	EG : Inside Surface EI : 1/2 in: 51ag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in: El :)/4 in: Plastor or flace
Resistance Stone Mass Location; Principle Haterial: Stucco, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width:	EG : Inside Surface EI : 1/2 in: Siag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in: El 3/4 in: Plastor or flace6 windrow E.4i
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucco, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height:	EC : Inside Surface EL : 1/2 In: 51ag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in: El 3/4 in: Plastor or flace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum >>>>>>>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Conflicient:	EC : Inside Surface EE : 1/2 in: 51ag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in: El 3/4 in: Plastne or riace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Secondary Material: Gypsum >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Width: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor:	EC : Inside Surface EI : 1/2 in. Siag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El : in. El : 1/4 in. Plastor or riace
Resistance Stone Mass Location; Principle Haterial: Stucco, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Coefficient: Glass U Factor:	EC : Inside Surface EZ : 1/2 In. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A5,or El 1 in. El 3/4 In. Plastor or rlace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum >>>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Conflicient: Glass U Factor:	EC : Inside Surface EE : 1/2 in: Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El I in: El 3/4 in: Plastne or reace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Secondary Material: Sysum >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Width: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat	EG : Inside Surface EI : 1/2 in: Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El : in: El :)/4 in: Plastne or riace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Secondary Material: Gypsum >>Window for This Su Class's Name: Window Width: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat	EG : Inside Surface EI : 1/2 in: 51ag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in: E1 : 1/4 in: Plastor or riace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat	EC : Inside Surface EZ : 1/2 In: 51ag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in: El 3/4 in: Plastor or flace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum >>>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name:	EC : Inside Surface EE : 1/2 In: 51ag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in: El 3/4 in: Plastnet or rface uindres 6.41 4.20 0.6700 Ion
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Secondary Material: Gypsum >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Width: Window Width: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction:	EC : Inside Surface EZ : 1/2 In. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in. El 3/4 in. Plastor or rlace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Till Angle:	EC : Inside Surface EC : 1/2 In. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in. El 3/4 In. Plastor or flace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Secondary Material: Sysum >>>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Conflicient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall Type:	EC : Inside Surface EC : 1/2 In. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El I in. El 3/4 in. Plastne or rlace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Secondary Material: Sysue Secondary Material: Gypsum Sysue Window Hoth: Window Width: Window Width: Window Width: Window Width: Window Width: Window Width: Window Width: Window State Window Width: Window W	EC : Inside Surface EC : 1/2 in. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El : in. E1 :)/4 in. Plastne or riace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucco.Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall Type: Actual U Factor: Sutface Absorptance: Confficient: State Confficient: Sutface Absorptance: Sutface State Confficient: Sutface State Confficient: State Confficient: Sutface State Confficient: Sutface State Confficient: Sutface State Confficient: State Confficien	E0 : Inside Surface E2 . 1/2 in. Slag or Mass Integral A1,A3,A5,or E1 1 in. E1 3/4 in. Plastor or rlace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>~~~~Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Weight: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall Type: Actual U Factor: Surface Absorptance: Surface Area:	E0 : Inside Surface E2 . 1/2 In. 51ag or Mass Integral A1,A3,A6,or E1 1 in. E1 3/4 in. Plaster or rlace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum >>>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Height: Glass Shading Coefficient: Glass Shading Coefficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Tacing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall Type: Actual U Factor: Sufface Absorptance: Sufface Area: Material Descriptions:	EC : Inside Surface EC : 1/2 in. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in. El 3/4 in. Plaster or rface
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucco.Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Mali Type: Actual U Factor: Surface Assorptance: Surface Area: Material Enscriptions: 	E0 : Inside Surface E2 . 1/2 in. Slag or Mass Integral A1,A3,A6,or E1 1 in. E1 3/4 in. Plastor or rlace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>	E0 : Inside Surface E2 . 1/2 In. Slag or Mass Integral A1,A3,A6,or E1 I in. E1 J/4 In. Plastor or flace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum >>>>>>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Coefficient: Glass Shading Coefficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall Type: Actual U Factor: Surface Absorptance: Surface Area: Material Descriptions: Resistance	EC : Inside Surface EC : 1/2 in. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El I in. El J/4 in. Plaster or rface
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucco.Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>Window for This Su Class's Name: Window Width: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall's Name: Sufface Assorptance: Sufface Area: Material Esscriptions: Resistance	E0 : Inside Surface E2 : 1/2 in. Slag or Mass Integral A1,A3,A6,or E1 1 in. E1 3/4 in. Plastor or rlace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>	EG : Inside Surface EZ : 1/2 In: Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in. El 3/4 in: Plaster or flace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum >>>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Conflicient: Glass Shading Conflicient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Mail Type: Actual U Factor: Surface Absorptance: Surface Assar: Material Esscriptions: Resistance	EG : Inside Surface EZ : 1/2 In: Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El I in: El)/4 in: Plaster or rlace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steal Secondary Material: Gypsum >>>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Coefficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall Yppe: Actual U Factor: Surface Area: Material Descriptions: Resistance Actual	E0 : Inside Surface E2 : 1/2 in. Slag or Mass Integral A1,A3,A6,or E1 1 in. E1 3/4 in. Plastor or rlace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall Type: Actual U Factor: Surface Absorptance: Surface Area: Material Descriptions: Resistance Stone Mass 'settion:	EC : Inside Surface EZ : 1/2 in: Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in. El 3/4 in: Plaster or flace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum >>~~~~Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Width: Window Weight: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall Type: Actual U Factor: Surface Absorptance: Surface Absorptan	EG : Inside Surface EZ : 1/2 In. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El I in. El J/4 in. Plaster or rlace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsum >>>>>>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Width: Window Height: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall Type: Actual U Factor: Sufface Absorptance: Sufface Area: Material Descriptions: Resistance Stone Mess Location: Principle Material: Principle Material:	EC : Inside Surface EZ : 1/2 In. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in. El 3/4 in. Plastor or riace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Weight: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall Type: Actual U Factor: Surface Absorptance: Surface Absorptance: Surface Area: Material Descriptions: Resistance Stone Mess Location: Frinciple Material: Stucco, Steel	EG : Inside Surface EZ : 1/2 in: Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in. El 3/4 in: Plaster or flace
Resistance Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucce, Steel Secondary Material: Gypsun >>~~~~Window for This Su Glass's Name: Window Weight: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass Shading Confficient: Glass U Factor: Wall Informat Wall's Name: Facing Direction: Tilt Angle: Wall Type: Actual U Factor: Surface Absorptance: Surface Absorptance: Sur	EG : Inside Surface EZ : 1/2 In. Slag or Mass Integral Al,A3,A6,or El 1 in. El 3/4 in. Plaster or flace

.

*** No Window Defined For This Surface ***

-----infilication information----

Infiltration's Name:	VENT
Ar Change/Hour:	0.65
Appual Schd. Name:	room people
Design Day Schd. Name:	rcan people

----- Zone Information ------

ZONB NAME:	LE. TYP.
2008 Hultiplier:	7
Summer Indoor Design DBT:	68.00
Summer Indoor Design WBT:	70.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Wister indoor Design WBT:	0.00
Summer Indoor &. Humidity:	50.00
Winter Indoor R. Humidity:	30.00
Room Construction Type:	Satrome Light
Max, System C. Capacity:	100000.00
Max, System M. Capacity:	-100000.00
System Air Flow Rate:	0.00
Outdoor ALE FION RALE:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	Ū,10
System Annual Schd. Name:	motel room control
System Design Schd. Name:	motel room
Vencilating Ann. Schd. Name	room people
Vancilating Des. Schd. Name;	toom people

Room Name:		Room
Room Hultiplier:		1
Floor Sur. Area:		347.70
Room Ceiling Reight:		8,00
Roco Parameters:		
Room Geometry	:	15 ft x 15 ft
Room Height	:	8 ft
# of Exterior Wall	:	1
Interior Shade	:	50 1
Furniture	:	With
Exterior Construction	:	L.W. with Lt. ipsla.
PATTICION Type	:	5/B in. Gyp-Air-5/8 in. Gyp
koom Location	:	Bottom Floor
Mid Floor Type	:) in. Weod
Slab Type	:	4 in. slab on 12 in. soil
Ceiling Type	:	Without Coiling
Roof Type	:	L.W. W/O SUSD. Colling
Floor Covering	:	vinyl tile
Glass Percent	:	10 1

-----Light Information-----

Light's Name:	Liahe
Light's Peak Gain:	783.457
Radiant Fraction:	0.59 :
Convertive Fraction:	0.410
Annua: Schd. Name:	room light
Design Day Schil, Name:	room light

-----People Information-----

People's Name:	people
Paople Pesk Gain:	710.00
Pesk Occupancy:	2
Sensible Heat Coin:	250.00
Latent Reat Gain:	105.00
Radiant Fraction:	0.70
Convective Fraction	0.300
Annual Schd. Name:	room people
Design Day Schd. Nome:	room people

-----Equipment information-----

Equipment's Name:	Equipment (TV)
Equipment Peak Gain:	682.00
Sensible Heat Gain:	682.00
Latent Heat Gass:	0.00
Equipment Multiplier:	1
Radiant Fraction:	0.700
Convective Fraction:	0,300
Annual Schd. Name:	EDGE TV
Design Day Scho. Name:	TOOD TV

-----Infiltration Information----

Infiltration's Name: Air Change/Rouc: Annual Schd. Name: Design Day Schd. Name: Infiltration 0.50 CORTINUOUS CORTINUOUS

---- Inii)tration Information----

Infiltration's Name:	VENT
Alt Change/Bour:	0.65
Annual Schd. Name:	room people
Design Day Schd. Name:	rath people

------Wall information-----

Wall's Name:	Eest
Facing Direction;	90.01
Tilt Apgle:	90.0Ú
Wall Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0.11
Surface Absorptance:	0.79
Surface Area:	99.J6
Haterial Descriptions:	
-	AD : CALESIDE SURTACE
Resistance	
	AD : Steel Siding
	B12 : 3 in. Insulation
	EO : Inside Surface
Redistance	
	E2 : 1/3 (n. 5140 or
Stone	
Mass Location:	Hass integral
Principle Material:	A1, A3, A6, or 51 1 Ln.
Stucco, Steel	
Secondary Material:	El 3/4 in, Plaster or
Gypsum	

>>-----Window for This Surface-----

Glass's Hame:	window
Window Width:	6.40
Window Beight:	1.20
Glass Shading Coefficient:	0.80
Glass U Factor:	0.6700

ZODe Information

Zone Name:	ZW. TYP.
Zone Multiplier:	9
Summer Indoor Design DBT:	68.00
Summer Indoor Design WBT:	70.03
Winter Indoor Design DET:	0.00
Winter Ind or Design W87:	0.00
Summer Indo : R. Humidsey:	50.00
Winter Indoor R. Rumidley;	30.00
Roor Construction Type:	Extromy List'
Max. System C. Capacity:	100000.00
Max. System H. Caparity:	-100000.00
System Air Firm Rates	0.00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	0.10
Syster Abnual Schd, Name:	potel room untrol
System Design Schd. Hamp:	motal room
Ventilating Ann. Schd. Name:	room people
Ventilating Des. Schd. Name:	root people

-----Rott Information-----

Roum Name:		Room
Room Multiplier.		1
Floor Sur. Ares:		3(7,70
koom Ceiling Height:		8.00
Room Parameters:		
Koom Geometry	:	15 ft x 15 ft
Room Height	:	fi ft
f of Exterior Wall	:	1
Interior Shade	:	50 L
Furniture	:	With
Exterior Construction	:	L.W. With Lt. insla.
Parilion Type	:	5/8 in. Gyp-Air-SUP in Gyp
Room Location	:	Top Flos:
Mid Floa: Type	:	1 is. Wood
Slab Type	:	4 in. 2160 on 12 in. 2011
Ceiling Type	:	Without Ceiling
Roof Type	;	L.W. W/O SUSP. Ceilino
Floor Covering	:	Viny! tile
Glass Percent	:	10 1

-----People Istomatios------

People's Name:	peop!e
People Peak Gain:	210.00
Peak Occupancy:	2
Sensible Beat Gain:	250.00
Latent Best Gain:	105.00
Radiant Fraction:	0,700
Convective Fraction:	0.300
Annual Schd. Name:	room people
Design Day Schd. Name:	toom beoble

-----Light Information------

Light's Name:	Light
Light's Peak Gain:	763.497
Redient Fraction:	0.590
Convective Fraction;	0.410
Annual Schol. Name:	room light
Design Day Schi. Name:	room light

-----Equipment Infofmation-----

Equipmont's Name:	Equipment (۲VI
Equipment Peak Gain:	692.00	
Sensible Heat Gain:	682.00	
batent Reat Gain:	0.00	
Equipment Multipiler:	1	
Radiant Fraction:	0.700	
Convective Fraction:	0.300	
Annual Schd. Name:	roor TV	
Design Day Schd. Name:	TOOM TV	

-----Infiltration Information----

Infiltration's Name:	Infiltration
ALI Change/Hour:	0.50
Annual Schd. Name:	continuous
Design Day Schd. Name:	contínuous

-----P of Information-----

Rocf's Name:	Roof
Facing Direction:	270.00
Til Angles	15.00
Roof Type:	1
Actual U Factor	0.05
Surface Absorptance:	0.7F
Surtace Arma:	360.18
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	14 Undefined 91
Principle Material:	Undefined ##
Suspended Cerling:	IN Undefined #
*** No Window Defined Fo.	This Surface ***

-----Infiltration Information----

Infliteation's Name:	VENT
Ast Change/Rour:	9.65
Annual Schd. Name:	room people
Design Day Schd. Name.	room people

wall Information-----

Wall's Name:	West
Facing Direction:	270.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0.11
Surface Absorptance:	0,78
Surface Area:	99.36
Material Descriptions:	
•	A0 : Outside Surface
Resistanco	
	AJ : Steel Siding
	B12 : J in. Insulation
	ED : Inside Surface

kesistance

.

E2 : 1/2 :h. Slag t Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucco, Steel Mass Integral Al, AJ, A6, or E1 1 1E. Secondary Material: Gypsum

El 3/4 in. Plaster er

>>-----Window for This Surface------

Glass's Name:	window
Window Width:	6.40
Window Reight:	4.20
Glass Sheding Coefficient:	C.08
Glass U Factor:	0.6700

----- Zane Information

2one Name:	2N.W. Corn
Zoge Hultiplier:	1
Summer Indoor Design DBT:	68.00
Summer Indoor Design WBT:	20.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indoor Design WBT:	C. OC
Summer Indoor R. Humidity:	50.00
Winter Indoor R. Bunidity:	30.00
Room Construction Type:	Extrema Light
Max. System C. Capacity:	100000.00
Hax. System H. Capacity:	-100000.00
System ALT FLOW Rate:	0.00
Outdoor ALE Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	0.10
System Annual Schd. Name:	motel room contr.
System Design Schd. Name:	actel room
Ventilating Ann, Schd. Name:	toom people
Ventilating Dos. Schd. Name:	toom people

Room Information

•	Roop
	1
	347.70
	8,00
:	15 FU x 15 12
:	9 ft
:	2
:	50 1
:	WILL
:	L.W. with Lt. 1582n.
:	5/0 in. Gyp-Air-5/8 in. Gy;
:	Top Floor
:	1 in. West
:	(in, sink in 13 in, sub-
:	Without Coaling
:	LW. W/5 Bespirearling
•	vinyl tile
•	10 1

-----People Information------

People's Name:	people
People Peak Gein:	716.07
Peak (acupancy:	2
Sensible Heat Gain:	250.00
Latent Heat Gain:	105.00
Radiant Fraction:	0.700
Convective Fraction:	0,300
Annual Schd. Name:	room people
Design Day Sobd. Name:	room people

-----Light Information-----

Light's Name:	Light
Light's Peak Gain:	783.477
Rediant Fraction:	1.590
Convective Fraction.	Ū.410
Annual Schd. Name:	rone light
Design Day Schi. Name:	root inh.

-----Equipment Intotmation-----

Equipment's Name:	Σαυιρωφητ	(177)
Equipment Peak Gain:	682.0C	

.

Separate Heat Gain:	692.00
Latent Heat Gain:	0.00
Equipmont Hultiplier:	L
Radiant Frection:	0.700
Convective Fraction:	0.300
ADDUAL SEEd. Name:	room TV
Design Day Schd. Name:	room TV

-

-----Infiltration Information----

Dfiltration's Name:	Infiltration
Alt Change/Rour:	0.50
Annual Schd. Name:	COOLIDUOUZ
Design Day Schd. Nome:	continuous

----Read Information-----

Roof's Name:	Rool
Facing Direction:	270.00
Till Angle:	15.00
ROO(Type	1
Actual U Factor:	0.05
Surface Absorptance:	0.78
Surface Area:	360.10
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	as Undefined as
Principle Material:	I Undefined II
Suspended Celling:	Distance in the second seco
No Window Sefined For	This Surface ***

-----Infiltration Information----

Infiltration's Name:	VENT
Air Change/Hour:	¢.65
Annual Schd. Name:	room people
Design Day Schd. Name:	toom people

-----Wall Information-----

Wall's Name:	Wast
Facing Diraction:	270,00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0.11
Surface Absorptance:	0.78
Sorface Area:	99.36
Moterial Liscriptions:	
	AU : Cutside Surface
Resistance	
	A) : Stund Siding
	B12 : 3 in. Insulation
	E0 : Inside Surface
Resistance	
	22 : 1/2 In. 51ag or
SLONE	
Mass Location:	Mass Integral
Principle Material:	A:, AL, A6, or E1 1 :D.
Stucco, Steel	
Secondary Матитині: Бурахан	El 3/4 16. Plastet of

>>-----Window for This Surface-----

Glass's Name:	WIDdow
WINDOW WIDTE:	6.40
Window Keight:	4.20
Glass Shading Confficient:	Ú.FE
Glass & Factor:	0.6700

Wall Information

Wall's None:	NOTED
Facing Direction:	0.00
Till Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0.1)
Sur (ace Absorptance:	0.70
Surface Ares:	274.00
Moterial Descriptions:	
	A0 : Cuiside Surface
ROSISTADCO	
	A) : Steel Siding

	B12 : J ib. Insulation
	Eū ; Inside Surface
Registance	
	22 : 1/2 in. 51ag :
Stone	
Mass Location:	HASS Integral
Principle Material:	AI, AJ, A6, or E) 1 15.
Stucco, Steel	
Secondary Material:	El 3/4 in. Plastar or
Сурашт	
*** Nº Window Defined For T	his Surface ***

Zone Information

Zone Name:	7N.E. Corn
Zone Hultiplier:	1
Summer Indon: Design DBT:	68.00
Summer Indoor Design WRT:	20.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indoor Design WBT:	0.00
Summer Indoor R. Humidity:	50.00
Winter Indoor R. Humidity:	30.00
Room Construction Type:	Extrano Light
Hax. System C. Capacity:	100000.00
Max. System R. Capacity:	-100000.00
System Air Flow Rate:	0.00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	0.10
System Annual Schd. Name:	motel room control
System Design Schd. Name:	mole! room
Ventilating Ann. Schd. Name:	rcom people
Ventilating Des. Schd. Nome:	room people

-----Roca Information------

Room Name:		Roan
Room Hultiplier:		L
Floor Sur. Area:		347.00
Room Ceiling Height:		8.00
Room Parameters:		
Room Geometry	:	15 ft x 15 ft
Room Belght	:	- 1L
af Exterior Wall	:	2
Interior Shade	:	50 1
Furniture	:	With
Exterior Construction	:	L.W. with it. insin.
Partition Type	:	5/8 in. Gyp-Air-5 " in. Cyp
Room Location	;	Top Floor
Mid Floor Type	:	1 in. Wood
Sieb Type	:	4 in. slab on 12 sr. su.,
Cailing Type	:	Without Ceiling
Roof Type	:	L.W. W/o susp. ceiling
Floor Covering	:	vinyl tilo
Glass Percent	:	10 1

------bight Information

Light's Nemo:	Light
Light's Peak Gain:	783.497
Radiant Fraction:	0.550
Convective Fraction:	e.410
Annual Schd, Name	room light
Design Day Scho. Name:	room light

......Equiptent Information-----

Equipment's Name:	E4.7 bp.m. ()	Г /)
Equipment Peak Gain:	602.00	
Sensible Heat Gain:	682,00	
Locent Heat Gain:	0,00	
Equipment Hultiplier:		
Rodiant Fraction:	0.700	
CONVECTIVE FRACTION: 0.300		
Annual Schd. Rame:	room TV	
Design Day Scho. Name:	room IV	

-----Paople Informstron-----

People's Name:	people
People Pesk Gain:	210.00
Реак Оссыралсу:	2
Sonsible Hest Gain:	250.00
Latent Best Gain:	105.00
Radiant Fraction:	6.706
Convective Fraction:	0.300

Annual Sold, Name: room people Design Day Sold, Name: rorm people

-----Istilication isformation----

Infiltration's Name:	Infiltration
Air Change/Hour:	C.50
Annual Schd. Name:	continuous
Design Day Schd. Name:	CODIIDUOUS

Roo! Information

Roof's Name:	Roof
Facing Direction:	90.00
Tilt Apole:	15.00
Roof Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	0.05
Surface Absorptance:	0.78
Surface Area:	360.18
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	() Undefined ()
Principle Haterial:	ft Updefined 48
Suspended Ceiling:	ff Undefined Is
No Window Defined For	This Surface

-----Infiltratio: Information----

Infiltration's Name:	VENT
Air Change/Hour:	0.65
Annual Schol Name.	roca people
Design Day Schd. Name:	room people

-----Wall Information-----

Wall's Name:	East
Facing Direction:	90.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wail Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	D.11
Surface Absorptance:	0.78
Suctore Area:	95.36
Material Descriptions:	
	AD : Outside Surface
Registance	
	A) : Steel Siding
	B12 : 3 in. Insulation
	EO : Inside Surface
kes_stance	
	E2 : $1/2$ in, flag or
Stone	··· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Hass Location:	Mass Integral
Principle Material:	A), AJ, A6, or E) 1 17.
Stucco, Steel	
Secondary Maturial:	E) 3/4 in. Plaster or
Gypauz.	
- , ,	

>>----Window for This Surface------

Glass's Name:	W) TO ON
Wandow Width:	6.40
Window Helpht:	4.20
Glass Shading Coefficient:	0.2:
GIASS U Factor:	0.6700

-----Wall Information

Nall's Name:	North
FACING DIRACTIONS	0.00
racing Direction.	
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0.11
Surface Absorptance:	97,0
Surface Azez:	120.00
Material Descriptions:	
	A0 : OULSIDE SURFACE
Rosistance	
	A) : Steel Siding
	B12 : 3 in. Insulation
	EO : loside Surface
hos1 = + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	
	E2 : 1/2 in. Slag or
Stone	

 Mass Location:
 Mass Integral

 Principle Material:
 A1, A3, A6, or E1, 1 in.

 Stucco,Stini
 Sucondary Material:

 Sucondary Material:
 E1, 3/4 in. Flaster or Gypsum

 or Window Defined For This Surface ***

20ne Information

ZODE NADE: 2E. Typ. Zone Hultiplier: Summer Indoor Design DBT: 68.00 Summer Indeor Design WB7: Winter Indeor Design DB7: Winter Indeor Design WB7: 70.00 0.00 0,00 Summer Inden: R. Humidity: Winter Indoor R. Sumidity: 50.00 30.00 Room Construction Type: Extreme Light Max. System C. Capacity: Max. System H. Capacity: System Air Flow Rate: 100000.00 0.00 Outdoor Air Flow Rate: 0.00 System Throttling Range: System Annual Schd. Neme: System Design Schd. Neme: 0.10 motal room control motel rocu Ventilating Ann. Schd. Name: room people Ventilating Des. Schd. Name: room people

Roo: Information-----

Romm Name;		Ko-αm
Room Multiplier:		í
Floor Sur. Area:		347-70
Room Ceiling Reight:		6.00
Room Paremeters:		
Room Geometry	:	15 Et x 15 ft
Room Height	;	P 11
# of Exterior Wall	2	7
Interior Snade	:	50 L
Furniture	:	With
Exterior Construction	:	L.W. with Lt. insin.
Partition Type	:	5/P in. Gyp-Air-". * in. Gyp-
Room Location	;	Top Floor
Hid Ploor Type	:	1 in. Wood
Slab Type	4	4 10. slab on 12 in. soil
Celling Type	:	Without Celling
Roof Type	Ξ	L.W. W/O SUSP. Colline
Floor Covering	:	vinyl tile
Glass Percent	5	10 1

-----People Information-----

People's Name:	500p24	
Prople Pusk Gain:	710.00	
Peak Occupancy:	?	
Sensible Heat Gain:	256.00	
Latent Reat Gain:	105.00	
Radian' Fraction:	0.700	
Convoctive Fraction:	206.0	
Annual Schd, Name:	room peorle	
Darign Day Schd. Name:	room people	

-----Light Information------

Light's Nach:	Light	
Light's Peak Gain:	783.437	
Radiant Fraction:	0.590	
Convective Praction:	3,430	
Annual Schi. Name:	room 21 dhe	
Design Day Schd. Name:	room light	

-----R. (Information-----

Roof's Name:	800f #1
Facing Direction:	94.00
Tilt Angle:	15.00
Roof Type:	:
Actual U Factor:	0.75
Surface Absorptance:	6.74
Surface Ares:	365.19
Haterial Descriptions.	
Hass Location:	# Undefined ##
Principle Material:	at Updoticed 44
Suspanded Ceiling:	al Undefined 41
··· No Window Defined Fo	r This Surface ***

-----Equipmont information-----

Equipment's Name:	Equipment	(TV)
Equipment Peak Gain:	682.03	
Sansible Heat Gain:	682.00	
Latent Heat Gain:	0.00	
Equipment Multiplier:	1	
Radlant Fraction:	6.700	
Convective Fraction:	0.30	
Annual Schd. Name:	CONT. TV	
Design Day Schd. Name:	room TV	

-----Infiltration Information----

Infiltration's Name:	Infiltration
Air Change/Hour:	0.50
Annual Schd. Name:	CODITUOUS
Design Day Schd. Name:	continuous

-----Infiltration Information----

Infiltration's Name:	VEN?	
Air Change/Hour:	0.65	
Annual Schd. Name:	rócei	people
Design Day Schd. Name:	1000	people

-----Wali Information-----

EOSL
90.00
90.00
2
0.11
0.78
55.36
A0 : Outside Surface
AJ : Steel Siding
B12 : 3 in. Insulation
50 : Inside Surface
E2 : $1/2$ in. Slag or
Mag: Integral
A) A) A6 or E)))D.
EL 3/4 in. Planter pr

>>----Window for this Surface----<<

Glass's Nome:	WINdow
Window Width:	6.40
Window Height:	4.20
Glass Shading Coefficient:	0.68
Glass U Factor:	0.6700

AND AND ZONE INFORMATION PRACE

Zone Name:	1W. Typ.
2one Hultiplier:	9
Summer locicor Design DBF.	68.00
Suppor Indoor Design, WBT:	70.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT.	0.00
Winter Indoor Design WET:	0.00
Summer Indoor K. Runidity:	50.00
Winter Indoor R. Humidity:	30.00
Reom Construction Type:	Extreme Light
Han. System C. Capacity:	100000.00
Max. System R. Capacity:	-100000.00
System Air Flow Rate:	0.00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	0.10
System Annual Schd. Name.	motel room control
System Design Schd. Name:	motel room
Ventilating Ann. Schd. Name:	rocm people
Ventilating Des. Schd. Name:	room people

-----Ream Information-----

۰.

ROOM NEMET Roce Room Multiplier: Floor Sur. Area: Room Ceiling Height: ١. 317.70 6,00 Room Parameters: koom Geometry Room Height 9 of Exterior Wall 15 ft x 15 ft . 8 ft : 1 50 1 : Interior Shede : With Furniture : Exterior Construction : L.W. With Lt. insln. 5/8 in. Gyp-Air-778 in. Gyp Bottom Floor Partition Type Room Location Nid Floor Type 5 : 1 in. Wood : Slab Type Ceiling Type Roof Type Floor Covering Glass Percett 4 in. slmb on 17 is. scil Without Ceiling L.W. w/o susp. ceiling . : vinyl tile 10 % ;

Light Information-----

Light's Name:	Light
Light's Peak Gain:	783.447
Rediant Fraction:	0.590
Convective Fraction:	0.41(
Annual Schd. Name:	room 11ght
Design Day Schd. Name:	rod- light

-----Infiltration Information----

Infiltration's Name:	Infiltration
Asr Change/Bour:	0.50
Appual Schd. Name:	cont invous
Design Day Schd. Name:	continuous

----- Equipmont Information-----

Equipment's Name:	Equipment (TV:
Equipment Feak Gain:	682.00
Sensible Beat Gain:	682.00
Latent Reat Gain;	0.00
Equipment Hultiplier:	1
Radiant Fraction:	0.700
CONVECTIVE FERCESON:	0,300
Annuel Schd. Neme:	room TV
Design Day Schd. Name:	COOM TV

-----Paopi. Information-----

People's Name:	papple
Propie Peak Gain:	710.00
Peak Occupancy:	2
Sonsible Heat Gain:	250.00
Latent Hoat Gain:	105.00
Rediant Fraction:	0.700
Convective Fraction:	0.300
Annual Schol. Mamo:	roran people
Design Day Schd. Name:	rocam puople

-----Inditration Information----

Infiltration's Name:	VENT
Air Change/Four:	0.65
Annual Schd. Name:	roce people
Design Day Schel, Name:	room peop:

------Wall)rformation-----

Mozr 270.00 90.00 2

6.12 0.7+ 99.36

Wall's Name:	
Facing Direction:	
Tilt Angle:	
Wall Type:	
Actual U Factor:	
Surface Absorptance:	
Surface Ares:	
Material Descriptions:	
•	

Resistance

A0 : Outsile Sur(ace A3 : Steel Siding 812 : 3 in. Insulation

	EO ; loside Surface
Kesistance	
	E2 : 1/2 in. Slag or
Stope	
Mags Location:	Mass lotegrel
Principle Material:	A1, A3, A6, or E1 1 15.
Stucco, Steel	
Secondary Material:	El 3/4 in. Pinster o:
Gypsum	

>>-----Window for This Surface----<<

Glass's Name:	window
Window Width:	6.40
Window Reight:	4.20
Glass Shading Coofficient:	0.88
Glass U Factor:	0.6700

------ Zone Information ------

Zone Name:	IN.W. Corn.
Zone Multiplier:	1
Summer Indoor Design DET:	68.00
Summer Indoor Design WBT:	79.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indoor Design WBT:	0.00
Summor Indoor k. Humid: ty:	50.01
Winter Indoor R. Sumidity:	30.00
Room Construction Type:	Extreme Light
Hax, System C. Capacity:	100000,00
Max. System H. Capacity:	-100000.00
System Air Flow Rate:	0.00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throtaling Range:	0.10
System Annual Schd. Name:	motal room control
System Design Schd. Name:	motel room
Ventilsting Ann. Sobd. Name:	room people
Vestilating Des. Schd. Name:	room people

-----Room Information-----

ROOK Name:		Roca
Room Multiplier:		1
Floor Sur. Ares:		347.70
Room Ceiling Height;		B.00
Rona Parameters:		
Room Geometry	:	15 te x 15 ft
R IOB Height	:	9 ft
DI Extorior Wall	:	2
Interior Shade	:	50 1
Furgrente	:	Nitt.
Exterior Construction	;	L.W. WILL LL. Insla.
Partition Type	:	5/8 in. Gyp-Air-5/8 in. Gyp
Roam Location	·	Bottom Floor
Hid Floor Type	:) in. Wood
SINE TYPE	;	4 in. slat on 12 in. coil
Colling Type	:	Without Ceiling
koof Type	:	L.W. W/O susp. celling
Floor Covering	:	VINY] tilo
Glass Percent	:	10 1

-----Light Information-----

Light's Nape:	Light
Light's Pesk Gain:	+3.497
Radlant Fraction:	0,590
Convective Fraction:	0.410
Abnual Schd. Name:	ream light
Design Day Schd. Name:	room light

-----People Information------

people	
7:0.00 Z	
105.00	
0.70	
0.300	
room people	
room people	

-----Equipment Information-----

Equipment's Name:	Equipment (TV)
Equipmont Peak Gain:	682.00
Sensible Heat Gain:	692.00
Latent Hest Gain:	0.00
Equipment Multiplier:	1
Radiant Fraction:	0.700
Convective Fraction:	0.300
Annual Scho, Nape:	Foom TV
Design Day Schd. Name:	reem TV

-----Infiltration Information----

Inflitration's Name:	Infiltration
Air Change/Sour:	0.50
Annual Schd. Nomo:	continuous
Design Day Schd. Name:	continuous

-----Infiltration Information----

Infiltration's Name:	VENT
Air Change/Hour:	û.65
Annual Schi. Name:	room people
Design Day Schu. Name:	room people

Wall Information-----

Wall's Nama: Facing Direction: Tilt Angls: Wall Type: Actual U Factor: Surface Amorptance: Surface Amorptance: Surface Area: Haterial Descriptions: W05% 40.0L 2 1.11 3.78 39.16 A0 : Catside Surface Resistance A3 : Steel Siding B12 : J 15. Inclusion E0 : Inpide Sufface Rodistance Σ2 : 1/2 in. Slag c: Stone Mass Location: Principle Material: Stucco,Steel Mass Integral A1, A3, A6, - r E1 1 10-Secondary Material: El 374 in. Plaster : Gypsum

>>-----Window to: This Surface------

Glass's Hamme:	window
Window Width:	4.60
Window Height:	4,20
Glass Shading Confficients	ú
GIASS U FACTOR:	0.6700

-----Wall Informat;on------

Wall's Namu:	North
Facina Direction:	0.00
Til: Angle:	\$0.00
Wail Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	G . H Y
Surface Absorptance:	(
Surface Ares:	224.00
Material Descriptions:	
	A0 : Outside Lifface
Resistance	
	A3 : Steel Staine
	B12 : 3 In. Incutation
	EQ : Inside Surlace
8031350n20	
	62 . 1/2 15. 5.14 or
Stone	
Kass Location:	Hass Integral
Principle Material:	A1, A3, A6, or E1 1 14.
Stucco, Steal	
Secondary Material:	El 3/4 in. Plastor of
Gypsum	
No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

----- Zone In: Thation Press

Iche Hame:	Laundry
Zone Hultiplier:	1
Summer Indoor Design DBT:	70.05
Summer lodoor Design WBT:	□ `.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indoor Design WBT:	0,00
Summet Indoor R. Rumidity:	50.00
Winter Indoor R. Humadaty:	30.00
Room Construction Type:	Extrame Light
Han. System C. Capacity:	100000.00
Max. System B. Capacity:	-100000.00
System Air Flow Rate:	0.00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	1.00
System Abbual Schd. Name:	laundry control
System Design Schd. Name:	laundry control
Veptilating Ann. Scad. Name:	Laundry's vent
Ventilating Des. Schd. Name:	laundry's vent

-----Room Information-----

Room Name:		Room
Ream Multiplier:		1
Floor Sur. Area:		695 50
koom Ceiling Height:		8.00
Room Parameters:		
Room Geometry	:	15 ft x 15 ft
Roth Belght	:	8 FL
I of Exterior Wall	:	1
Interior Shade	:	01
Furniture	:	Hith
Exterior Construction	:	L.W. with moderate instr.
Partition Type	:	5/9 in. Gyp-Air-5/P in. Gyp
Room Location	:	Bottom Elpor
Mid Floor Type	:	l in. Wood
Slab Type	:	4 in. slab on 12 in. soil
Ceiling Type	:	Without Ceiling
Roof Type	:	L.W. w/o susp. cei)ina
Floor Covering	2	vinyl tile
Glass Percent	1	11 N

·····People Information-----

People's Name:	People	
People Peak Gain:	3250.00	
Peak Occupancy:	5	
Sensible Hoat Gain:	350.00	
Latent Hear Gain:	300.00	
Kadiant Fractions	0,700	
<pre>nvective fraction:</pre>	0.300	
Annuel Cohd. Name:	laundry machine	
Design Day Schd. Name:	laundry Machine	

-----Light Information-----

Light's Name:	Light
Light's Peak Gain:	1899.661
RADIANE FRANCION:	0.590
"Invective Fraction:	0.410
Annual Schd. Name:)aundry machine
Design Day Schol. Name:	laundry Hachine

----Equipment Infofmation-----

Egulpment's Name:	wash machine
Equipment Fosk Gain:	7169.00
Sensible Heat Gain:	5110.00
Laten: Heat Gain	2050.00
Equipment Hultiplier:	1
Radiant Fraction:	0.700
Convective Fraction:	0.300
Annual Schu. Name:	laundry machine
Design Day Schi. Name:	laundry Machine

-----Wall Information------

Wall's Name:	East
Facing Direction:	90.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual V Factor:	0.11
Surface Absorptance:	0.75
Sufface Ares:	195.72
Material Descriptions:	

BE Undefined ## Mass Location: DB Undefines 40 Principle Material: Secondary Haterial: St Undefined ## ------Infiltration Information----Infiltration's Name: Infiltration Air Change/Hour: Annual Schi. Name: 1.50 laundry machine Besign Day Schd. Name: laundry Hachine -----Infiltration Information----Inflitestion's Name: νωπι Air Change/Hour: Annual Schd, Name: 1.73 lanuqth, a new. Januqth, a new. Design Day Schd. Name: ----- Zon: Information ------Zone Name: Swimming room Zone Multiplier: Summer Indoor Design DB7: 75.00 20.00 Summer Indoor Design W87: Winter Indoor Design DBT: 0.00 Wiste: Indoor Design WBT: 0.00 Summer Indoor R. Humidity: Winter Indoor R. Humidity: 75.00 50.00 Room Construction Type: Extrane Light Max. System C. Capacity: Max. System H. Capacity: System Air Flow Rate: 1000000.00 0.05 Outdoor Air Flow Rate: System Throttling Range: System Annual Schd. Name: 0.00 1.00 swim control System Design Schd. Nama: swin control Vontilating Ann. Schd. Namu: continuous Ventilating Des. Schd. Namu: continuous -----Room Information-----Room Name: Rocas

Room Multiplier: 1702.00 Floor Sur. Ares: Row Ceiling Molght: Room Paramoters: 10.00 Rosa Goodetty 100 Ct H 20 L1 : Room Height 4 of Exterior Wall 10 14 : 4 3 Interior Shade : 0 1 Furniture : Exterior Construction : Without L.W. With moderate inste. 574 in. Gyp Al: 5-4 in. Gyp Partition Type 1 Roca Location Mid Floor Type Single-Scory : l in. Wood 4 in. slob on 1, in. soil 1 5142 Type 4 Celling Type Without Catling : Root Type First Covoring L.W. W/d busp. calling vinyl tile : Glass Percent 50 1 4

-----People In(ormat)on------

people
20700.00
30
350.00
340.00
0.700
0.306
swip becbje
swim people

-----Light Information------

Light
2905.484
0.590
0.410
CONCINUOUS
CONTINUOUS

------Wall Information------

6335
90.00
90.00
1
0.31
0.73
303.30
Undefined
Undefines
€S Undelinsè ∂4

>>-----Window for This Surface-----

Glass's Name:	SWID WID
WIDDOW WIDTD:	14.00
Window Height:	7.00
Glass Sheding Coefficient:	ú.88
Glass U Factor:	0.6700

-----Wall Information-----

0.00	
00	
1	
e	
. 36	
Undefined	
Undefined	
Undefined	• •
	LOC 00 1 9

>>----Window for This Surface----<<

Glazz'z Nome:	TIP ALLA
Window Width:	14.00
WIRDOW Height:	7.00
Glass Shading Coefficient;	0.00
Glas: U Factor:	0.6700

>>-----Wind w for This Surface-----

Giass's Nome:	west door
Window Width:	3.50
Window Height:	7.00
Glass Shading Coefficient:	0.88
GLASS U FACTOR:	0.4000

----- Infiltration Information----

infiltration's Name:	Ven.
Air Change/Hour:	6.00
Annual Schd. Name:	CORLINUOUS
Design Day Stind. Name:	- 106104005

-----Equipmont Infolmation-----

Equipment's Name:	swiz pool
Equipment Peak Gain:	6.00
Sonsible Hest Gain:	00
Latent Heat Gain:	0.00
Equipment Mustiplier:	1
Regiant Fraction:	0.700
Convective Fraction:	0.30
Annus! Schd. Name:	COLC100072
Design Day Schd. Name:	continuous
, ,	

Ante-Depart Zone Information -----

Zone Name:	ZW, Spec, 2
Zone Hultiplier:	1
Summer Indoor Design DBT:	68.00
Summer Indoor Design WBI:	70.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indoor Design WBT:	0.00
Summer Indoor R. Humidity:	50.00
Winter Indoor R. Humidity:	30.00

Ro - Construction Type:	Extreme Light
Max. System C. Capacity:	100000.00
Max. Syster H. Capacity:	-100000.00
System AL: Flow Rate:	0.00
Sucdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	0.10
System Annual Schol Name:	motel room fontrol
System Design Scho, Name:	motel room
Ventilating Ann, Schd. Name:	room people
Ventilating Des. Schd. Name:	room peoply

Room Information

Ron- Name:		້ຂອງສາ
Room Hultiplier:		1
Floor Sur. Area:		538.00
Room Ceiling Height:		8.0c
Room Parameters:		
Room Geogratry		15 KL # 15 /L
Room Height	:	e f:
a of Exterior Wall	:	1
Interior Shade	;	50 1
Furniture	:	WILS
Exterior Construction	:	L.W. with Lt. instr.
Partition Type	:	5/8 in. Gyp-Air-5/8 in. Gyp
Roam Location	:	Top Flater
Hid Floor Type	:	1 in. Wood
Slab Type	:	4 10. slab on 12 10. soil
Ceiling Type	:	Without Cuiling
Real Type	:	L.W. W/e susp. ceiling
Floor Covering	:	vinyl tile
Glass Percent	:	(0 1

-----People Infernation------

People's Name:	p-acep.1 +
People Peak Gain:	710.00
Peak Occupancy:	2
Sectible Heat Gain:	250.00
Latent Heat Gain:	105.00
Radiant Fraction:	0.700
CODVACTIVA Fraction:	0.300
Abbusi Schd. Name:	ream prople
Design Day Schd. Name:	tous people

Light information-----

Light
1212.314
0.590
D.410
reat liant
toos list:

-----keyf Internation-----

Roof's Name:	Secol (
Facing Direction:	270.00
Till Angle:	15.00
Rool Type:	3
Actual U Factor:	0,05
Surface Absorptonte:	0.74
Surface Area:	197.93
Material Descriptions:	
MASS LOCATION:	DE Undefined II
Principle Material:	▶∎ Undefin: : ■∎
Suppended Ceiling:	●● Unde(1r.c.) ●●
*** No Window Delined For	This Surface ***

Wall information

Hes: 270.00

90.00

2 6.11 6.78 137.36

Wall's Name:
facing Direction:
Tilt Angle:
Wal) Type:
Actual D Factor.
Surface Absorptence:
Surlace Arma:
Material Descriptions:

Resistance

AU : Outside Sufface

A3 : Steel Siding B12 : 3 in. Insulation

	TA LINE da Sustan		
Resistance	EO : INSIGE SUITACO	Glass Percett :	1.
	EZ ; 1/2 in. Slag or		
Stope	Mana Parana		
Principle Material: Stucco.Steel	$\lambda_1, \lambda_2, \lambda_6, \text{ or } E1 = 1 \text{ 1D}.$		1100
Sacondary Material:	E) 3/4 in. Plaster of	Light's Name:	Light
Сураче		Light's Peak Gain:	1003.196
		Radiant Fraction:	0.540
>>Window for This :	Surface	CONVECTIVE FEACTION:	0.410
		Annual Schd. Name:	room light
GLASS'S NAME:	window	Design Day Scha. Remo:	Forth 110/1C
Window Width:	12.60		
Window Height:	4.20	Equipment Infol	MALION
Glass Shading Coefficient:	0.88		
Glass U Factor:	0.6700		
		Equipment's Name:	Equipment (TV)
		Equipment Peak Gain:	682.00
TELEVILLE INTITUCIÓN IN	COMBACION	Sensible Heat Gain:	6 7 2 . OU
		Eduloment Multiplian	1
Infi)tration's Name:	Infiltration	Radiant Fraction:	0.700
Air Change/Hour:	0.50	Convective Fraction:	0.100
Annual Scod. Name:	continuous	Annusl Schd. Name:	toom TV
Design Day Schi. Name:	CONTINUOUS	Design Day Schd. Name:	roat TV
Infiltration in	formation	People Inform	100
Infiltration's Name:	VENT	People's Name	people
ALC Change/Hour:	0.12	People Pank Gain:	710.00
ADDUAL Schd. Name:	roum people	Peak Occupancy:	2
Design Day Schd. Name:	toom people	Sensible Heat Gain:	256.00
		Latant Heat Gain:	105.00
		Radiant Fraction:	0.740
Eguipment Info	fmation	Convective Fraction:	0.100
		Annual Schd. Name:	100m beoble
Four popping to Name		Design Day Schd. Name:	TOOR Dasplo
Equipment Peak Gain:	582.00	•,	
Sensible Heat Gain:	682.00	Wall Informa	1100
Latent Heat Goin:	0.00		
Equipment Hultiplier:	1		
Radiant Fraction:	0.700	Wall's Name:	West
Convective Fraction:	0.300	Facing Direction:	270.00
Annual Send, Name:	TOON TV	Tilt Angle:	90.00
Design Day Schil, Name:	room TV	Wall Type:	<i>2</i>
		Artual U Factor;	0,11
		Surface Ansorptance:	1 16
	•	Material Descriptions:	
Zone Name:	2W. Spac, 1		N : OVERSIDE Surford
Zone Multiplier:	1	Pusislance	
Summer Indcor Duaign DBT:	66.00		A: : Steel Siding
Summer Indops Design WBT:	20.00		BL: : J ing Insulation
Winter Indoor Desion DBT:	0.01	_	EO : Inside Supfake
Winter Indoor Destor WHI:	D,00	Resistanco	
Sumber Indees R. Musicity:		Ch == -	82 2 1/2 In. Play Or
Hoop Construction Type.	Extremy Light	Mans Les al Vont	Mass Internal
HAR. SYALOD C. CADDELLY:	1, 1309.00	Principly Material:	ALAD. AL. OF EL Y JE.
Max. System H. Copacity:	-100000.00	Stucco, Steel	
Syston Air Flow Rate:	0.00	Secondary Material:	\$1 3/1 16. Plaster of
Lidoor Air Flow Rate:	C.00	Gypsum	
System Throttling Range:	0.10		
System Annual Scho. Name:	motel room control	>>Window for This S	ur face
System Design Schd. Name:	motel room		
Ventilating Ann. Schol Namo: Namt: Sating Dar. Schol Namo:	room people	Glassic Name	
ventrating bost start name.	room propre	Window Width:	22.0-
		Window Height:	4.20
Ruon Informatio	00	Glass Shading Coefficient:	0.68
		Glass U Factor:	0.6700
Room Name:	Room		
Rohm, Hultiplier:	1		
HLOOT SUE, Area:	4 CO, 70 8 AA	and a second sec	-100
ROOM DAFAMATATA	0.00		
Boom Goometry	15 11 8 15 11	Boof's Name	Eu vi
Room Headst	8 ft	Facing Direction:	27.10
B of Exterior Wall	1	Tilt Andle;	15.00
Interior Shade :	50 1	Roof Type:	3
Furgiture	With	Actual U Factor:	0.05
Exterior Construction :	L.W. with Lt. Insln.	Surface Absorptance:	0.70
Partition Type :	5/8 in. Gyp-Air-5/8 in. Gyp	Surface Area:	137.36
Room Location :	Top Floor	Material Descriptions:	
Hid Floor Type :	I In. Wood	Mass Localion:	• Undefined ##
Slab Type	4 10. 5:00 00 12 10. 5011 Without Call	rringiple Material:	a ungeritien de
COLLING TYPE -	W W/A BURD Colling	Suspended Cerring:	et Underinde fi
toor type :	THE WE REPEATING	NO HIGH DETTING ADD 15	

-----Infiltration information----

Infiltration's Name: Air Change/Hour:	Infiltration 0.50
Annual Schd. Name:	continuous
Design Day Schel Name:	CODC100033

-----Infiltration Information----

Infiltration's Name:	VENT
NIT Change/Hour:	0.47
Abnual Schd. Name:	roce people
Dø≤:3n Day Schd. Name:	ch.m puople

- Zone Information -

Zone Name:	Main Lobby
Zobe Hultiplier:	1
Summer Indon Design DBT:	68.00
Summer Indust Design WBT:	70.00
Winter Indoo: Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indoor Design WBT:	0.00
Summer Indoor R. Humidity:	50 00
Winter Indeor R. Humidity:	30.00
Revue Construction Type:	Extrome Light
Max. Syster C. Capacity:	100000.00
Max. System H. Capacity:	-100000,00
System Air Flow Rate:	0.00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range.	0.10
System Annual Schd. Name:	Lobby's Control
System Design Schd. Name:	Lobby's Control
Ventilating Ann. Schd. Name:	continuous
Vencilating Des. Schd. Name:	continuous

Room Information

RODA NAMO:		Roos
Room Multiplier:		1
Fibor Sur. Area:		1926.00
Room Ceiling Height:		8.00
Room Parameters:		
Rose Geometry	;	100 ft x 20 ft
Routh Height	:	8 21
of Exterior Wall	:	2
Interior Shade	:	50 L
Furniture	•	With
Exterior Construction	:	L.W. with LL. Insin.
Partition Type	:	5/B in. Gyp-Air-Ert in. Gyp
Room Location		Bottom Ficer
Mid Floor Type		lin. Wold
Slab Type	:	4 in. slab on 12 in. soil
Celling Type	;	Without Cailing
Ke f Type	;	L.W. W/o susp. ceiling
Fleer Covering	:	Carpo, with rubber pad
Glass Percent	;	10 1

Facple's Name:	People
People Peak Gain:	6750.00
Puak Occupancy:	15
Servible Reat Gain;	25a.00
Latent Heat Gain:	200,00
Radian: Fraction:	0.705
Convocitve Fraction:	0.300
Annual Scho, Name:	lobby people
Desion Day Schol. Norm:	lobby propie

.....Wall Information

Wal)'s Name:	West	
Facing Direction.	270.05	
Till Angle:	\$0.00	
Wall Type:	1	
Actual U Factor	D.] 1	
Surface Absorptance:	97.0	
Surface Area:	274.64	
Material Descriptions:		
Hass Location:	## Undefined ##	
Principle Material:	II Undefined II	
Secondary Malerial:	II Undefinad 10	
,		

>>-----Window for This Surface-----

Giads's Name:	tobby wan
Window Width:	7.40
Window Height:	9.60
Glass Shading Coefficient:	5.68
Glass V Factor:	0.6700

.....Wall Information-----

Wall's Name:	East
Facing Direction:	90.00
Tilt Andla:	90.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual D Factor:	0.11
Surface Absorptance:	C.75
Surface Area:	519.28
Haterial Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	ef Undelined F
Principle Haterial:	OF Undefined I
Secondary Material:	## Undefined ##

>>-----Window for This Surface-----

Glass's Name:	Lobby east
Window Width:	26.00
Window Height:	B.60
Glass Shading Coefficient:	5.89
GLASS U FACLOR:	0.6700

-----Inflitration Information----

Infiltration
1.00
continue or
CONTINUOUS

-----Infiltration information----

Infiltration's Name:	ven.
Lir Change/Rous:	1.17
Annual Schd. Name:	CONTINUTO/12
Design Day Schd. Name:	continuous

-----Equipment Information-----

e
FURIEWER
2009.00
1800.00
200.00
1
0.700
0.300
continuous
continuous

-----Light Information------

Light's Name:	L. a.
Light's Feak Galo:	3257.100
Radiant Fraction:	1.590
Convective Fraction:	6.410
Annual Schd. Name:	CON'LINGUS
Design Day Sond, Name:	0003100045

-----Reo: Information-----

Root's Name:	Root
Facing Direction:	30.00
Tilt Angle:	15,00
Roof Type:	3
Actual U Factor:	0.05
Surface Absorptance:	0.78
Surface Area:	995.57
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Lotation:	ØØ Undefined ØØ
Principle Hoterisl:	JF Undefined IF
Suspended Cerling:	IF Undefined If
"I No Window Detized For	This Sufface ***

Appendix C

HVAC Input File for the BESTEST

-

>>> The loput Date of Building Bestest

Building's neme; Building's Location: Latitude: Longitude: Building's Time Zone: Time; Atm. Pressure:	Bestest Arbeville, N. Carolina 19.80 104.90 7 Clock Time 14.70
Summer Design Conditions:	
Hooth:	6
Dav	21
Design Dry Bulb Temp.:	38.00
Mean Coincident WBT:	74.00
Mean Daily Range:	24.00
Winter Design Conditions:	
Design Dry Bulb Temp.:	13.00
Relative Humidity:	60.00
Average Air Temp.:	48.30
Ground Amplitude:	18.00

------ Zone Informat;on -----

Zone Name:	20be 620
Zone Hultaplier:	1
Summer Indoor Design DET:	78.00
Summer Indoor Design WB7:	70.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indoor Design W8T:	0.00
Summer Indoor R. Humidity:	50.00
Winter Indoor R. Humidity:	30.0D
Rocm Construction Type:	Extreme Light
Max. System C. Capacity:	50000.00
Max. System H. Capacity:	-50000.00
System Air Flow Rate:	0.00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	0.01
System Annual Schd. Name:	600 annual
System Design Schd. Name;	600 daily
Vencilating Ann. Schd. Name:	continuous
Ventilating Des. 5chd. Name:	continuous

-----Roor Information-----

Som Name:		ROOM 620
Roim Multiplier:		1
Floor Sur Area:		516.69
Rock Ceiling Neight:		8.86
Koom Porameters:		
Room Geometry	:	15 ft x 15 ft
Room Huight	:	8 (t
■ of Exterior Wall	:	4
Interior Shade	-	0 1
Furniture	:	MTEPOR:
Exterior Construction	:	L.W. with moderate insin.
Partition Type	;	5/8 in. Gyp-Air-5/8 in. Gyp
Room Location	:	Top Floor
Hid Floor Type	:	l in. Wood
Slab Type	:	Mid Floor Type
Ceiling Type	:	Without Ceiling
Roof Type	:	L.W. W/o susp. celling
Floor Covering	:	Viayi tile
Glass Percent	:	10 1

-----Infiltration Information----

Infiltration's Name:	Infiltration
Air Change/Hour:	0.50
Annual Schd. Name:	CONCINUOUS
Design Day Schd. Name:	CONLIDIONS

-----Equipment Infofmation------

Equipment's Name:	Equipment
Equipment Peak Gain:	682.40
Sensible Heat Gain:	682.40
Latent Host Galo:	0.00
Equipment Multiplies:	1
Rediant Fraction:	0.600
Convective Fraction:	0.400
Annual Schd. Namu:	CONTINUOUS

Darign Day Sobd. None: cont

continu v.2

E2 - 1/2 in. Sing o:

Wall's Name:	North
Facing Direction:	0.00
filt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	0.04
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	232.50
Haterial Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	∎∎ Unde(ined DD
Principle Matarial:	Indefined ##
Secondary Material:	## Undefined ##
No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

-----Roof information------

Roof's Name:	Roof
Facing Direction:	6.00
Tilt Angle:	0.00
Roof Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0.06
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	\$16.60
Material Descriptions:	
	A0 : Outside Surface
Resistance	
	87 : 1 :n. X -1
	B12 : 3 ID. IDEULACION
	EG : Inside Surface

Resistance

Stone Mass Location: Name Integral Principle Material: B7 1 in. Wood Suspended Ceiling: Without *** No Window Defined For This Surface ***

Wall Information

Wall's Name:	West
Facing Direction:	270.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	0,09
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	174.38
Malerial Descriptions:	
HASS LOCALIDE:	f Undefined ff
Principle Reterial:	f# Undetine: #₽
Secondary Material:	## Undefinari ##

>>----Window for This Surface-----

Glass's Name:	West Window
Window Width:	9.84
Window Height:	6.56
Glass Shading Coefficient:	0.08
Glass D Factor:	0.5300

-----Wall Information------

Wall's Name:	Eest
Facing Direction:	90.00
Tilt Angle:	50.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	0.05
Surface Absorptance:	C. 60
Surface Area:	174.36
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	♦♥ Unde(ined ■●
Principle Material:	## Unsofined ##
Secondary Material:	#E Undetined Df

Sheen-Window for This Curface-----

Glass's Name:	West Window
Window Width:	9.84
Window Height:	6.58
Glass Shading Coefficient:	0.09
Glass U Factor:	0.5300

			Wall	IL CEMAL	100
--	--	--	------	----------	-----

Wall's Name:	South
Facing Direction:	150.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Suctace Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Ares;	232.50
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	14 Code()ped 11
Principle Material:	10 fontleingU 68
Secondary Material:	tt Undefined ##
*** No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

Zong Information

Zone Name:	Zope 630
Zone Hultiplier:	L
Summer Indoor Design DBT:	78.00
Summer Indoor Design WBT:	70.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indoor Design WBI:	0.00
Summer Indoor R. Humadacy:	50.00
Winter Indoor R. Humidity:	30.00
Room Construction Type:	Extreme Light
Max. System C. Capacity:	50000.00
Max. System H. Capacity:	- 50000.00
System Air Flow Rate:	0.00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Infolling Range:	0.01
System Annual Schu. Name:	600 annual
System Design Schd. Name:	600 daily
Ventilating Ann. Schd. Name:	CONTINUOUS
Ventilating Des. Schd. Name:	continuous

÷

Room Information

Room Name:		Roca 630
Room Multiplier:		Ł
Floor Sur. Area:		516.60
Room Couling Beight:		5.86
Room Parameters:		
Room Geometry	:	15 ft x 15 ft
Room Neight	:	8 ft
4 of Exterior Wall	:	4
Interior shade	:	0 1
Furniture	4	Without
Exterior Construction	4	L.W. with moderate insin.
Partition Type	÷ .	57A in. Gyp-Air-We in. Gyp
Room Location	÷	Top Floor
Mid Ficor Type	÷.	1 in. Wood
Stat Type	:	Mid Floor Type
Ceiling Type	1	Without Ceiling
Roof Type	;	L.W. W/- susp. chiling
Fluer Covering	1	vinyl tile
Glass Percent	:	10 1

-----Infiltration information----

Infiltration's Name:	Infiltration
Asr Change/Rour:	0.50
Annual Schd. Name:	continuous
Derion Day Schid - Name:	COV(11/10/73

-----Equipment in (ofmation-----

Equipment's Name	Equipment.
Equipment Peak Gain:	682.40
Sensible Heat Gain-	682.40
Latent Heat Gain:	0.00
Equipment Hultiplier:	1
Radiant Fraction:	0.600
Convective Fraction:	0.400
Appual Schd. Name:	CONTINUOUS
Design Day Schd. Name:	continuous

-----Wall Information-----

Wall's Name:	North
Facing Direction:	0.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00

Wall Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	232.1
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	## Undefine: ##
Principle Material:	St Undefine: St
Secondary Naterial:	SE Underaned SE
*** No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

Anternation

Rooff Name:	Foor
tacipă nilecciou:	
Till Angle:	0.00
Roof Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0.06
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	516.60
Material Descriptions:	
	AC : Outside Surlace
Rasistance	
	B? : Jan. Wood
	B): : 3 in. Insulation
	ED : Inside Surface
Rosistance	
	E2 : 1/2 in. Slay or
ton0	-
Nasy Location:	Hass integral
Principle Material:	87 1 Jn. Wees
Suspended Ceiling:	Without
. No Window Defined For 7	this Sur(son ***

------Wall Information

Wall's Name:	South
Facing Direction:	180.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	C. 39
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	232.50
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	00 Undefined 00
Principle Haterial:	Denitetru 10
Secondary Material:	## Undefined ##
*** No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

-----Wall Inf "marion-----

Wall'= Name:	XORE
Facing Direction:	90.00
Tilt Angle:	SU.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	Q.45
Surface Absorptions:	ປູ່ແມ
Surfa. + Area:	178.38
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	## Undefinsd ##
Principle Matorial:	Al ^{si} nde£ine / Al
Secondary Material:	#1 Undefised 14

Glass's Name:	West Window
Window Width:	5.01
Window Height:	6.56
Glass Sheding Loeffilient:	0.62
GINSS J Factor:	0.5300
Overhang Length:	3.20
Glass to Overnand:	1.64
Overhang Protruction:	C.u
Reveal Depth:	0.(.

------Wall In(prastion-----

Wail's Name:	West.
Facing Direction:	270.00
Tilt Angle:	90.35
Wali Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	0.02
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	174,38
Material Descriptions:	

Mass Location:	de Undefioed at
Princípie Material:	## Undefines ##
1. condary Haterial:	II Undefined II

>>-----Window for This Surface------

Glass's Name:	Nost Wicdow
Window Width:	9. B4
Window Haight:	6.56
Glass Shading Coofficient:	0.99
Glass U Factor:	0.2110
Overheag Length:	3.25
Glass to Overbang:	1.64
Overhang Protrusion:	0.00
Reveal Depth:	0.00

Zabe Information ------

Zane Name:	ZONA 640
2one Multiplion:	1
Surner Indoor Design DBT:	78.00
Summer Indoor Design W87:	70.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0,00
Winter Indoor Design WBT:	0.00
Summer Indoor R. Humidity:	56.00
Winter Incoor R. Humidity:	30.00
Room Construction Type:	Extreme Light
Max. System C. Capacity:	50000.00
Max. System H. Capacity:	-50000.00
SYSTEM ALT FLOW RALE:	0.00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	0.01
System Annual Schd. Name:	(AUDUA)
System Design Schd. Name:	640 daily
Ventilating Anu. Schd. Name:	continuous
Ventilating Des. Schd. Name:	CODULTINGUS

-----Room Information-----

Rocm Name:		R000 600
Room Hultiplier.		1
floot Sur. Area:		516.60
Room Ceiling Height:		3.B6
ROOM PARAMETARS:		
Room Geometry	:	15 ft x 15 ft
Room Height		8 ft
D of Exterior Wall		4
Interior Stage	:	0 1
Furniture		WIChour
Exterior Construction	;	L.W. with moderate insln.
Fartition Type	:	5/6 in. Gyp-Alt-5/8 in. Gyp
Room Location		Top Floor
Mid Floor Type	:	1 in. Wood
Slab Type	:	ML. Floor Type
Caling Type	:	WITHOUT COLLING
Roof Type		L.W. W/O SUSP. Celling
Floor Covering	:	vinyl tile
Glass Parcont	:	10 1

-----Infiltation Information

Infiltration's Name:	Inflitration
Air Change/Hour:	0.50
Annual Schd. Name:	continuous
Design Day Schul. Nate:	2001110003

-----Wall Informations-----

Wall's Name:	West
Facing Direction:	272.01
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type	1
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Surface Absorptonce:	0.60
Surface Area:	174.36
Material Descriptions	
Mass Location:	## Undefined ##
Prínciple Material:	## Undefined ##
S. condary Material:	I Undefined #4
No Window Dy (inod Fo.	This Surface ***

-----Equipment Infofmation-----

Equipmont's Nome:

Equipment

Equipment Peak Gain:	682.40
Sensible Reat Gain:	692.40
Latent News Galo:	C.00
Equipment Hultiplier:	3
Radiant Fraction:	0.600
Convertive Fractions	0.00
Annual Schd. Name:	continuous
Design Day Schd. Name:	continuous

-----Wall Information-----

Wall's Name:	East
Facing Direction:	90.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual C Fector:	0.09
Surface Absorptance;	0.60
Surface Area:	174.38
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	as Underined su
Principle Material:	## Undefined ##
Secondary Material:	Ø) Undefined Ø#
*** No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

-----Wall Ipformation-----

Wall's Name:	North
Facing Direttion:	0.00
Tilt Angle:	90.1.
Wall Type:	1
ACLUAL U Factor:	0.05
Surface Absorptance:	C.6 D
Sur (ace Area:	232.50
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	II Undefined If
Principle Material:	II Undefined II
Secondary Haterial:	48 Undetined FF
••• Na Window Defined For	TOLD SUTFACE ***

-----koof Information-----

Roof's Name:	Roof
Facing Direction:	0.00
Tilt Angle:	0.00
Roof Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0.06
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	516.60
Material Descriptions:	
	AD : Outside Surlace
Resistance	
	87 : 1 in Wood
	117 : " IL. Insulation
	20 : Inside Surface
Resistance	
	E2 : 1/2 10. 5150 :
Stony	
Hasa Lorenzion:	Mass Integral
Principio Matorial:	B7 1 I K Kent
Suspended Ceiling:	Without
*** No Window Defined For Th	13 Surface ***

-----Wall Information------

ef, ned as
atined to
winned as

sources window for This Surface-----

Glass's Nome:	South Window
Window Width:	15-60
Window Belght:	6.56
Glass Shading Coefficient:	0.89
Glass U Factor;	0.5375

Zone Name:	Zope Sto
Zobe Hultiplier:	1
Support Indeer Design DBT:	7- 00
Summer Indoor Design WBT:	70,00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indong Design WBT:	0.05
Summer Indoor R. Bunidity:	50.00
Witter Indoor R. Humidity:	30.00
Room Construction Type:	Medius
Max. System C. Capacity:	50000.00
Max. System H. Capacity:	-50000.00
System Air Flow Ester	0,00
-utdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	0.01
System Annual Schd. Nard:	640 annual
System Design Sond. Mame:	640 daily
Ventilating Ann. Schd. Name:	CONTINUOUS
Ventilating Des. Schd. Name:	continue

-----Roop Information-----

Room Name:		Room 94"
Room Multiplier:		3
Floor Sur. Area:		516.60
Reim Couling Height:		8.6€
Roca Parameters:		
Room Grometry	:	15 ft x 15 ft
Room Height	2	U fi
of Exterior Wall	;	4
Interior Shade	:	0 (
Furniture	:	Without
Exterior Construction	:	8.W. with mederate insin.
Fartition Type	:	9 in Conc. block
Room Location	:	Top Floor
Mid Floor Type	:	2.5 in. Conc.
Slab Type	1	Mid Floor Type
Ceiling Type	:	Without Ceiling
Roaf Type	:	L.W. w/o susp. ceiling
Floor Covering	:	Vinyl Cile
Glass Percent	:	10 1

-----Infallestion Information----

Infiltration's Name:	Infilization
Aur Change/Bour:	0.50
Annual Scho. Mamo:	CONTINUOUS
Lusico Day Sand, Name:	CORLINUOUS

-----Equipment infolmation-----

Equipment': Name:	Equipment
Equipment Peak Gain:	552.40
Sensible Reat Gain:	682.40
Latent Heat Sain:	0.00
Equipment Multiplier:	1
Nadiant Fractions	0.600
Convective Fraction:	0.400
Annus! Sond. Namu:	continuous
Dealon Day Schol Namo:	continueus

-----Roof information-----

Depite Vener	Direct
ROOI 3 MADE:	RUM
Facing Direction:	0.00
Tilt Angle:	0_00
koaf Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0,06
Surface Abscrptance:	0°.60
SUF (ace Area:	516.60
Material Descriptions:	
	A0 : Outside Sarface
Resistance	
	97 : 1 in. Wood
	912 : J in. Insulation
	E. : Inside Surface
Rest. Sance	
	E2 : 1/2 in. Slag or
Stope	
Mass Localin:	Hass integral
Principle Material:	B7 1 in. bcod
Suspended Coiling:	Without
No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

-----Wall information-----

Wall's Norr:	West.
Facing Direction:	270.00
TILL ANGLO:	90.00
Wall Type:	:1
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
SUITACO Area:	174.36
Material Descriptions:	
Hase Location:	es Undefined Al
Principle Material:	De Undefined Br
Secondary Material:	4# Undefined ##
*** No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

-----Wall Information------

Wall's Name:	East
FACING DIRECTION:	90.00
Tile Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	13
Actual U Factor:	0.0%
Surface Absorptance:	0.66
Surface Ares:	174.35
Haterial Emperiptions:	
Masa Location:	## Unnefined ##
Principle Hatorial:	D Undefined 10
Secondary Material:	II Unde:inua II
No Window Defines For	This Suctace ***

-----Wall Information

Wall's Nama:	South
Facing Direction:	100.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	11
Actual U Factor:	0.05
Sutface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	212.5
Material Description:	
Mass Location:	as Undefined Br
Principle Material:	Ad Undefined Be
Secondary Material:	JU Undefined DB

>>-----Window for This & Flace-----

Glass's Name:	Sector Window
WINDOW WIDCh:	19.60
Window Height:	6.5ē
Glas: Shading Confficient:	0.98
Glass U Fart r:	0.1300

Wall's Name:	North
Facing Direction:	0.00
Til: ALJIO:	90.00
WALL TYPE:	11
Actual U Factor:	0.0>
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surlace Ares:	232,50
Material Descriptions.	
Hass Location:	al Undafated 14
Principle Material:	ff Undetined be
Macondary Material:	4) Undefined 4)
*** No WINDOW DI LINHS FOR	That Surface ***

----- Zone information

Zone Name:	2000 920
Zone Multiplier:	1
Summer Indoor Design DBT:	26.00
Summer Indoor Design WBT:	70.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indoor Design WBT:	e.00
. inner Indoor R. Husidity:	50.00
Winter Indoor R. Humidity:	30.00
Rend Construction Type:	Medium
Max. System C. Captilly.	\$0000.29
Max, System H. Capacity:	-50000.00
System Air Flow Rate:	6.00
Dutdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throthisty kange:	0.01

System J	Mr. nuai	Sche.	Name:	600	annua.
Systed I)027dt	Schd.	Name:	600	daily
Ventilat	ing An	n. Sch	d. Nape	: cont	1AUOUS
Ventile	LING De	s. Sch	d. Name	: cont	inuous

-----Roam Information-----

	Act: 920
	1
	516.60
	6.86
:	15 (t x 15 (t
:	BEL
:	4
:	0
:	Without
:	H.W. with moderate instr
:	F in. Conc. block
:	Top Floor
ŝ	2.5 in. Conc.
:	Mid Floor Type
:	Without Cailing
:	L.W. w/o susp. ceiling
:	Vinyl tile
:	10 1

-----Infiltration Information----

Infiltration's Hamod	Inflation
Air Change Bour:	0.50
Annual Schid, Name:	continuous
Dosign Day Schu. Name:	COV/100002

-----Equipment Information-----

Equipment's Name:	Equipment
Equipment Peak Gain:	682.40
ensible Huar Gain:	682.40
Latent Heat Gain:	0.00
Equipment Multiplier:	1
Radiant Fraction:	0.600
Convective Fraction:	0.490
Annual Schd. Name:	CONTINUOUS
Brigh Day Schill Name:	continuous

-----Wall Informition-----

Wall's Name:	North
Faring Direction:	0.00
:il Anole:	90.00
Wall Type:	11
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Arwa:	232.50
Reterist Descriptions'	
Barr Locarson:	AF Undefines ()
Principle Materials	## Undefined au
Secondary Material:	●● Undefined 4●
*** No Window Detined For	This Surface ***

R 1's Name:	roof
Facing Direction:	6.(
Till Anale:	0.00
R. I Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	1.06
Surface Absorptance:	u.€0
Surface Area:	516.60
Material Descriptions:	
	A0 : Outside Surface
RUSISTANCE	
	B7 : 1 in. Wood
	B12 : 1 in. Insulstion
	EC : Inside Surface
Refistance	
	E2 . 1/2 in. 5149 or
Stone	
Hass Location:	Mass Integral
Franciple Haterials	87 lin. Wood
Suspended Ceiling:	Without
No Window Defined For This	s Surtace ***

-----Wall Information Wall's Name: East Facing Direction: 90.00 Tilt Amgle: 90.00 Wall Typy: Actual U Factor: 11 0.09 Surfain Absorptance: 0.60 Surtace Area: 174.39 Material Descriptions: Mas: Location: (A Unsettned ## Principle Materials as Undefined BB ## Undefined ## Secondary Material: >>====Window for This Surface====<< Glass's Name: West Wind 2 Window Width: Window Height: 9.84 6.56 Glass Shading Sufficient: 0.89 Glass U Factor: 0.5300 -------Wali information------Wall's Name: South Facing Direction: 180.00 Tilt Ancie: 90.00 Wall Type: 11 0.05 Actual U Factor: Surfale Absorptance: 0.0 Surface Area: 232.5 Material Descriptions: al Underland as Mass Location: Principle Material: es Undefined se Sucondary Material: SF Undefined PF *** No Window Defined For This Sufface *** . ------Wall information------Wall's Name: Wast Facing Direction: 270.00 95.00 Tilt Angle: Wall Type: Actual U Factor: 11 6.04 Surtane Absorptance: 0.60 Surface Area: 1 14.34 Maturial Desciptions. Hann Location: () Undefined): Priz uple Material: ## Undefined ## () Undetined 44 Secondary Material: >>------Window for This Surface------Glass's Name: West Window Window Width: 5.46 Window Hyidht: 6.50 Glass Shading Coefficients 0.48 Glass V Factors 9.5300 ----- Zone Information ------Zane 900 Zone Name: Zone Hultaplier: 78.00 Summer Indee: Design Dat: Summer Indeer Design WBT: 70.00 WINter Indoor Design DBT: 0.00 Winter Indeat Design WR7: Summer Indeat P. Humidity: 0.00 \$0.00 Winter Induor A. Humidity: 30.00 Room Construction Type: Max. System C. Capacity Max. System R. Capacity; Medium 50000.00 -50000.00 System Air Flow Pote: Outdoor Air Flow Rate: System Throttling Range: 0.00 0.00 0.01 System Annual Schd. Name: 600 annual 600 cally System Design Schd. Hamet Ventilating Ann. Schd. Name: continuous Ventilating Dos. Schd. Name: continuous

Koom Namet Rolf 910

Noom Multiplier:		ĵ
FLOOR SUC. Ares:		516.60
Room Ceiling Height:		θċ
Room Parameters:		
Room Geometry	:	15 ft x 15 ft
Room Meight		e ft
of Exterior Wall	:	4
Interlor Stade	:	0 t
Furniture	:	Without
Exterior Constructico	:	H.W. with moderate insit.
Partition Type		E in. Conc. block
Room Location	;	Top Floor
Mid Figg Type	:	2.5 sr. Conc.
Slab Type	:	Hid Floor Type
Ceiling Type	:	Without Ceiling
Roo: type	:	L.W. w/c susp. ceilino
Floor Covering	:	Vinyi tile
JI455 Percent	:	10 1

-----Infiltration Isforpation----

Infiltration's Name:	Infiltration
Air Change/Hour:	6.254
Annual Schd. Name:	continuous
Design Day Schd. Name:	continuous

section (in: station-----

Wall': Name:	North
FAGING DÍRECLION:	0.00
Tilt Angle:	93.00
WALL TYPE:	13
Actual U Factor:	0.03
surface Absorptance:	- 60
Surface Area:	232.50
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	I Undetined ()
Principle Material:	al Undefined 41
Secondary Material:	ur Undefined fr
*** No Window Defined for	This Surtace ***

----Roet Information-----

Hoot's Mame:	8.001
Facing Direction:	0.00
Tilt Anale:	G.00
Roof Type:	2
Actual U Facto:	0.06
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Suffice Area:	516.60
Material Destructions:	
	AD : Cotside Jurface
Resistance	
	87 :) 15. Wet:
	BIZ : 3 in. Insulation
	ED : Inside Sufface
Resistance	
	E? : 1/2 in, 51ag or
Stone	
Mass Location	Mass integral
Principle Hateria::	87 I in. Wood
Suspender Colling:	Without
" No Window Sefires For	This Surface

Wall's Hare:	W&37.
Facino Direction:	2701
Tilt Angle:	0.0¢
Wall Type:	11
Actual U Factor:	0-09
Surface Absorptance:	. 60
Surface Area:	174.34
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	NE Undefined ##
Frinciple Material:	Undefined ##
Secondary Material:	∎t Undefinea t#
No Windly Lefined For	This Surface ***

-----Wail information------

ail's	Name:	East
Facina	DIRCTING	91.5.

Tilt Angle:	40.00
Wall Type:	11
Actual U Factor:	0.03
Surface Absorptances	0.60
Surface Area:	174.38
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	se Undefined se
Frinciple Material:	I Undefines ##
Secondary Material:	4) Undefined #4
. No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

-----Equipment lafotantion

Equipment's NAREL	Equipment
Equipmont Peak Gain:	682.40
Sensible Heat Gain:	682.40
Latent Heat Gain;	0.00
Equipment Multiplier:	1
Radiant Fraction:	0.600
Convective Fraction:	0.405
Annual Schd. Name:	continuous
Susign Day Schd. Name:	continuous

-----Wall Information-----

Wall's Name:	South
Facing Direction:	180.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	11
Actual U Factor:	C. 09
Surface Absorptance:	C.60
Surface Area:	232.50
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	11 Leastebal 11
Principlu Material:	## Undetined ##
Secondary Harecial:	as Undefined as

>>-----Window for This Set Face-----

Glass's Name:	South Window
Window Width:	19.60
Window Reight:	6.56
Glass Shading Coufficient:	0. C.
Glass U Factor:	0.1306
overhand Longth:	\$.2 [#]
Glass to Overhang;	1.64
Overhand Protruction:	0.00
kavesi Dopth:	0,00

Zone Internation

Jone Name:	70n# 400
Zana Multiplice.	1
Summer Indep: Degion DBI:	7R.05
Summer Indoor Design WBT:	70.00
Winter Indoor Design DBT:	0.00
Winter Indeer Design WET:	0.00
Summer Indoor R. Hur.d	50.00
Wanter Indoor R. Humidity:	30.03
Room Construction Type:	Hed. un
Haw, System C. Spacity:	50000.00
Max. System N. Capa : Ly:	-50000,00
SYSTEM ALT FLOW Rate:	0.00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	0.0
System Annual Schd. Hama:	600 annis:
System Det.dn Schd. Name:	600 daily
Ventilating Ann. athd. Name-	COR. 11-1048
Ventilating Des. Schd. Manu:	COMMONS

-----koim informat: po------

Room Name:		Noon (0)
Room Hultiplier:		1
Floor Sur. Area:		516.6-5
Room Colling Hoight:		5.46
Scon Firsmeters:		
Room Gromwery		15 ft x 15 ft
Room Heisd?	:	H (T)
 of Exteric: Wall 	~	4
Interio: Shade	:	* t
FUSBLUER	-	W.thou:
Exterior Construction	•	H.W. With moderate inclu-
Fartilics Type	2	" in. Cond. E. The
Ream Losalion	:	Top Floor
Hid Floor Type	:	2.5 in. Conc.

≤la: Type		Hid Ficer Type
Caling Type	:	Without Ceiling
Roof Type	1	L.W. W/o susp. ceiling
Floor Covering	:	vinyl tilø
Glass Percent	:	to 1

-----infiltration Information----

Inflitration's Name:	Infiltration
Air Change/Hour:	0.55
Annual Scoo, Namo:	CONCINUOUS
Design Day Schol. Name:	continuous

-----Equiptent Infofmation-----

Equipment's Nome:	Equipment
Equipment Feak Gain:	692.40
Sentible Hest Gain:	582.40
Latent Heat Gain:	0.00
Equipment Multiplier:	3
Radiant Fraction:	600
Convective Fraction:	0.400
Annual Scho. Narw:	continuous
Désign Dey Schd. Name:	COULTUIOUS

-----Roci information

Roof's Name:	Roor
Facing Direction:	0.00
ILL ÁNGLO:	0.00
Roof Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0.06
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
SURTACE Arus:	516.60
Material Descriptions:	
•	A3 : Outside Surface
Resistance	
	B7 : 1 in. Wood
	B12 : 3 in. Insulation
	ED : Inside Surface
Resistance	
	E2 : 1/2 10. STAD OF
Stone	
Masr Location:	Hass Integral
Principle Material.	87 1 in. Wood
Suspended Ceiling:	WIChous
*** N. Window Defined Fo	(This Surface ***

------Wal: Information-----

	Wali'z Name:	Wash
•	FACSTOR DIRECTION:	270.00
	Tilt Angia:	50, 0 0
	Wall Type:	11
	Actual U Factors	C.09
	. risce Abrorphance:	0.60
	Surface Area:	174.30
	Haterial Descriptions:	
	Mass Location:	Indefined II
	Principle Material:	## Undefines ##
	Secondary Material:	## Undefined ##
	· · · No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

------Wall Information------

Wall's Namu:	Ias'
Facing Direction:	50,00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	11
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Surface Absorptance:	C,60
Surface Area:	174.33
Material Destriptions:	
Hass Location:	↓↓ Undefined ↓↓
Principle Material:	## Undefined ##
Secondary Material:	40 Ondefined 40
*** No Window Defined Fr	r This Surface ***

------Wall Information-------

Wall's Name:

North

Facing Direction:	0.20
Til: Angle:	90.JO
Wall Type:	15
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	232.50
Natorial Descriptions:	
Hass Location:	ab Undefined at
Principle Haterial:	Indefined ==
Secondary Haterial:	f: Undefined #
••• N Window Defined For "	this Surface ***

Wall's Nome:	South
Facing Direction:	190.00
Tilt Anale:	90.00
Wall Type:	3.2
Actual D Factor:	C.05
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	232.50
Material Descriptions:	
Made Location:	IN Undefined #P
Principle Material:	II Undetaned II
Secondary Haterial:	ss Undefined se

>>----Window for This Surface-----

Glazs's Nome:	– ⊱ath Wino⊯
WINDOW WIDCh:	19.60
Window Held).:	6.56
Glass Shading Coefficient:	0.80
Glass U Factor:	0.5300

Presenters Zone Information and and

Zone Name:	Zone 600
Zone Multiplier:	1
Summer Indoor Design DBT:	10.00
Summer Indoor Design WBT:	70.00
Winter Indoor Dusign DBT:	0.00
Winter Indoor Design WBT:	9.00
Summer Indoor R. Humidity:	50.00
Winter Indoor R. Rumidity:	30.00
Roor Construction Type:	Extreme Lont
Max. System C. Coph Hty:	50000.00
Mag. System H. Capabity:	-50000.00
System Air Flow Rate:	0.00
Gutob of Alz Flow Rates	0.00
System Throttline Panae:	D.01
System Annual Fold, Namer	600 annual
System Dosign achd. Name:	600 daily
Ventilating Ann. Schd. Name	CONT. 1
Ventilating Dus. Send. Name	CON, IUDOR.

-----Room Information------

Room Name:		Kaop 600
Acom Hultiplier:		1
Floor Sur. Ares:		516,60
Room Celling Heighr		F.96
Room Parameters:		
Room Geometry		25. 25. x 35. 74
ROOM HOLSKE	:	P
# of Exterior Wall	1	1
Interior Shade	Ŧ	ũ t
Furniture	3	WIThout
Exterior Construction	:	L.W. with moderate instr
Partition Type	÷	5/F in. Gyp-Asr-5/F in. Gyr
Room Location		Top Floor
Mid Floor Type	:	l in. Wood
Slan Type	1	Mid Floor Type
Celling Type	:	Without Ceiling
Roof Type	:	L.W W/O susp. chiling
Floor Covering	:	vinyl tile
Glass Percent	:	to i

----Infiltration information----

Infiltration's Name: Alt Change/Heur: Annual Schd. Name: Delign Day Schd. Name: Infiltration 0.50 COStinuous Continu Us

-----Wall Information

Wall's Name:	Wost
Facing Direction:	270.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Sur (ace Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	176.36
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	J) Undefined 00
Principle Material:	## Undefined ##
Socondary Material:	## Undefined ##
*** No Window Defined Fo	r 7613 Surlace ***

-----Equipment Infofmation-----

Equipment's Name:	Equipmont
Equipment Peak Gain:	682.40
Sensible Beat Gain:	682.40
Latent Heat Gain:	0.00
Equipment Multiplies:	1
Radiant Fraction:	A.600
Convective Fraction:	0.40C
Annual Schd. Name:	continuous
Dosign Day Schd. Nome:	CODLINUOUS

-----Wall Information-----

Wall's Name:	Bast
Facing Direction:	50.00
Tilt Anglo:	90.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual L' Factor:	0.09
Surtace Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Area:	174.38
Material Descriptions:	
Hass Location:	## Undefined ##
Principle Material:	## Undefined ##
Secondary Material:	## Undefined ##
*** No Window Defined Fai	r This Surface ***

Will's Name:	North
Facing Direction:	0.00
filt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Surtace Absorptance;	0,60
Surface Area:	232.50
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	16 Undefined 60
Principle Material:	IN Undefined IN
Secondary Material:	as Undefined ss
*** No Window Defines Fo	: This Surface ***

www.www.www.www.www.www.www.www.

Wall's Name:	South
Facing Direction:	180.00
Tilt Angle:	20.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual C Factor:	0.03
Surface Absorptance:	6.60
Surface Ares:	232.50
Malegial Descriptions.	
Mass Location:	D# Undefined ##
Principle Material:	Indefined ID
Secondary Material:	D# Undef:ned ##

>>-----Window for This Surface-----

Glass's Nome:	South Window
Window Width:	19.60
Window Helaht:	6. 11
Glass Shading Coefficient:	0"
Glass U factur:	0.5300

Roof

Roo! Name:

¢

Facing Direction: 0.00 Tilt Andle: 0.00 Roof Type: 2 Actual U Factor: 0.06 Surface Absorption: 0.60 Surface Area: 516.60 Haterial Descriptions: A0 : ...diside Surface Registance B7 : 1 in. Wood R12 : 3 10. Insufactors E2 : 1 2 in. Slad or Stone E2 : 1 2 in. Slad or Suspended Cealing: Mast Integral Principle Material: B7 i in. Widd *** No Window Detimed For Thic Surface ***

2one Name:	Zono 610
2one Multiplier:	2
Summer Indoor Design DBT:	78.00
Summer Indoor Design WBT:	70.00
Winter Indoor Design DB7:	0.00
Wincer Indoor Design NBT:	D.DD
Summor Indoor R. Rumadaty:	30.00
Winter Indoor R. Humidity:	30.00
Roca Construction Type:	Extreme Light
Max. System C. Capacity:	50000.00
Max. System R. Capacity:	-50000.00
System Air Flow Rate:	0,00
Outdoor Air Flow Rate:	0.00
System Throttling Range:	0.01
System Annual Schd. Name:	600 Annusl
System Design Schd. Name.	600 daily
Ventilating Ann. Schd. Nam=:	CONCLINICUS
Ventriating Des. Schd. Name:	CONCINUOUS

Roce Information

Roath Name:		Room 6:
Room Multiplier:		3
Floor Sur. Area:		516.60
koom Ceiling Height:		8.86
Room Parameters:		
Room Gastetry	:	15 16 x 15 24
Raam Height	:	in fr
I of Emigrics Wall		ι
Interior Shadu	:	0 🕯
Furniture		Without
Exterior Construction		b.W. with redering grain.
Partities Typ	•	IN IN GYE-ALC-LIF ID. (V)
Room Location	:	Top Floor
Mid Floor Type	;	Lin, Wood
Slab Type		Hid Floor Type
Celling Type		Without Celling
Roof Type	:	L.W. W/r busp. (eiling
Floor Covering	1	viny: tile
Glass Puicant		10 1

-----Infaltration Informations----

Infillication's Name:	Intilization
ALE Change/Hour:	0.50
Annual Send. Nara:	CONTINUOUS
Dusian Day Schd. Namo:	continuous

----Equipment Intofmation-----

Equipment's Nora:	£quapment
Equipment Pask Gain	692.40
Sensible Heat Cain:	68.40
Latent Heat Gain:	6.00
Equipment Multiplior:	1
Addiant Fraction:	0.600
Convective Fraction:	0.402
Annual Thd. Name:	CORLINUOUS
Design Day Schol Nare:	CO87 100005

Wall Information

Wall's Name:

Facing Direction:	90.00
Tilt Angle:	90.01
Wall Type:	1
Actual 1 Factor:	0.09
Sur(scs Absorptance:	0.69
Surface Ares:	174.39
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	<pre>st Undwrined #4</pre>
Principle Material(## Undefine: ##
Secondary Material:	## Vødefinc: ##
*** No Window Defined For	this Surface ***

-----Wall informition------

Wail's Name:	North.
Facing Direction:	0.00
Tilt Angle:	90.01
Wall Type:	1
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Suiface Absorptance:	6.60
Surface Ares:	232.50
Material Destriptions:	
Mass Location:	## Undefined #4
Principle Material:	## Undefaced ##
Secondary Haterial;	## Updefined F#
*** No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

-----Repf Intomation-----

k-f's Name:	Koof
Facing Direction:	0.00
Tilt Angle:	0.00
R >1 Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0.06
Surface Absorptance:	0.50
Surface Area:	5)6.60
Material Descriptions:	
	A0 : Outside Surface
Reals ance	
	67 : 1 in. Wood
	812 : 3 in. Insulation
	£0 : Inside Surface
kesistance	
	E2 : 1/2 in. Slap or
Stone	
Mass Location:	Haga Integral
Principle Material:	B7 1 IL. Wood
Suspended Ceiling:	Without
*** No Window Detinud For	This Surface ***

-----Wall Information------

Hall' Name:	South
FACLES SIGGLISS	190.00
T.It. Anolo:	30.04
HALL TYPE:	1
Artual U Factors	0.09
Surfade Absorptance:	0.60
outlate Area.	232.50
Material Descriptions:	
Hass Location:	II Undefined II
Principle Haterial	Undefined ##
Secondary Material.	Undefined ##
-	

passessWindow for this Suffacesses

South Window
19.60
4.55
0.00
0.1110
3.20
1.6:
0.00
C.00

------Wall Information

Wall's Name	We = '.
Facing Direction:	27(,)0
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Wall Type:	1
Actual U Factors	0.09
Surface Absorptiones:	0.60

Surface Area: Maxeriai Descriptions: 174.38 Mass Location: B# Undefined #B Principle Material: ## Undefined ## Solondary Material: ## Undefined ## *** No Window Defined For This Surface *** ----- Zone information ------Zone Name: Lone 230 Ione Multiplier: 1 Summer Indoor Design D87: 78.00 70.00 Summer Indoor Design WB1: Summer Indoor Design DBT: Winter Indoor Design DBT: Winter Indoor Design WBT: Summer Indoor R. Humidity: Noom Construction Type: 50,00 30.00 Medium Max. System D. Capacity: Max. System D. Capacity: Max. System H. Capacity: System Air Flow Rate: Tutdoor Air Flow Pate: 50000.00 -50000.00 0.00 System Throttling Kange: System Annual Schd. Hame: System Design Schd. Name: 0.01 600 annual 600 dealy Ventilating Ann. Schit. Hame: continuous

Room Information

Ventilating Des. Schd. Name: continuous

Room Nami:		Room 930
Room Multiplier:		2
Floor Sur. Area:		16.05
Room Ceiling Height:		9,96
Room Parametors:		
Room Geometry	:	15 ft x 15 ft
Accos Reight	1	F 22
B OF ERESSION WALL	:	4
lpressor Shade	;	0 1
Furniture	:	Without
Saterio: Construction	±1	H.W. with moderate inclu-
Partition Type	:	P in. Conc. block
Room Location	:	Top Floor
Mid Floor Type	:	2.5 in. Conc.
Slab Type	:	Mid Froor Type
Colling Type	:	Without Celline
Roof Typ-	:	L.W. w/c susp. ceiling
F. Cr DVering	:	winy! tile
GLAST Percont	:	19 1

Infiltration's Nome:	Indiatestion
ALC Change/Hour:	50
Annual Schd. Name:	CON* + 111/2/147
Dusson Day Schol, Name.	CONTINUOUS

----Equipmont Information-----

Eguipment's Nanni	Equipment
Equipment Feak Gain:	692.44
Sensible Heat Gain:	682.40
Laten: Reat Go.n:	0.00
Equipment Multiplier:	1
Radian' Fraction:	0.600
Convective Fraction:	0.400
Annual Schd. Name:	CONTINUES
Derida Day Schill Name:	continu u

www.wait intermations.sectors

Wall's Nome:	North
Facing Direction	0.64
Till Angle:	20.00
Wall Type:	11
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Surface Absorphance:	9.60
Surface Area:	232.50
Material Descripts nrt	
Hass Location:	Al Undefined ab
Principle Material:	41 Undetine: 44
Secondary Baterials	tt Undefines tt
*** No Window Defined For	This Surface ""

.

koo! Interation

Roof's NARG:	Reo.
Facing Direction:	0.00
Til: Angle:	0.00
koof Type:	2
Actual U Factor:	0.06
Surface Absorptance:	0.60
Surface Ares:	516.60
Material Lescriptions:	
-	A0 : Outside Surface
Resistance	
	97 : 1 in. Wood
	B)? : J in. Insulation
	EQ : Inside Surface
Registance	
	E2 : 1/2 in. Slag or
S'.one	-
Mass Location:	Mage Intigral
Principle Material:	\$7 1 in. Wapa
Suspected Celling:	Hitbeur
*** No Window Detinel For Thi	s Surface ***

-----Wall information------

שו מפת	,
ned I	r
r -3 🖬	
	ned ∎i ned ∎i r∘d ∎i

>>-----Wincow for This Surface-----

Glass's Name:	West Wondow
Window Width:	9,84
Window Height:	6,56
Glass Shading Coefficient:	0.88
Glass U Factor:	0.5300
Overhang Length:	3.29
Ginss Lo verhand.	1.61
Cornage Proteurion.	0.10

Reveal Depth: 0.00

Hall Information

Wall's Name:	6851
Facing Direction:	270.00
Tilt Angle:	90.00
Hali Type:	11
Actual U Factor:	0.09
Surface Absurptan	0.60
Sur!ace Area:	174.38
Material Descriptions:	
Hari Location:	41 Undafiled 47
Principle Material:	■ Undefined ■■
Secondary Haserial	M Undefigue II

Glass's Name:	West Window
Wincow Width:	3.84
Window Height:	6.50
Glass Shading Coefficients	0.8F
Glass U Factor:	6.5300
Overhand Length:	3.26
GLASE to Overhand:	1,64
Overhang Proteusion:	0.00
Roveal Depth:	0.00

internation

Wall's Name:	South.
Facing Direction:	1余0.00
Tilt Andle:	90.0C
Wall Typer	11
Accust & Factors	5.04
Surface Absorptance:	a.60
Surface Atea:	232,50
Material Descriptions:	
Mass Location:	## Undefigud ##
Principle Material:	## Vaciefaced ##
Sugandary Material:	Fr Undefarme Fr
No Window Defined For	This Surface ***

VITA

Xin Chen

Candidate for the Degree of

Master of Science

Thesis: ADDITION OF ANNUAL BUILDING ENERGY ANALYSIS CAPABILITY TO A DESIGN LOAD CALCULATION PROGRAM

Major Field: Mechanical Engineering

Biographical:

- Personal Data: Born in Hangzhou, P. R. China on June 29, 1965, the son of Zhengjiou Chen and Jinhuan Ming
- Education: Graduated from Beijing Tiedao Fuzhong High School, Beijing, P. R. China in July 1982; received Bachelor of engineering Degree in Mechanical Engineering Department of China Textile University in July, 1986; completed requirements for the Master of Science Degree with a major in Mechanical Engineering at Oklahoma State University in December, 1996.

Professional Experience:

Research Assistant, Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering, Oklahoma State University, from June, 1995 to July, 1996; Teaching Assistant, Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering, Oklahoma State University, from June, 1995 to May, 1996; Design Engineer, Beijing Coal Design & Research Institute, from July, 1986 to May, 1993.

Professional Memberships:

ASHRAE Student Member